
September 4, 2013           Agenda 
1 
 

 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council/Planning 
Commission/Public Financing Authority/Housing Authority/I.B. Redevelopment Agency 
Successor Agency regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection in the office of the City Clerk located at 825 Imperial Beach Blvd., Imperial Beach, CA 
91932 during normal business hours. 

A G E N D A  

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2013 
Council Chambers 

825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 
Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

CLOSED SESSION MEETING – 5:00 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 P.M. 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL ALSO SITS AS THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH PLANNING COMMISSION, PUBLIC 
FINANCING AUTHORITY, HOUSING AUTHORITY AND IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
The City of Imperial Beach is endeavoring to be in total compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA).  If you require assistance or auxiliary aids in order to participate at City Council meetings, please 
contact the City Clerk’s Office at (619) 423-8301, as far in advance of the meeting as possible. 

CLOSED SESSION CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
CLOSED SESSION 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Initiation of Litigation pursuant to Govt. Code section 54956.9(d)(4) (1 case) 

RECONVENE AND ANNOUNCE ACTION (IF APPROPRIATE) 
ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 
REGULAR MEETING CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
AGENDA CHANGES  
MAYOR/COUNCIL REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE/COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS/ 
REPORTS ON ASSIGNMENTS AND COMMITTEES 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY STAFF  
PUBLIC COMMENT - Each person wishing to address the City Council regarding items not on the posted 

agenda may do so at this time.  In accordance with State law, Council may not take action on an item not 
scheduled on the agenda.  If appropriate, the item will be referred to the City Manager or placed on a future 
agenda. 
  



September 4, 2013          Agenda 
 2 
 

PRESENTATIONS (1.1-1.3) 
1.1* DEBUT OF NEW SAN DIEGO COUNTY LIBRARY BOOKMARKS FEATURING 

IMPERIAL BEACH LIFEGUARDS.  (0150-20) 
 
1.2* PRESENTATION ON SOUTH COUNTY ECONOMIC VISIONING PROJECT BY 

CINDY GOMPPER GRAVES, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR.  (0140-45) 
 
1.3* PRESENTATION ON SERIES 13 REGIONAL GROWTH FORECAST: DRAFT 

SUBREGIONAL FORECAST BY KIRBY BRADY, RESEARCH ANALYST, SANDAG.  
(0140-40) 

* No staff report. 

CONSENT CALENDAR (2.1-2.6) - All matters listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be 

routine and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items, unless a 
Councilmember/Boardmember or member of the public requests that particular item(s) be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and considered separately.  Those items removed from the Consent Calendar will be 
discussed at the end of the Agenda.   

A.  CITY COUNCIL CONSENT CALENDAR: 
2.1 MINUTES.   
 City Manager’s Recommendation:  Approve the minutes of the Regular City Council 

Meeting of August 21, 2013. 

2.2 RATIFICATION OF WARRANT REGISTER.  (0300-25) 
 City Manager’s Recommendation:  Ratify the following registers: Accounts Payable 

Numbers 82954 through 83071 for a subtotal amount of $784,482.24 and Payroll 
Checks/Direct Deposit 45424 through 45450 for a subtotal of $145,342.93 for a total 
amount of $929,825.17. 

2.3 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7381 APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH 
UTILITY COST MANAGEMENT TO COMPLETE A REVIEW OF THE CITY’S 
UTILITY BILLS.  (0375-90) 

 City Manager’s Recommendation:  Adopt resolution.  

2.4 RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7380 APPROVING A TWO YEAR AGREEMENT WITH 
LANCE, SOLL & LUNGHARD TO PERFORM THE CITY’S FINANCIAL AUDIT.  
(0310-95) 

 City Manager’s Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 
2.5 RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7379 ACCEPTING THE DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND 

SECURITY PROGRAM FY 2011 PORT SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM AWARD OF 
$125,000 AND AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A COASTAL 
SURVEILLANCE CAMERA SYSTEM.  (0220-20 & 0390-88) 

 City Manager’s Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 
B.  I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY CONSENT CALENDAR: 

2.6 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. SA-13-28 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO APPROVE AN AGREEMENT WITH LANCE, SOLL & 
LUNGHARD FOR AUDIT SERVICES.  (0310-95) 
City Manager/Executive Director’s Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

ORDINANCES – INTRODUCTION/FIRST READING/PUBLIC HEARING (3) 
None. 
 
ORDINANCES – SECOND READING/ADOPTION (4) 
None.   
 
  



September 4, 2013          Agenda 
 3 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (5.1) 
5.1  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7383 AMENDMENT TO THE CIRCULATION ELEMENT OF 

THE GENERAL PLAN/LOCAL COASTAL PLAN (LCPA/GPA 130032) TO 
ACCOMMODATE BIKE LANES ON 13TH STREET. MF 1120.  (0620-20 & 0720-55) 

 City Manager’s Recommendation:   
1. Open the public hearing and entertain testimony; 
2. Close the public hearing; and 
3. Adopt Resolution No. 2013-7383 approving an amendment to the City’s Circulation 

Element of the General Plan/Local Coastal Program (GPA/ LCPA 130032) that 
redesignates 13th Street from a 4-lane collector to a 3-lane collector and which 
makes the necessary findings in compliance with local and state requirements. 

 
REPORTS (6.1-6.5) 
6.1  DISCUSSION ON WATER REUSE AS A STRATEGY TO SECURE SECONDARY 

EQUIVALENCY AT POINT LOMA WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT.  (0620-75) 
 City Manager’s Recommendation: 

1. Receive presentation from Scott Tulloch; 
2. Discuss Council’s position on recycled water; 
3. Discuss Council’s position for supporting a secondary equivalency standard for the 

PLWTP; 
4. Support or recommend changes to the proposed Metro JPA resolution of support; 
5. Direct staff to add an additional whereas to the resolution that expresses the City’s 

opposition to any increasing flow of secondary treated effluent out of the South Bay 
Ocean Outfall as a result of this plan; and 

6. Direct staff to return at the next Council meeting with a supporting resolution for the 
Metro JPA. 

 
6.2  CONSIDERATION OF AND AUTHORIZATION TO ISSUE A REQUEST FOR 

QUALIFICATIONS AND PROPOSALS FOR SPECIALIZED SERVICES TO OPERATE 
AND MANAGE THE IMPERIAL BEACH SPORTS PARK.  (0920-40) 
City Manager’s Recommendation:   
1. Receive report and provide comments, input and direction on the Draft RFQ/P and 
2. Unless major changes are requested, direct staff to incorporate the changes 

recommended by City Council and issue the RFQ/P. 
 

6.3  NO ITEM.  
 

6.4 ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7384 APPROVING AND ADOPTING A LETTER OF 
INTENT TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE 
IMPERIAL BEACH FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION LOCAL 4692.  (0540-20) 
City Manager’s Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

6.5 RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7386 APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 9 TO THE 2012 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVISING FUNDING 
PROJECTIONS AND AUTHORIZING CARRY OVER TO FY 2014 FUNDING TO WIT: 
TRANSNET LOCAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM OF PROJECTS FOR 
FISCAL YEARS 2013 THROUGH 2017.  (0680-80) 

 City Manager’s Recommendation:  
1. Receive this report and 
2. Adopt Resolution 2013-7386 authorizing staff to draw down carryover funds and to 

reprogram the $18,000 of revenue projection reduction. 
 
  



September 4, 2013          Agenda 
 4 
 

I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS (7.1) 
7.1 ADOPTION OF CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7382 APPROVING THE 

ISSUANCE BY THE IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY OF TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING BONDS RELATING TO THE PALM 
AVENUE/COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT; ADOPTION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. FA-13-04 APPROVING REFUNDING INSTRUCTIONS IN 
CONNECTION WITH TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING BONDS RELATING TO THE 
PALM AVENUE/COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS AND EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS RELATED THERETO; AND 
ADOPTION OF SA-13-27 AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF AND OTHER ACTIONS 
RELATING TO THE PALM AVENUE/COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 
TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013.  (0340-90 & 0410-05) 

 City Manager/Executive Director’s Recommendation: 
1. That the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2013-7382 approving the issuance by the 

Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds relating to the Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project; 

2. That the Financing Authority adopt Resolution No. FA-13-04 Approving Refunding 
Instructions in connection with Tax Allocation Bonds Relating to the Palm 
Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project and authorizing official actions and 
execution of documents related thereto; and 

3. That the Successor Agency adopt Resolution No. SA-13-27 authorizing the issuance 
and prescribing the terms, conditions and form of the Imperial Beach Redevelopment 
Agency Successor Agency Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Tax 
Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013; approving the form of and authorizing the 
execution and delivery of a First Supplemental Indenture of Trust and a Bond 
Purchase Agreement; approving the form of and authorizing the distribution of a 
Preliminary Official Statement and authorizing execution and delivery of an Official 
Statement; approving the retention of an underwriter; authorizing payment of costs of 
issuance; and authorizing and approving necessary actions in connection therewith. 

ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR (IF ANY) 
ADJOURNMENT 

The Imperial Beach City Council welcomes you and encourages your continued interest and 
involvement in the City’s decision-making process. 

FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE, A COPY OF THE AGENDA AND COUNCIL MEETING PACKET MAY BE 
VIEWED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK AT CITY HALL OR ON OUR WEBSITE AT 

www.ImperialBeachCA.gov. 

 

          /s/    
Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 

http://www.imperialbeachca.gov/


ITEM NO. 1.3













MINUTES 
 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

AUGUST 21, 2013 
Council Chambers 

825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 
Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

CLOSED SESSION MEETING – 5:00 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 P.M. 

 
CLOSED SESSION CALL TO ORDER BY MAYOR 
MAYOR JANNEY called the Meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
  
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
Councilmembers present:  Patton, Bilbray, Spriggs 
Councilmembers absent:  None 
Mayor present:   Janney 
Mayor Pro Tem present:  Bragg 
Staff present: City Manager Hall, City Attorney Lyon, City Clerk Hald 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
MOTION BY BILBRAY, SECOND BY SPRIGGS, TO ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
UNDER:  
1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)  
(1 case) 
Facts and Circumstances pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(e)(1) 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY recessed the meeting to Closed Session at 5:01 p.m. and he reconvened the 
meeting to Open Session at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Reporting out of Closed Session, CITY ATTORNEY LYON announced City Council discussed 
Item No. 1, City Council gave direction and no reportable action was taken. 
 
ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 
The Closed Session Meeting was adjourned at 6:01 p.m. 
 
REGULAR MEETING CALL TO ORDER 
MAYOR JANNEY called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK  
Councilmembers present:  Patton, Bilbray, Spriggs 
Councilmembers absent:  None 
Mayor present:   Janney 
Mayor Pro Tem present:  Bragg 
Staff present: City Manager Hall, City Attorney Lyon, Assistant City 

Manager Wade, Public Safety Director Clark, Public Works 
Director Levien, City Clerk Hald  

DRAFT Item No. 2.1 



Page 2 of 8 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
August 21, 2013 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
MAYOR JANNEY led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
AGENDA CHANGES  
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE announced City Staff is recommending continuance of 
Item No. 6.2 to the City Council meeting of September 4, 2013.  He advised City Council that 
the draft request for proposals is being revised based on recommendations from the meetings 
with the Sports Park Ad Hoc Committee and the Sports Park Task Force.   
 
MAYOR/COUNCIL REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE/COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS/ 
REPORTS ON ASSIGNMENTS AND COMMITTEES 
MAYOR PRO TEM BRAGG welcomed Andy Hall, Imperial Beach’s new City Manager. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY announced he and Councilmember Patton attended the City of Imperial 
Beach Employee Appreciation Party.  He thanked Erika Cortez for arranging a successful event 
and recognized the City employees for their service to Imperial Beach.   
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY STAFF  
PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR CLARK introduced Mark Ryan, the new lieutenant at the San 
Diego County Sheriff’s Imperial Beach Patrol Station. 
  
LT. RYAN introduced himself to the City Council and spoke briefly about his background. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR CLARK announced September is National Preparedness Month 
and spoke about the importance of taking steps to prepare for emergencies.  He also 
announced October is National Fire Prevention Month and a Fire Department Open House is 
scheduled for October 5, 2013. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
MARCUS BOYD encouraged people to watch a CNN documentary on medical marijuana by Dr. 
Sanjay Gupta, detailing Dr. Gupta’s shift in position on the medical marijuana issue.  He spoke 
in support for citywide regulations that provides for safe, local and reliable access in Imperial 
Beach. 
 
PRESENTATIONS (1) 
None. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (2.1-2.4)  
In response to Councilmember Spriggs’ question regarding payments to SANDPIPA (San Diego 
Pooled Insurance Authority) totaling $145,000, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE explained 
the payments were for the annual insurance premiums for property and liability.  He further 
stated that according to the Interim Administrative Services Director, the rates are low for a City 
our size due to the lack of claims made against the City.  
 
MOTION BY PATTON, SECOND BY SPRIGGS, TO APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM 
NOS. 2.1 THRU 2.4.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
  
2.1 MINUTES.   
 Approved the minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of August 7, 2013. 
 



Page 3 of 8 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
August 21, 2013 
 
2.2 RATIFICATION OF WARRANT REGISTER.  (0300-25) 
 Ratified the following registers: Accounts Payable Numbers 82888 through 82953 for a 

subtotal amount of $587,924.59 and Payroll Checks/Direct Deposit 45392 through 
45423 for a subtotal of $157,193.19 for a total amount of $745,117.78. 

2.3 RESOLUTION 2013-7374 IN SUPPORT OF HOUSE RESOLUTION 241 
RECOGNIZING THE IMPORTANCE OF THE EFFORTS OF THE UNITED STATES 
INTERNATIONAL BOUNDARY WATER COMMISSION (USIBWC) AND ITS RECENT 
EFFORTS TO ADDRESS TRASH, SEDIMENT, AND WATER QUALITY ISSUES WITH 
THEIR MEXICAN COUNTERPARTS, COMISION INTERNACIONAL DE LIMITES Y 
AGUAS (CILA) THROUGH A PROPOSED MINUTE.  (0230-70 & 0620-75) 
1. Approved Resolution of support and 
2. Directed the City Manager to send the Resolution of support to Congressman Juan 

Vargas in support of House Resolution 241. 

2.4 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NUMBER 2013-7378 AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE FIRST OF TWO EXTENSIONS OF THE MOU WITH 
THE SOUTH BAY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 
SERVICES IN THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS.  (0260-45) 
Adopted resolution. 
 

ORDINANCES – INTRODUCTION/FIRST READING/PUBLIC HEARING (3) 
None. 
 
ORDINANCES – SECOND READING/ADOPTION (4) 
None.   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS (5) 
None.  
 
REPORTS (6.1-6.4) 
6.1  ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7375 APPROVING THE CITY’S RESPONSE 

TO THE MAY 28, 2013 GRAND JURY REPORT ENTITLED “IMPERIAL BEACH 
FINANCES – A CITY UNDER STRESS”.  (0440-25) 

 
CITY MANAGER HALL introduced the item. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE reported on the item.  He noted that City Staff agreed 
with the Grand Jury’s primary finding that there was no fraud or wrongdoing detected and also 
agreed that the dissolution process has been difficult to navigate.   
 
Councilmember Spriggs expressed appreciation for staff’s detailed report which addresses 
every finding and recommendation in the Grand Jury report.  In light of the allegations made 
against the City, he requested that the City’s response to the Grand Jury report be entered into 
the record.   
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE reviewed and displayed the Grand Jury’s nine 
recommendations and the City’s responses as detailed in the staff report and shown below:   
 
1. The first recommendation (13-83) is that the City “update its timekeeping system and 

approval procedure to allow required segregation of labor costs to the Successor 
Agency.” 



Page 4 of 8 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
August 21, 2013 
 

This recommendation has been implemented.  A new project code was created in 
February 2012 to segregate Successor Agency administrative costs, including labor, 
which was fully implemented after the enactment of AB 1484, which clarified the ROPS 
reporting requirements.  Additionally, the Successor Agency has created other project-
related codes to more accurately account for costs incurred by the Successor Agency. 

 
2. The Grand Jury’s second recommendation (13-84) is that the City “[i]mmediately 

implement accounting procedures that accurately segregate all costs types (notably 
labor and outsourced legal expenses) between the General Fund, Successor Agency 
and other City funds.”  

 
This recommendation has been implemented.  As noted above under the first 
recommendation, a number of project codes segregating Successor Agency costs have 
been created and utilized, before and after the Grand Jury audit.  These include project 
codes segregating costs associated with litigation costs, property management, Pier 
South Hotel, Bikeway Village, and the 2003 Tax Allocation Bond refinancing, among 
others.  

 
3. The Grand Jury’s third recommendation (13-85) is that “by the end of Calendar Year 

(CY) 2013, institute a time study that should be performed on a periodic basis to allocate 
time spent on RDA activities.”   

 
This recommendation will not be implemented.  A time study is not warranted 
because Imperial Beach staff already record the actual hours spent on Successor 
Agency activity using specific project codes. Legal services are also recorded according 
to specific project codes and billed separately under specific project titles.  The support 
documentation for the staff hours dedicated to Successor Agency activities has been 
reviewed and approved by DOF; therefore a time study is not needed and would 
constitute a waste of taxpayer resources. 

 
4. The Grand Jury’s fourth recommendation (13-86) is “by the end of CY 2013, improve the 

City accounting system for legal expenses.”  
 

This recommendation has been implemented.  The accounting for legal services has 
been reclassified to the Legal Services account from the Professional Services account, 
with journals created to correct previous entries.  All legal services are coded to project 
sub-accounts for litigation and operations.  

 
5. The Grand Jury’s fifth recommendation (13-87) is “by the end of CY 2013, restate 

financial statements for FY 2010-2011.”  
 

This recommendation will not be implemented.  The basis for this recommendation is 
not clear, but if it is the issue of the $1.7 million transfer to the General Fund to fund 
Former RDA costs and expenses, that issue was resolved with the DOF approval of the 
transfer and finding that it was authorized.  Both the City and Former RDA received an 
unqualified audit report for FY 2010-2011.  

 
6. The Grand Jury’s sixth recommendation (13-88) is, “by end of CY 2013, identify labor 

costs related to RDA activities for the period of February 1 through June 30, 2012 and 
make an adjusting journal entry to transfer this cost from the City’s General Fund to the 
Successor Agency fund.”   

 



Page 5 of 8 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
August 21, 2013 
 

This recommendation will not be implemented.  There were no RDA costs incurred 
during the stated period because the RDA was dissolved February 1, 2012.  Additionally, 
the Dissolution Act allows for payment of labor costs related to Successor Agency 
activities. Adjustments are done only when the adjustment would change the balance 
sheet, however, this recommendation would have no net effect.  Finally, it would be 
inappropriate to change the accounting for a period which has already been reviewed 
and approved by DOF.  

 
7. The Grand Jury’s seventh recommendation (13-89) is “develop a timekeeping system or 

work with the current vendor’s system support to automate the timesheet approval 
process and to implement automated controls that prevent employees from adjusting 
time sheets after supervisor’s approval.”   

 
This recommendation has been implemented.  The City’s current electronic time 
keeping system is automated and protects against employee alteration of time sheets 
after submittal.  The Administrative Services/Finance Department follows an additional 
control procedure by auditing the submitted approved timesheets against the 
timekeeping hours in the system.  

 
8. The Grand Jury’s eighth recommendation (13-90) is “begin immediately to increase the 

accuracy of their ROPS submission procedures to comply with DOF requirements.”  
 

This recommendation has been implemented.  The Successor Agency is constantly 
pursuing procedures to improve its accuracy and compliance with the Dissolution Act, 
reflected by the consistent approval rate by DOF of its enforceable obligations and 
RPTTF funding for all ROPS submittals to date. 

 
9. The Grand Jury’s final recommendation (13-91) is to “consider getting help from the 

State representatives or County resources in the ROPS submission and settlement 
process.”   

 
This recommendation has been implemented.  Imperial Beach has sought and 
received assistance from State representatives and County resources in the preparation 
and submission of its ROPS.  However, it should be noted that the recommendation is 
unwarranted, because Successor Agency staff are highly skilled and experienced and 
have been successful in managing the redevelopment dissolution process and 
compliance with the Dissolution Act.  This is reflected in the timely submittal of all ROPS 
and approval by DOF of most of the enforceable obligations; payment of all available 
RPTTF funds for Successor Agency enforceable obligations; issuance of the Finding of 
Completion; and consistent receipt of unqualified audit reports. 

 
CITY ATTORNEY LYON clarified that the report was issued by the Civil Grand Jury, not the 
Criminal Grand Jury.  The Civil Grand Jury has the authority to investigate procedures of local 
agencies.  She noted that the 2012-2013 Civil Grand Jury issued fifteen reports containing 
policy recommendations to various local agencies and had the authority to do so pursuant to 
State law.  Additionally, State law requires local agencies to respond and it dictates how local 
agencies are to respond.  She further noted that State law does not require the City to adopt the 
policy recommendations but only to consider them and provide a response.  The response letter 
presented to City Council embodies what is to be done under the law. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE stated that a positive outcome of the report is having 
somebody else look at what was being done and having a conclusion that nothing was done 



Page 6 of 8 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
August 21, 2013 
 
wrong.  Additionally, implementing recommendations that can improve the system is a positive 
outcome of the report.  
 
DANTE PAMINTUAN stated that he was embarrassed by the language contained in the 
response letter.  He suggested that the City welcome the Grand Jury’s recommendations and 
not be defensive. 
 
MAYOR PRO TEM BRAGG thanked Assistant City Manager Wade for his thorough explanation 
of the City’s response.  She noted that the rules relating to the wind-down of redevelopment 
kept changing and it has been a complicated process.  She thanked Assistant City Manager 
Wade, former City Manager Brown, City Attorney Lyon and special counsel for their efforts.   
 
MAYOR JANNEY stated that the California State Department of Finance, being the highest 
authority in the dissolution process, approved everything the City reported to them.  He 
recognized staff and outside counsel for successfully navigating through the dissolution 
process.  He expressed disappointment that some of the information presented by the 
complainant and the Grand Jury were incorrect.  He noted that multiple auditors have shown 
that we have been performing in accordance with the laws and he spoke in support for staff’s 
recommendation. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER BILBRAY questioned what the City can do to inform its citizens of the 
positive outcome.  
 
CITY MANAGER HALL responded that all the information presented is available to the public.  
The challenge, however, is that this is a complicated matter with a voluminous amount of 
information that is hard to follow.  He stressed the importance of following the process from 
beginning to end as one can get lost in the changes in legislation.  Staff will prepare a timeframe 
showing how the process unfolded and how the City responded as the dissolution process 
happened.  He noted that Imperial Beach is one of the first cities to complete the process.   
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS stated that the dissolution of redevelopment has created a 
tremendous amount of stress on every city in the state that had a redevelopment agency.  The 
IB City Council has been as aggressive as any City Council can be in fighting to keep projects 
alive so they can be completed.  He stressed that at every turn, the efforts of City Staff and City 
Council have been vindicated and stated that he is proud of the work that has been done.  With 
regard to the response letter, he questioned the tone and the use of terminology.   
 
CITY ATTORNEY LYON stated that the response letter meets the intent of the law and tone is a 
matter of preference.  Adding the word “respectfully” before the words “disagree” and 
“submitted” would be appropriate language as the letter is being submitted to the presiding 
judge.  These changes are non-substantive and can be made by Staff. 
 
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY PATTON, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7375 
APPROVING THE CITY’S RESPONSE TO THE MAY 28, 2013 GRAND JURY REPORT 
ENTITLED “IMPERIAL BEACH FINANCES – A CITY UNDER STRESS” WITH THE NON-
SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES TO THE RESPONSE LETTER AS PROPOSED BY THE CITY 
ATTORNEY. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY stressed that the results of the Grand Jury audit did not uncover any fraud. 
 



Page 7 of 8 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
August 21, 2013 
 
VOTES WERE NOW CAST ON ORIGINAL MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY PATTON, 
TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7375 APPROVING THE CITY’S RESPONSE TO THE 
MAY 28, 2013 GRAND JURY REPORT ENTITLED “IMPERIAL BEACH FINANCES – A CITY 
UNDER STRESS” WITH THE NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES TO THE RESPONSE 
LETTER AS PROPOSED BY THE CITY ATTORNEY.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY recognized Dr. Katie McNamara, the new Superintendent for South Bay 
Union School District. 
 
6.2  CONSIDERATION OF AND AUTHORIZATION TO ISSUE A REQUEST FOR 

QUALIFICATIONS AND PROPOSALS FOR SPECIALIZED SERVICES TO OPERATE 
AND MANAGE THE IMPERIAL BEACH SPORTS PARK.  (0920-40) 

 
Item continued to the City Council meeting of September 4, 2013. 
 
6.3  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7377 FORMALLY ACCEPTING AND APPROPRIATING THE 

2012-2013 BICYCLE TRANSPORTATION ACCOUNT (BTA) GRANT FUNDS AND 
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) FOR THE 13TH STREET BIKEWAY PROJECT.  
(0330-35 & 0680-20) 

 
CITY MANAGER HALL introduced the item. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR LEVIEN showed an aerial photo of the proposed changes to 13th 

Street. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER BILBRAY expressed concern about high traffic volumes and traffic flow due 
to the nearby high density residential area and the Navy base and did not support the item. 
 
In response to Councilmember Patton’s question about previous traffic studies, PUBLIC 
WORKS DIRECTOR LEVIEN stated that the volume of traffic and frequency were studied by 
the traffic engineer and they meet the engineering standards for converting to this method for 
traffic lanes.  The signal lights can be studied later if it turns out to be an issue.  He further 
stated that he does not know of any problems that may come up in the future.  With regard to 
Councilmember Bilbray’s concerns, increased traffic is not anticipated at the Navy base as there 
are no plans for expansion and there is no expectation that the residential area will become 
more dense.  
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE stated that a Local Coastal Program Amendment related 
to this project that addresses the circulation element will be presented to City Council at their 
next meeting.  He also stated that there is a Bicycle Transportation Plan that was approved by 
the City Council that classifies 13th Street as a Class 2 Bicycle Facility. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY stated that the Navy is aware of this project and supports it as they would like 
to see their staff use more bicycles.  He stressed that the Navy does not have the capability to 
increase personnel at the base. 
 
In response to concerns of the City Council, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR LEVIEN stated that 
he can present the drawings to City Council once they are completed and that City Council 
supported this project when he presented it to them in April.  After conducting studies, the traffic 
engineer did not expect congestion to occur.  He stressed that the design serves several 
purposes such as slowing traffic down, providing a safer alternative to transportation in terms of 



Page 8 of 8 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
August 21, 2013 
 
bicycling and making it safer for pedestrians. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS noted that the proposed project does not include major 
infrastructure construction but rather striping of lanes.  He suggested that if the amount of traffic 
increases, the street can be returned to a four lane road. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER BILBRAY suggested that after the project is completed, have Staff report 
back to City Council on the flow of traffic and have City Council decide if the street should return 
to four lanes.  
 
MOTION BY JANNEY, SECOND BY BILBRAY, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7377 
FORMALLY ACCEPTING AND APPROPRIATING THE 2012-2013 BICYCLE 
TRANSPORTATION ACCOUNT (BTA) GRANT FUNDS AND AUTHORIZING AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) FOR 
THE 13TH STREET BIKEWAY PROJECT AND RETURN TO CITY COUNCIL WITH A 
REPORT ON THE TRAFFIC FLOW SIX MONTHS TO ONE YEAR AFTER THE COMPLETION 
OF THE PROJECT.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
6.4 AUTHORIZATION TO PREPARE AND ISSUE A REQUEST FOR 

QUALIFICATIONS/PROPOSALS (RFQ/P) TO PREPARE CIVIL ENGINEERING 
DRAWINGS, CONDUCT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW AND PREPARE AN 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW DOCUMENT FOR THE PALM AVENUE MIXED USE 
AND COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR MASTER PLAN.  (0620-20 & 0720-55) 

 
CITY MANAGER HALL introduced the item. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE gave a brief history on the project.  He noted that the 
project will be incorporated into the FY14 CIP and he showed a PowerPoint presentation on the 
Palm Avenue Mixed Use and Commercial Corridor Master Plan. 
 
MOTION BY BRAGG, SECOND BY PATTON, TO AUTHORIZE THE PREPARATION AND 
ISSUANCE OF A REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION AND PROPOSALS TO SELECT 
PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE SCOPE OF 
WORK FOR THE PALM AVENUE MIXED USE AND COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR MASTER 
PLAN.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS (7) 
None. 
 
ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR (IF ANY) 
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Janney adjourned the meeting at 7:48 p.m. 
 

      
James C. Janney, Mayor 

 
 
      
Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 



























































Initials: _______         Initials: ______    
 

1 

EXHIBIT “A”  
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
This agreement is made by and between Utility Cost Management LLC ("UCM") and the entity signing below ("Client") as 
follows: 
 
1. Applicable to Client’s Utility Accounts.  Unless otherwise stated in an addendum initialed by both parties, this 

Agreement will apply to all telecommunications (including voice, data, cellular, long distance, VOIP), water, sewer, 
garbage, gas and electricity accounts (and any related utility user taxes, other taxes, assessments, surcharges or fees) with 
respect to which Client:  
(a) is receiving utility service as of the Effective Date (as defined below),  
(b) has received utility service within three years prior to the Effective Date,  
(c) receives utility service within one year after the Effective Date, or 
(d) has permitted or authorized UCM to obtain a copy of the utility bill. 
The telecommunications, water, sewer, garbage, gas and electric accounts described in this paragraph are hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “Utility Accounts”.  The “Effective Date”, as that term is used above, is the first day of the 
calendar month after both UCM and Client have signed this Agreement.  
 

2. Client to Provide Utility Bills.  On or promptly after Client’s execution of this Agreement, Client will provide UCM 
with a copy of at least one month’s utility bills for all of Client’s Utility Accounts.  

 
3. UCM Authorized to Obtain Information on Utility Accounts.  UCM is hereby authorized to obtain and review 

information relating to the Utility Accounts.  If site visits are necessary, UCM will first obtain proper authorization. 
 
4. UCM’s Findings Letter.  UCM will use its best efforts to identify the basis for any refunds, credits or Future Savings (as 

defined below) on Client’s Utility Accounts.  UCM will send one or more a “Findings Letters” to Client that generally 
sets forth the basis for any refunds, credits or Future Savings identified by UCM.  UCM may, from time to time, 
supplement or amend the Findings Letter. 

 
5. Steps to Obtain Refunds or Savings.  UCM is authorized by Client to take steps to obtain the refunds, credits or Future 

Savings identified in the Findings Letter.  Such steps may include, but are not limited to, communicating, negotiating and 
dealing with utility providers (or, in the case of utility user taxes or other governmental charges, the appropriate 
government entity), and seeking relief from the California Public Utilities Commission in a complaint proceeding or other 
proceeding. 

 
6. Cooperation By Client.  Client will cooperate with UCM, as reasonable, in UCM’s efforts to carry out the purposes and 

intent of this Agreement.  Such cooperation will include, but not be limited to, providing information upon request by 
UCM concerning Client’s utility expenditures, utility service and operations. 

 
7. UCM’s Compensation.  
 

UCM’s compensation will consist of the amounts set forth in both (a) and (b) below. 
 

(a) Refunds or Credits.  If Client receives a refund or credit that was identified in the Findings Letter, then Client will 
pay to UCM 50% of the amount refunded or credited.  The amount of the refund or credit for this purpose will 
include all amounts refunded or credited (including any portion attributable to interest) for any overcharges that were 
incurred by Client prior to the date that the overcharges no longer appeared on the Client’s utility bill.  Payment of 
UCM’s 50% compensation is due within 30 days of the date UCM mails an invoice to Client.  

 
(b) Future Savings.  If Client obtains Future Savings that were identified in the Findings Letter, then Client will pay 

UCM 50% of such Future Savings that accrue during a Three-Year Savings Period. “Future Savings” is the amount 
by which Client's charges on its Utility Accounts are reduced as a result of a change in the billing rate, calculation, 
method or procedure.  Future Savings will be calculated as the difference between the amount Client was billed on 
its Utility Accounts during the Three-Year Savings Period, and the amount that it would have been billed on its 
Utility Accounts during the Three-Year Savings Period if there had been no change in its billing rate, calculation, 
method or procedure.  The Three-Year Savings Period begins on the date that the change in the billing rate, 
calculation, method or procedure is first reflected on Client’s utility bill, and ends three years thereafter.  UCM will 



Initials: _______         Initials: ______    
 

2 

submit invoices periodically to Client for payment based on the Future Savings as they accrue.  The invoices will 
verify (a) that Future Savings have actually been realized by Client, and (b) the amount of such Future Savings.  
Payment of UCM’s invoices is due within 30 days of the date the invoices are mailed to Client.  The compensation 
under this subparagraph will not include compensation for Future Savings that are  the result of a reduction in the 
amount of utility usage by Client. 

 
(c) Client’s Prior Knowledge of Basis For Refund, Credit, or Future Savings.  Client is not obligated to pay UCM 

pursuant to this paragraph for any refund, credit or Future Savings received by Client for which Client had submitted 
to the utility provider a written claim prior to the date of UCM’s Findings Letter.   
 

(d) Notwithstanding any other terms in this Exhibit A, UCM shall not be entitled to any refund, credit or Future Savings 
received by or due to Client for which Client would have otherwise received or been due without the services of 
UCM (the “Excluded Future Savings”).  Excluded Future Savings include, but are not limited to, overpayments by 
the City on any Utility Accounts discovered by any party other than UCM. 
 
 

8. Subcontract of Telecommunications Audit.  UCM may engage an outside firm (the “Subcontractor”) to perform some 
or all of the following: obtain and review Client’s telecommunications accounts (Paragraph 3), identify the basis for any 
refunds, credits or Future Savings on such telecommunications accounts (Paragraph 4), and take steps to obtain the 
refunds, credits or Future Savings on such telecommunications accounts that are identified in the Findings Letter 
(Paragraph 5).  Payment of the Subcontractor’s compensation, if any, will be the sole responsibility of UCM, and not 
Client.  Client hereby acknowledges and consents to UCM’s engagement of a Subcontractor as described herein.  
 
 

9. If Client Is Not Utility Customer.  By providing a copy of any utility bill to UCM, Client is thereby agreeing that the 
Utility Account represented by such bill will be governed by this Agreement, regardless of whether or not Client is the 
Utility Customer with respect to such Utility Account.  For purposes of this Agreement, the Utility Customer is the entity 
that (i) is named on the Utility Account as reflected by the utility bill, (ii) receives the utility service on the Utility 
Account, (iii) pays for or is liable for the charges on the Utility Account, or (iv) is the owner of the property at which the 
utility service is provided on the Utility Account.  If Client is not the Utility Customer for a Utility Account then, with 
respect to that Utility Account, Client represents that it is signing this Agreement in its capacity as agent for the Utility 
Customer, and as such is authorized to legally bind the Utility Customer to the terms of this Agreement.  Client further 
agrees that the terms of this Agreement will be equally binding on both Client and Customer, that all references in this 
Agreement to “Client” will also be deemed to be references to the Utility Customer, and that Client and the Utility 
Customer will be jointly and severally liable for payment of UCM’s compensation under this Agreement. 

 
 
10. No Legal Services. Client acknowledges and understands that: (1) Only an attorney can provide legal services or advice, 

(2) UCM is not an attorney or law firm, and does not and will not provide legal services or advice, (3) UCM does not and 
will not act as an attorney for Client or any other person, (4) Nothing in this Agreement, and no act, omission or 
statement by UCM, or its owners or employees, will be construed to create an attorney-client relationship between UCM 
and Client or any other person, (5) UCM is not subject to the California Rules of Professional Conduct, which govern the 
conduct of attorneys, and (6) Client should consult an attorney if it wishes to receive legal services or advice.   

 
11. Disclosure of Information.  UCM may obtain information that pertains to Client’s business, operations, or affairs, 

including but not limited to its utility charges and utility usage.  Client expressly authorizes UCM to use and disclose 
such information to others as necessary or convenient to carry out the services contemplated by this Agreement.    

 
12. Release of Claims Against UCM. Client acknowledges and agrees that UCM has made no express or implied 

representation or warranty that it will be successful in identifying or obtaining any refunds, credits, or Future Savings on 
Client’s Utility Accounts. Client hereby covenants not to bring any action for damages against UCM that is based upon or 
relates to any failure by UCM to identify or obtain refunds, credits, or Future Savings to which Client was or is entitled.  

 
13. Representations Made By Client.  It may become necessary for Client to make certain representations to the utility 

provider or other entity in order obtain refunds, credits or Future Savings identified by UCM in its Findings Letter.  
Client hereby warrants that any such representations made by Client will be true and correct in all respects. 

  



Initials: _______         Initials: ______    
 

3 

14. Late Payment Penalty.  If payment of any invoice is not received by UCM within 30 days of the date the invoice was 
mailed, then interest on the amount owing will accrue, beginning on the 31st day after the invoice was mailed to Client, at 
the rate of 1% per month (prorated on a daily basis).  In addition, if any payment is not received by UCM within 60 days 
of the date the invoice was mailed to Client, then a fee equal to 5% of the amount owing (including any accrued interest) 
will be imposed on the 61st day after the invoice was mailed.  Interest will continue to accrue at 1% per month (prorated 
on a daily basis) on the entire amount due until paid in full.   

































































































Original Signature on File





































































 
 
 

Item No. 6.3 
 

No Item 
 

 



















Original Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File

Original Signature on File



Original Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on 
File Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on File

Original Signature on File







Original Signature 
on File Original Signature on File



Original Signature 
on File Original Signature on File



Original Signature on 
File Original Signature on File



Original Signature 
on File Original Signature on File



Original Signature 
on File

Original Signature on File



Original Signature 
on File Original Signature on File



Original Signature 
on File Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on File Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature 
on File

Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on 
File Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on File

Original Signature on File



Original Signature 
on File Original Signature on File



Original Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File



Original Signature 
on File Original Signature on File



Original Signature 
on File

Original Signature on File



Original 
Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File



Original Signature on 
File

Original Signature on File







































Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-7382 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL 
BEACH APPROVING THE ISSUANCE BY THE IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF TAX 
ALLOCATION REFUNDING BONDS RELATING TO THE PALM 
AVENUE/COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 
 
 
WHEREAS, to provide funds to finance and refinance redevelopment activities of 

the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency (the "Original Agency"), the Imperial Beach 
Financing Authority (the “Authority”), a joint powers authority created by and among the 
Original Agency and the City of Imperial Beach (the “City”), issued its $22,765,000 
original amount of Tax Allocation Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series A (Palm 
Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project) (the "2003 Authority Bonds") pursuant to 
an Indenture of Trust, dated as of November 1, 2003 (the "2003 Indenture"), by and 
between the Original Agency and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as Trustee (the "Trustee") 
and loaned the proceeds to the Original Agency pursuant to two Loan Agreements (the 
“2003 Loan Agreements”) for the purpose of financing programs, projects and activities 
relating to the Original Agency's Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project (the 
"Redevelopment Project"); and 

 
WHEREAS, by implementation of California Assembly Bill No. X1 26 signed by 

the Governor of the State of California on June 28, 2011 (“AB 26”), which amended 
provisions of the California Community Redevelopment Law (found at California Health 
and Safety Code Section 33000, et.seq., herein, the "Redevelopment Law") and added 
Part 1.8 and Part 1.85 to Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code, and due 
to the California Supreme Court’s decision in California Redevelopment Association v. 
Matosantos, the Original Agency was dissolved on February 1, 2012 in accordance with 
AB 26; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City adopted Resolution No. 2012-7136 on 

January 5, 2012, pursuant to Part 1.85 of AB 26, electing for the City to serve as the 
successor agency to the Original Agency upon the dissolution of the Original Agency 
under AB 26 (the “Successor Agency”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency, in accordance with 

and pursuant to AB 26 and by operation of law, assumed the duties and obligations set 
forth in AB 26 for the Original Agency, including, without limitation, the obligations of the 
Original Agency under the 2003 Loan Agreements, the Series 2010 Indenture 
(described below) and related documents to which the Original Agency was a party; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 15, 2012, the Board of Directors of the Successor 

Agency, adopted Resolution No. SA-12-01 naming itself the “Imperial Beach 
Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency,” the sole name by which it will exercise its 
powers and fulfill its duties pursuant to Part 1.85 of AB 26, and establishing itself as a 
separate legal entity with rules and regulations that will apply to the governance and 
operations of the Successor Agency; and 

 



Resolution No. 2013-7382 
Page 2 of 2 

 2 

WHEREAS, AB 26 was amended by California Assembly Bill No. 1484, which 
was signed by the Governor of the State of California on June 27, 2012 (“AB 1484”), 
(AB 26 and AB 1484 are referred to collectively herein as the “Dissolution Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 1484, among other things, amended the California Health and 

Safety Code to authorize the Successor Agency to issue bonds pursuant to Article 11 
(commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the 
California Government Code (the “Refunding Law”) for the purpose of achieving debt 
service savings; and 

 
WHEREAS, to provide funds, among other purposes, to achieve debt service 

savings by prepaying the 2003 Loan Agreements and, thereby, refunding the 2003 
Authority Bonds, the Successor Agency has authorized the issuance pursuant to the 
Refunding Law of its Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Palm 
Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 
2013; (the “Bonds”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirements of the Redevelopment Law at 

Section 33640 of the California Health and Safety Code, the City Council wishes at this 
time to approve the issuance of the Bonds by the Successor Agency. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The issuance of the Bonds by the Successor Agency for the 

purposes of refinancing programs, projects and activities of the Successor Agency 
relating to the Redevelopment Project is hereby approved. 

 
Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 

Imperial Beach at its meeting held on the ____ day of ________________ 2013, by the 
following roll call vote: 

 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBER:  
NOES:  COUNCIL MEMBER:  
ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBER:  
 
            

JAMES C. JANNEY, MAYOR 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

      
JACQUELINE M. HALD, MMC 
CITY CLERK 

 



Attachment 2 

 
RESOLUTION NO. FA-13-04 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE IMPERIAL 
BEACH FINANCING AUTHORITY APPROVING REFUNDING INSTRUCTIONS 
IN CONNECTION WITH TAX ALLOCATION BONDS RELATING TO THE 
PALM AVENUE/COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AND 
AUTHORIZING OFFICIAL ACTIONS AND EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS 
RELATED THERETO 
 
WHEREAS, to provide funds to finance and refinance redevelopment activities of the 

Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency (the "Original Agency"), the Imperial Beach Financing 
Authority (the “Authority”), a joint powers authority created by and among the Original Agency 
and the City of Imperial Beach (the “City”), issued its $22,765,000 original amount of Tax 
Allocation Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series A (Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project) 
(the "2003 Authority Bonds") pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of November 1, 2003 
(the "2003 Indenture"), by and between the Original Agency and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as 
Trustee (the "Trustee") and loaned the proceeds to the Original Agency pursuant to two Loan 
Agreements (the “2003 Loan Agreements”) for the purpose of financing programs, projects and 
activities relating to the Original Agency's Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project 
(the "Redevelopment Project"); and 

 
WHEREAS, by implementation of California Assembly Bill No. X1 26 signed by the 

Governor of the State of California on June 28, 2011 (“AB 26”), which amended provisions of 
the California Community Redevelopment Law (found at California Health and Safety Code 
Section 33000, et.seq., herein, the "Redevelopment Law") and added Part 1.8 and Part 1.85 to 
Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code, and due to the California Supreme Court’s 
decision in California Redevelopment Association v. Matosantos, the Original Agency was 
dissolved on February 1, 2012 in accordance with AB 26; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City adopted Resolution No. 2012-7136 on January 

5, 2012, pursuant to Part 1.85 of AB 26, electing for the City to serve as the successor agency 
to the Original Agency upon the dissolution of the Original Agency under AB 26 (the “Successor 
Agency”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency, in accordance with and 

pursuant to AB 26 and by operation of law, assumed the duties and obligations set forth in AB 
26 for the Original Agency, including, without limitation, the obligations of the Original Agency 
under the 2003 Loan Agreements, the Series 2010 Indenture (described below) and related 
documents to which the Original Agency was a party; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 15, 2012, the Board of Directors of the Successor Agency, 

adopted Resolution No. SA-12-01 naming itself the “Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency 
Successor Agency,” the sole name by which it will exercise its powers and fulfill its duties 
pursuant to Part 1.85 of AB 26, and establishing itself as a separate legal entity with rules and 
regulations that will apply to the governance and operations of the Successor Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 26 was amended by California Assembly Bill No. 1484, which was 

signed by the Governor of the State of California on June 27, 2012 (“AB 1484”), (AB 26 and AB 
1484 are referred to collectively herein as the “Dissolution Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 1484, among other things, amended the California Health and Safety 

Code to authorize the Successor Agency to issue bonds pursuant to Article 11 (commencing 
with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government 
Code (the “Refunding Law”) for the purpose of achieving debt service savings; and 



Resolution No. FA-13-04 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
WHEREAS, to provide funds, among other purposes, to achieve debt service savings by 

prepaying the 2003 Loan Agreements and, thereby, refunding the 2003 Authority Bonds, the 
Successor Agency has authorized the issuance pursuant to the Refunding Law of its Imperial 
Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment 
Project Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013; (the “Bonds”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority desires to direct the Trustee to create an irrevocable escrow 

for the purpose of providing for the prepayment of the 2003 Loan Agreements and the refunding 
of the 2003 Authority Bonds, pursuant to Irrevocable Refunding Instructions, the form of which is 
on file with the Secretary and is referred to herein as the “Refunding Instructions”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority (the “Board”), with the aid of its staff, 

has reviewed the Refunding Instructions and desires to approve the Refunding Instructions and 
the transactions to be implemented thereby. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Imperial Beach Financing Authority, as 

follows: 
  
Section 1.  The Refunding Instructions, in substantially the form on file with the 

Secretary of the Authority (the “Secretary”) is hereby approved and adopted.  The Chairperson, 
the Executive Director, and the Treasurer of the Authority (each, an "Authorized Officer"), are 
hereby authorized to execute the Refunding Instructions in substantially the form presented to 
the Board and filed with the Secretary, with such revisions, amendments and completions as 
may be approved by an Authorized Officer, with the advice of Bond Counsel, such approval to 
be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. 

 
Section 2.  The Chairperson, the Executive Director, the Treasurer, the Secretary, the 

General Counsel of the Authority, and any and all other officers of the Authority are hereby 
authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to do any and all 
things and take any and all actions necessary or desirable in connection with the prepayment of 
the 2003 Loan Agreements and the refunding of the 2003 Authority Bonds in implementation of 
the transactions as described herein. 

 
Section 3.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
  
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Imperial Beach 

Financing Authority at its meeting held on the ____ day of ________________ 2013, by the 
following roll call vote: 

 
AYES:  BOARD MEMBER:  
NOES:  BOARD MEMBER:  
ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBER:  

     
      
JAMES C. JANNEY 
CHAIRPERSON 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
JACQUELINE M. HALD, MMC 

 SECRETARY 



Attachment 3 

RESOLUTION NO. SA-13-27 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND PRESCRIBING 
THE TERMS, CONDITIONS AND FORM OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY PALM 
AVENUE/COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT TAX ALLOCATION 
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013; APPROVING THE FORM OF AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL 
INDENTURE OF TRUST AND A BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT; APPROVING 
THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE DISTRIBUTION OF A PRELIMINARY 
OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 
AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT; APPROVING THE RETENTION OF AN 
UNDERWRITER; AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF COSTS OF ISSUANCE; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING NECESSARY ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency (the "Original Agency") is 
obligated to pay the original amount of $22,765,000 under two Loan Agreements (the “2003 
Loan Agreements”) entered into in 2003 in connection with the issuance by the Imperial Beach 
Financing Authority, a joint powers authority created by and among the Original Agency and the 
City of Imperial Beach (the “City”), of its $22,765,000 original amount of Tax Allocation Revenue 
Bonds, 2003 Series A (Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project) (the “Authority 
Bonds”) for the purpose of financing programs, projects and activities relating to the Original 
Agency's Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project; payments due on the loan 
obligations are payable primarily from tax increment revenues derived from the Original 
Agency's Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project (the “Redevelopment Project”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, by implementation of California Assembly Bill No. X1 26 signed by the 

Governor of the State of California on June 28, 2011 (“AB 26”), which amended provisions of 
the California Community Redevelopment Law (found at California Health and Safety Code 
Section 33000, et seq., herein, the "Redevelopment Law") and added Part 1.8 and Part 1.85 to 
Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code, and due to the California Supreme Court’s 
decision in California Redevelopment Association v. Matosantos, the Original Agency was 
dissolved on February 1, 2012 in accordance with AB 26; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City adopted Resolution No. 2012-7136 on January 

5, 2012, pursuant to Part 1.85 of AB 26, electing for the City to serve as the successor agency 
to the Original Agency upon the dissolution of the Original Agency under AB 26 (the “Successor 
Agency”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency, in accordance with and 

pursuant to AB 26 and by operation of law, assumed the duties and obligations set forth in AB 
26 for the Original Agency, including, without limitation, the obligations of the Original Agency 
under the 2003 Loan Agreements, the Series 2010 Indenture (described below) and related 
documents to which the Original Agency was a party; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 15, 2012, the Board of Directors of the Successor Agency, 

adopted Resolution No. SA-12-01 naming itself the “Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency 



Resolution No. SA-13-27 
Page 2 of 6 

 
Successor Agency,” the sole name by which it will exercise its powers and fulfill its duties 
pursuant to Part 1.85 of AB 26, and establishing itself as a separate legal entity with rules and 
regulations that will apply to the governance and operations of the Successor Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 26 was amended by California Assembly Bill No. 1484, which was 

signed by the Governor of the State of California on June 27, 2012 (“AB 1484”), (AB 26 and AB 
1484 are referred to collectively herein as the “Dissolution Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 1484, among other things, amended the California Health and Safety 

Code to authorize the Successor Agency to issue bonds pursuant to Article 11 (commencing 
with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government 
Code (the “Refunding Law”) for the purpose of achieving debt service savings; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Dissolution Act, at Section 34177.5 of the California Health and Safety 

Code, authorizes the Successor Agency to undertake proceedings for the refunding of 
outstanding bonds and other obligations of the Original Agency, subject to the conditions 
precedent contained in Section 34177.5 and the approval of the Successor Agency’s Oversight 
Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has determined that it is in the best financial 

interests of the Successor Agency to refund, at this time, the 2003 Loan Agreements; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 12, 2013, the Successor Agency’s Oversight Board adopted 

Resolution No. OB-13-18, directing the Successor Agency to commence the refinancing or 
refunding of the 2003 Loan Agreements and authorizing the Successor Agency to recover all 
costs associated with said bond refinancing or refunding.  The California Department of 
Finance (the “Department of Finance”) has approved Resolution No. OB-13-18; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Original Agency has issued its $21,595,000 aggregate principal amount 

of Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Bonds, 2010 Tax Allocation 
Bonds (the "Series 2010 Bonds") for the purpose of financing redevelopment activities with 
respect to the Redevelopment Project, pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of November 
1, 2010, by and between the Original Agency and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as Trustee (the 
"Series 2010 Indenture"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Successor Agency intends to refund the 2003 Loan Agreements by 

issuing an additional series of bonds designated as the "Imperial Beach Redevelopment 
Agency Successor Agency Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013" (as further described below, the “Bonds”) under and pursuant 
to the Refunding Law, the Redevelopment Law, the Dissolution Act, the Series 2010 Indenture, 
and the Constitution and other applicable laws of the State of California, and under, pursuant to 
and subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 34177.5 of the California Health and 
Safety Code, and such Bonds will be issued on parity with the Series 2010 Bonds, under and 
pursuant to the provisions of the Series 2010 Indenture. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency 

Successor Agency, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Conditions Precedent.  Except as provided in Section 16 below, and 

provided that the issuance of the Bonds shall meet and be limited by the requirements of 
Section 34177.5(a) of the California Health and Safety Code, all conditions, things and acts 



Resolution No. SA-13-27 
Page 3 of 6 

 
required by law to exist, to happen and to be performed precedent to and in connection with the 
issuance by the Successor Agency of the Bonds exist, have happened and been performed in 
due time, form and manner, in accordance with applicable law, and the Successor Agency is 
now authorized pursuant to the Refunding Law at Article 11 (commencing with Section 53580) 
of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code, in accordance 
with the Dissolution Act at Section 34177.5 of the California Health and Safety Code, to issue 
the Bonds in the manner and form provided in this Resolution. 

 
Section 2. First Supplemental Indenture.  The First Supplemental Indenture of Trust 

(the “First Supplement”), between the Successor Agency and the Trustee, in substantially the 
form on file with the Secretary of the Successor Agency (the “Secretary”), is hereby approved 
and adopted.  The Executive Director of the Successor Agency (the “Executive Director”) or the 
Finance Officer of the Successor Agency (each an "Authorized Officer"), each acting alone, or 
the designee of either, is hereby authorized, and directed to execute and the Secretary is 
hereby authorized to attest to, the First Supplement in substantially the form presented to the 
Successor Agency Board of Directors (the “Board”) and on file with the Secretary, with such 
changes, additions, amendments or modifications (including but not limited to changes, 
additions, amendments or modifications necessary to obtain ratings on the Bonds, or a 
municipal bond insurance commitment or reserve fund surety bond for the Bonds) that are 
approved by an Authorized Officer, in consultation with legal counsel to the Successor Agency 
(“Counsel”), as being in the interest of the Successor Agency, such approval to be conclusively 
evidenced by said execution. The Successor Agency hereby agrees to comply with, or cause to 
be complied with, all covenants of the Successor Agency set forth in the Series 2010 Indenture 
and the First Supplement. 

 
Section 3. Issuance of Bonds.  The Board of the Successor Agency hereby authorizes 

the issuance of the Bonds, which shall be designated the "Imperial Beach Redevelopment 
Agency Successor Agency Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013" in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of the amount 
required to defease the 2003 Loan Agreements, to establish customary debt service reserves, 
and to pay related costs of issuance of the Bonds, provided that the total interest cost to 
maturity on the Bonds plus the principal amount of the Bonds shall not exceed the total 
remaining interest cost to maturity on the 2003 Loan Agreements plus the remaining principal of 
the 2003 Loan Agreements as required by Section 34177.5(a) of the California Health and 
Safety Code.  

 
Section 4. Form of Bonds.  The form of the Bonds, in substantially the form attached 

to the First Supplement, is hereby approved and adopted.  Each Authorized Officer, acting 
alone, is hereby authorized and directed to approve and to execute the Bonds by manual or 
facsimile signature, and the Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to attest, by manual or 
facsimile signature, such signature on the Bonds, with such changes, additions, amendments 
or modifications made in accordance with Section 10 hereof. 

 
Section 5. Bond Purchase Agreement.  The Bonds shall be offered for purchase by 

an underwriter firm to be designated by an Authorized Officer, in consultation with the 
Successor Agency's financial advisor, pursuant to a request for proposal process, according to 
the terms set forth in a Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement"), by and between the 
Successor Agency and the underwriter, substantially in the form submitted to the Board at this 
meeting and on file with the Secretary.  Such form Purchase Agreement is hereby approved, 
and an Authorized Officer, or the designee of either, is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute and deliver said Purchase Agreement with such changes therein as the Authorized 
Officer may approve, in consultation with Counsel, such approval to be conclusively evidenced 



Resolution No. SA-13-27 
Page 4 of 6 

 
by the execution and delivery of such Purchase Agreement, provided that the aggregate 
principal amount of Bonds to be issued shall not exceed the amount described in Section 3 
hereof, and the underwriters' discount (excluding original issue discount, if any) shall not 
exceed one percent (1.0%).   

 
Section 6. Appointment of Depositories and Other Agents.  The Authorized Officers, 

each acting alone, or the designee of either, is hereby authorized and directed to appoint from 
time to time one or more depositories for the Bonds, as they may deem desirable.  The 
Authorized Officers, each acting alone, or the designee of either, is hereby also authorized and 
directed to appoint from time to time one or more agents, as he/she may deem necessary or 
desirable.  To the extent permitted by applicable law, and under the supervision of an 
Authorized Officer, such agents may serve as paying agent, trustee or registrar for the Bonds, 
or financial printer or may assist the Authorized Officer in performing any or all of such functions 
and other duties as the Authorized Officer shall determine.  Such agents shall serve under such 
terms and conditions, as an Authorized Officer shall determine.  An Authorized Officer may 
remove or replace agents appointed pursuant to this Section at any time. 

 
Section 7. Official Statement.  The form of proposed preliminary official statement (the 

"Preliminary Official Statement"), in substantially the form presented to the Board and on file 
with the Secretary, is hereby approved and adopted with such changes, additions, amendments 
or modifications as may be made in accordance with Section 10 hereof.  The Authorized 
Officers, acting alone, are each hereby authorized to cause the distribution of the Preliminary 
Official Statement for the Bonds, deemed final by the Board for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the Authorized Officers are each separately 
authorized to execute a certificate to that effect.  The Authorized Officers are each separately 
authorized and directed to sign a final Official Statement for the Bonds.  The Authorized 
Officers are each hereby authorized and directed to cause to be printed and mailed to 
prospective purchasers of the Bonds copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and the final 
Official Statement. 

 
Section 8. Payment of Costs of Issuance.  The Finance Officer is hereby authorized 

and directed to pay, or cause to be paid on behalf of the Successor Agency, the costs of 
issuance associated with the Bonds and incurred in connection with the refunding of the 2003 
Loan Agreements, as approved by the Successor Agency’s Oversight Board and the 
Department of Finance pursuant to and in accordance with the Dissolution Act. 

 
Section 9. Savings Parameters Confirmation.  Prior to the delivery of the Bonds to 

the Underwriter, staff of the Successor Agency shall cause independent certified public 
accountant(s), as the verification agent with respect to the refunding proceedings, to confirm 
that the debt service savings as a result of the refunding of the 2003 Loan Agreements and, 
thereby, the refunding of the Authority Bonds will achieve debt service savings within the 
parameters set forth in Section 34177.5(a) of the California Health and Safety Code will be met, 
and if not met the issuance of the Bonds shall not proceed. 

 
Section 10. Modification to Documents.  Any Successor Agency official authorized by 

this Resolution to execute any document is hereby further authorized, in consultation with the 
Authorized Officers and Counsel, to approve and make such changes, additions, amendments 
or modifications to the document or documents that the Successor Agency official is authorized 
to execute, as may be necessary or advisable (provided that such changes, additions, 
amendments or modification shall not cause the issuance of bonds to fail to meet the 
requirements of Section 34177.5 of the California Health and Safety Code).  The approval of 



Resolution No. SA-13-27 
Page 5 of 6 

 
any change, addition, amendment or modification to any of the aforementioned documents 
shall be evidenced conclusively by the execution and delivery of the document in question. 

 
Section 11. Oversight Board Approval of the Issuance of the Bonds.  The 

Successor Agency hereby requests the Oversight Board to approve, by Resolution, the 
issuance of the Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Resolution and the Series 2010 
Indenture, as proposed to be supplemented by the First Supplement (collectively, the 
“Indenture”). 

 
Section 12. Determinations by the Oversight Board.  The Successor Agency hereby 

requests that the Oversight Board make the following determinations, by Resolution, upon 
which the Successor Agency will rely in its issuance of the Bonds: 

 
(a) As provided in Resolution No. OB-13-18, the Successor Agency is authorized, as 

provided in Section 34177.5(f) of the California Health and Safety Code, to recover its costs 
related to the issuance of the Bonds from the proceeds of the Bonds, including the cost of 
reimbursing the Successor Agency and City for administrative staff time spent with respect to 
the authorization, issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds; 

 
(b) The application of proceeds of the Bonds by the Successor Agency to the 

refunding of the 2003 Loan Agreements, as well as the payment by the Successor Agency of 
costs of issuance of the Bonds, as provided in the Indenture and authorized by Sections 
34177.5(a) and (f) of the California Health and Safety Code, shall be implemented by the 
Successor Agency promptly upon delivery of the Bonds to the Underwriter, notwithstanding 
Section 34177.3 of the California Health and Safety Code or any other provision of law to the 
contrary, and without any further approval of the Oversight Board, or approval of the 
Department of Finance, the San Diego County Auditor-Controller or any other person or entity 
other than the Successor Agency; 

 
(c) The Successor Agency shall enter the amounts of the final debt service 

determined upon sale and delivery of the Bonds into Exhibit B–Debt Service Schedule attached 
to the First Supplement and the amounts so entered shall be final and conclusive upon the 
Oversight Board, the Department of Finance and all other interested persons and entities and 
the Debt Service Schedule shall not be amended except as provided in the Indenture; and 

 
(d) The Successor Agency shall be entitled to receive its full allocation of the 

Administrative Cost Allowance under Sections 34171(b) and 34183(a)(3) of the California 
Health and Safety Code, at an amount of not less than $250,000 per fiscal year, without any 
deductions with respect to continuing costs related to the Bonds, such as trustee’s fees, 
auditing fees and fiscal consultant fees and continuing disclosure and rating agency costs 
(collectively, “Continuing Costs of Issuance”), and such Continuing Costs of Issuance shall be 
enforceable obligations payable from property tax revenues pursuant to Sections 34171(d)(1) 
and 34183(a)(2) of the California Health and Safety Code. 

 
Section 13. Filing of this Resolution.  The Secretary of the Successor Agency is 

hereby authorized and directed to file an executed copy of this Resolution with the Oversight 
Board and, as provided in Section 34180(j) of the California Health and Safety Code, 
concurrently with the San Diego County Administrative Officer, the San Diego County Auditor-
Controller and the Department of Finance. 

 



Resolution No. SA-13-27 
Page 6 of 6 

 
Section 14. Ratification.  All actions heretofore taken by the officials, employees and 

agents of the Successor Agency with respect to the sale and issuance of the Bonds are hereby 
approved, confirmed and ratified. 

 
Section 15. General Authority.  The Authorized Officers, the Secretary or each such 

person's duly authorized designee and agent, and any other officials of the Successor Agency 
and their duly authorized designee and agents are hereby authorized and directed, for and in 
the name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, to do any and all things and take any and all 
actions and execute and deliver any and all certificates, agreements and other documents 
including, but not limited to, a Continuing Disclosure Certificate, refunding instructions or 
escrow agreements required to be executed in connection with the refunding of the Series 2003 
Bonds, and a letter of representation to any depository for the Bonds, and petition for a final 
and conclusive determination from the Department of Finance pursuant to Section 34177.5(i) of 
the California Health and Safety Code, which they, or any of them, may deem necessary or 
advisable in order to consummate the lawful issuance and delivery of the Bonds, and to 
effectuate the purposes thereof and of the documents herein approved in accordance with this 
Resolution. 

 
The Authorized Officers may designate in writing one or more persons to perform any 

act, which such persons are hereby authorized by this Resolution to perform. 
 
Section 16. Effect.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage; 

provided, however, that the Successor Agency will not execute and deliver the documents 
approved hereby or issue the Bonds until such execution, delivery and issuance has been 
approved by the Successor Agency’s Oversight Board, and until either the Oversight Board 
action is deemed effective pursuant to the Dissolution Act or such Oversight Board action has 
been approved by the Department of Finance if review of the Oversight Board action is 
requested by the Department of Finance in accordance with the Dissolution Act. 

 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Imperial Beach 
Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency at its meeting held on the ______ day of 
________________ 2013, by the following vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS:  
NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS:   
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  

 
 

      
JAMES C. JANNEY 
CHAIRPERSON 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
JACQUELINE M. HALD, MMC 
SECRETARY 

 



Contacts

Mike Kremer Phillip Curls

Senior Vice President

1620 26th Street, Suite 230-S

Santa Monica, CA 90404

p

Assistant Vice President

1620 26th Street, Suite 230-S

Santa Monica, CA 90404

310.401.8052

michael.kremer@firstsw.com

310.401.8053

phillip.curls@firstsw.com

Refinancing of Series 2003A Ta Allocation Bonds

August 21, 2013 Imperial Beach Redevelopment Successor Agency

Refinancing of Series 2003A Tax Allocation Bonds

ATTACHMENT 4



 Original Issue: $22 765 million issued on Dec

Tax Allocation Bonds, Series 2003A

 Original Issue: $22.765 million issued on Dec. 
11, 2003

 Outstanding Principal: $17.965 million with 
annual maturities on June 1 2014 2033annual maturities on June 1, 2014 - 2033

 Outstanding Interest Rates: 5.00% - 6.00%

 Use of Proceeds: Finance capital Use of Proceeds: Finance capital  
improvements in the Palm  Avenue/ 
Commercial Redevelopment Area and 
affordable housing projects

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I

 Security: 100% of net tax increment revenues 
(parity lien with 2010 Bonds) and 25% of 
housing set-aside revenues

M
P

E
R

I
A

L
B

E

 Optional Redemption: On or after 12/1/2013

 S&P Rating: 2003A Bonds are not rated but 
parity 2010 Bonds are rated “A” (stable 

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

H

p y (
outlook)

1

ATTACHMENT 4



Bond Buyer Revenue Bond Index – 25 Year History through August 18, 2013
 The RBI serves as aThe RBI serves as a 

rough proxy for the 
Successor Agency’s 
tax-exempt cost of 
funds

9.00

Bond Buyer Revenue Index
25 Year History

funds

 The Bond Buyer 
Revenue Bond Index 
(“RBI”) is the average 
i ld f h 30

6.00

7.00

8.00 Current: 5.18%

yield for the 30-year 
maturity of 25 different 
revenue bond issues. 
The 25 bonds in the 
RBI i d h

4.00

5.00

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I

RBI index have an 
average credit rating 
of “A+”

 25 Year RBI Statistics 1.00

2.00

3.00

M
P

E
R

I
A

L
B

E

25 Year RBI Statistics
‒ Current Rate: 5.18%
‒ Average Rate: 5.72%
‒ Highest Rate: 8.31%

0.00

19
89

19
90

19
91

19
92

19
93

19
94

19
95

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

H

2

‒ Lowest Rate: 4.06%

ATTACHMENT 4



Since May 2013, the BB RBI has increased by 0.99%

6.00

Bond Buyer Revenue Index
Dec 2012 - Aug 2013

Current: 5.18%

5 00

5.50

Current: 5.18%

4.50

5.00

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I3.50

4.00

M
P

E
R

I
A

L
B

E

3.00
Dec 2012 Jan 2013 Feb 2013 Mar 2013 Apr 2013 May 2013 Jun 2013 Jul 2013 Aug 2013

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

H

3

ATTACHMENT 4



Coupon Rates of 2003A TABs vs. Current Refunding Yields (8/20/13)

7 000%
 The outstanding 

coupons of the Series 
2003A TABs are still 
higher than August 

6.000%

7.000%

20, 2013 market 
yields for the 
Refunding Bonds, 
creating the 4.000%

5.000%

opportunity for 
refunding savings

 Projected interest 
rates for the 2 000%

3.000%

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I

rates for the 
Refunding Bonds 
have increased 
markedly since May 
2013

1.000%

2.000%

M
P

E
R

I
A

L
B

E

2013
0.000%

2003A TABs Coupons Projected Yield as of 7/8/13

Projected Yield as of 6/17/13 Projected Yield as of 7/31/13

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

H

4

Projected Yield as of 6/17/13 Projected Yield as of 7/31/13

Projected Yield as of 8/20/13 Projected Yield as of 5/6/13

ATTACHMENT 4



Refinancing of 2003A TABs – Comparison of Past Refunding Analysis

Projected Refunding Savings At Last Market Updates
(Approx. Equal Annual Savings Scenario)

Interest Rates 
as of

May 6,
2013

June 17,
2013

July 8,
2013

July 31, 
2013

August 20, 
2013

NPV Savings ($) $4 032 052 $2 788 703 $1 898 815 $1 678 118 $1 415 147NPV Savings ($) $4,032,052 $2,788,703 $1,898,815 $1,678,118 $1,415,147

NPV Savings (%) 22.44% 15.52% 10.57% 9.34% 7.88%

Avg. Annual 
Savings $295,000 $217,000 $154,000 $137,000 $170,000*

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I

Savings
All-in Cost 3.37% 4.02% 4.60% 4.73% 4.89%

* Average annual savings increase due to reduced size of parity debt service reserve M
P

E
R

I
A

L
B

E

 Average annual savings increase due to reduced size of parity debt service reserve 
fund contribution

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

H

5

ATTACHMENT 4



Refinancing of 2003A TABs – Assumptions and Projected Results

Refunding AssumptionsRefunding Assumptions
Credit Ratings S&P: A

Interest Rates as of August 20, 2013

Refunded Par $17 965 000Refunded Par $17,965,000

Refunded Maturities 2014 – 2033  

DSRF Parity Reserve

Call Features January 2014 @ 100%Call Features January 2014 @ 100%

Projected Refunding Results
Approximately Equal Annual 

Savings through FY 2033
3-yr Upfront Savings 

Through FY 2016

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I

Total
City’s Share 

(26.47%) Total
City’s Share 

(26.47%)

Avg. Annual Savings $170,000
(FY2014-33)

$45,000
(FY2014-33)

$733,000 
(FY2014-16)

$194,000
(FY2014-16) M

P
E

R
I

A
L

B
E

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Gross Savings $3,408,571 $902,249 $2,309,405 $611,299

NPV Savings ($) $1,415,147 $374,589 $1,345,029 $356,029

NPV Savings (%) 7.88% 7.49%

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

HAll-in-Cost 4.89% 4.94%

6

ATTACHMENT 4



Debt Service Comparison: Approx. Equal Annual Savings & Upfront Savings
Approx. Equal Annual Savings 3-yr Upfront Savings

$1 50

$2.00

lli
on

s

Series 2003A TABs Debt Service vs. 
Projected Series 2013 Refunding TABs

Series 2003A TABs Projected Series 2013 Refunding TABs

$1 50

$2.00

lli
on

s

Series 2003A TABs Debt Service vs. 
Projected Series 2013 Refunding TABs

Series 2003A TABs Projected Series 2013 Refunding TABs

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50M
i

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50M
i

$0.00

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

Fiscal Year

Debt Service SavingsDebt Service Savings

$0.00

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

Fiscal Year

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

Debt Service Savings

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

Debt Service Savings

M
P

E
R

I
A

L
B

E

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

H

7

$0

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

Fiscal Year

$0

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

Fiscal Year

ATTACHMENT 4



Refinancing of 2003A TABs: 5-yr & 10-yr Upfront Savings

Projected Refunding Results
5 yr Upfront Savings 10 yr Upfront Savings5-yr Upfront Savings 
(Through FY 2018)

10-yr Upfront Savings 
(Through FY 2023)

Total
City’s Share 

(26.47 %) Total
City’s Share 

(26.47 %)
$ $ $ $Avg. Annual Savings $455,000

(FY2014-18)
$120,000

(FY2014-18)
$255,000 

(FY2014-23)
$66,000

(FY2014-23)

Gross Savings $2,351,488 $622,439 $2,591,190 $673,709

NPV Savings ($) $1,298,938 $343,829 $1,279,023 $332,546

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I

g ( ) , , , , , ,

NPV Savings (%) 7.23% 7.12%

All-in-Cost 4.97% 4.98%

M
P

E
R

I
A

L
B

E

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

H

8

ATTACHMENT 4



Debt Service Comparison: 5-yr & 10-yr Upfront Savings
5-yr Upfront Savings 10-yr Upfront Savings

$1 50

$2.00

lli
on

s

Series 2003A TABs Debt Service vs. 
Projected Series 2013 Refunding TABs

Series 2003A TABs Projected Series 2013 Refunding TABs

$1 50

$2.00

lli
on

s

Series 2003A TABs Debt Service vs. 
Projected Series 2013 Refunding TABs

Series 2003A TABs Projected Series 2013 Refunding TABs

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50M
i

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50M
i

$0.00

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

Fiscal Year

Debt Service Savings

$0.00

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

Fiscal Year

Debt Service Savings

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

Debt Service Savings

$500,000
$600,000
$700,000
$800,000

Debt Service Savings

M
P

E
R

I
A

L
B

E

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$0
$100,000
$200,000
$300,000
$400,000

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

H

9

$0

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

Fiscal Year

$0

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

Fiscal Year

ATTACHMENT 4



Financing Schedule

W k f Fi i A ti it JUNE 2013 JULY 2013Week of Financing Activity
June 3 Successor Agency (SA) initiates transaction (June 5)

June 10 Oversight Board (OB) initiates transaction (June 12)
June 17 Kick-off conference call with working group (June 18)
July 8 Working group conference call

JUNE 2013 JULY 2013
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 1 2 3 4 5 6
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31July 8 Working group conference call

July 22 First distribution of Fiscal Consultant’s Report & bond documents
July 29 First distribution of POS; Working group conference call
Aug. 5 Distribute Underwriter RFP
Aug.12 Second distribution of Fiscal Consultant’s Report, bond documents & POS

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31
30

AUGUST 2013 SEPTEMBER 2013
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

Aug.19 Working group conference call

Aug. 26 Financing Package provided to SA for  September 4 Meeting; Underwriter 
RFP Responses Due

Sept. 2 SA authorize the issuance of the Refunding Bonds (Sept. 4); Financing 
Package provided to OB for September 11 Meeting
UW S l t d SA th i th i f th R f di B d (S t

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30

OCTOBER 2013 NOVEMBER 2013
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I

Sept. 9 UW Selected; SA authorize the issuance of the Refunding Bonds (Sept. 
11); Submit Financing Package to DOF for approval

Sept. 16 Distribute credit packages to S&P

Oct. 14 Receive S&P Rating
Oct. 21 Distribute credit packages to Bond Insurers

1 2 3 4 5 1 2
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

d M
P

E
R

I
A

L
B

E

Nov. 11 Deadline for DOF to approve OB action or  return item to OB for 
reconsideration (Nov. 12)

Nov. 18 Distribute POS

Dec. 2 Pricing of Refunding Bonds
Dec. 16 Closing of transaction (2003A Bonds legally defeased)

DECEMBER 2013
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

= Anticipated City 
Council/Successor 
Agency meeting

= Anticipated Oversight 
Board meeting

= City Hall closed

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

H

Dec. 16 Closing of transaction (2003A Bonds legally defeased)

10

29 30 31 = City Hall  closed

ATTACHMENT 4



Di l i Thi d t i i t d d f i f d ti l d i f ti l l d d t tit t l l i t t d i i it ffDisclaimer: This data is intended for issuers for educational and informational purposes only and does not constitute legal or investment advice, nor is it an offer or a
solicitation of an offer to buy or sell any investment or other specific product. Information provided in this data was obtained from sources that are believed to be reliable;
however, it is not guaranteed to be correct, complete, or current, and is not intended to imply or establish standards of care applicable to any attorney or advisor in any
particular circumstances. The statements within constitute First Southwest Company views as of the date of the report and are subject to change without notice. This
data represents historical information only and is not an indication of future performance.

C
I

T
Y

O
F

I
M

P
E

R
I

A
L

B
E

© 2013 First Southwest Company. 
Member FINRA/SIPC. All rights 
reserved.

A
C

H

ATTACHMENT 4



Jones Hall Draft 8/28/13 
 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED _________, 2013   
 

NEW ISSUE Rating:  Standard & Poor’s:  “___” 
FULL BOOK ENTRY See “RATING” herein 

 
In the opinion of Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, San Francisco, California, Bond Counsel, subject, however to certain 

qualifications described in this Official Statement, under existing law, the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes and such interest is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on 
individuals and corporations, although for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain corporations, such 
interest is taken into account in determining certain income and earnings.  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, such interest is exempt from 
California personal income taxes.  See “TAX MATTERS.”   

 
$_____________* 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

 (Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project) 
2013 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: June 1, as shown inside front cover 
Purpose of the Bonds.  The above-captioned bonds (the “Bonds” or "Series 2013 Bonds") are being issued by the Imperial Beach 

Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency (the “Successor Agency”), as successor agency to the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency 
(the “Original Agency”), to prepay two loan agreements entered into in 2003 by the Original Agency in connection with the issuance by the 
Imperial Beach Financing Authority of its $22,765,000 original amount of Tax Allocation Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series A (Palm 
Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project)  (the “Prior Bonds”). 

Book-Entry. The Bonds will be delivered as fully registered bonds, registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository 
Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), and will be available to ultimate purchasers (“Beneficial Owners”) in the denomination of 
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, under the book-entry system maintained by DTC. Beneficial Owners will not be entitled to receive 
delivery of bonds representing their ownership interest in the Bonds. Principal of, premium if any, and semiannual interest on the Bonds due 
December 1 and June 1 of each year, commencing _______ 1, 201___, will be payable by Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as 
Trustee, to DTC for subsequent disbursement to DTC participants, so long as DTC or its nominee remains the registered owner of the Bonds 
(see “THE BONDS—Book-Entry System”). See “THE BONDS.” 

Redemption. The Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory redemption prior to maturity as described herein.  
Security for the Bonds. The Bonds are payable from and secured by the Tax Revenues (as defined in this Official Statement), on a 

parity basis with bonds issued in 2010, to be derived from the Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project (the “Project Area”) and 
moneys in certain funds and accounts established under an Indenture of Trust, dated as of November 1, 2010, by and between the Original 
Agency and the Trustee, as supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated _______ 1, 2013 (together, the "Indenture") as 
further described in this Official Statement. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS.” 

The Successor Agency will increase the amount in a parity debt service reserve account for the Bonds and the 2010 Bonds in connection 
with the pricing of the Bonds. The Successor Agency agrees in the Indenture to maintain the Reserve Account in an amount equal to the 
“Reserve Requirement,” as defined in the Indenture. 

Parity Bonds. The Bonds are secured by and payable from Tax Revenues on a parity basis with the Original Agency’s $21,595,000 
aggregate principal amount of Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Bonds, 2010 Tax Allocation Bonds, currently 
outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $21,465,000. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS- Additional Debt.” 

Limited Obligations. The Bonds are special obligations of the Successor Agency and are secured by an irrevocable pledge of, and are 
payable as to principal, interest and premium, if any, from Tax Revenues and other funds described in this Official Statement. The Bonds, 
interest and premium, if any, thereon are not a debt of the City of Imperial Beach (the “City”), the County of San Diego (the “County”), the 
State of California (the “State”) or any of their political subdivisions except the Successor Agency, and none of the City, the County, the State 
nor any of their political subdivisions except the Successor Agency is liable thereon. The Bonds, interest thereon and premium, if any, are not 
payable out of any funds or properties other than those set forth in the Indenture. Neither the members of the Successor Agency, the 
Oversight Board, the County Board of Supervisors nor any persons executing the Bonds are liable personally on the Bonds. 
   

MATURITY SCHEDULE 
(see inside cover) 

   
 

This cover page contains information for quick reference only. It is not intended to be a summary of all factors relating to an 
investment in the Bonds. Investors should review the entire Official Statement before making any investment decision with respect 
to the Bonds. 

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued, subject to the approval as to their legality by Jones Hall, a Professional Law Corporation, 
San Francisco, California, Bond Counsel, and subject to certain other conditions. Jones Hall is also serving as Disclosure Counsel.  Certain 
matters will also be passed upon for the Successor Agency by Kane, Ballmer & Berkman, San Diego, California, as Successor Agency 
Special Counsel.  It is anticipated that the Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC on or about _____, 2013.  

 
[UNDERWRITER LOGO] 

Dated:  ______________, 2013 
 
* Preliminary, subject to change.  

ATTACHMENT 5



 
MATURITY SCHEDULE 

 
 
 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project 
2013 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 

 
(Base CUSIP†: _______________) 

 
 
 

$___________ 
 
 
 

Maturity 
(June 1) 

Principal 
 Amount 

Interest  
Rate 

 
Yield 

CUSIP † 

(              ) 
       
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
$__________   ______% Term Bonds due June 1, ______; Yield: ____%; CUSIP†:  ____ 

 
 

   
† Copyright 2013, American Bankers Association.  CUSIP data herein are provided by Standard & Poor's CUSIP Service Bureau, a division of 
The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., and are provided for convenience of reference only.  Neither the Successor Agency nor the Underwriter 
assumes any responsibility for the accuracy of these CUSIP data. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 

No Offering May Be Made Except by this Official Statement.  No dealer, broker, salesperson or 
other person has been authorized by the Successor Agency to give any information or to make any 
representations with respect to the Bonds other than as contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or 
made, such other information or representation must not be relied upon as having been given or authorized by 
the Successor Agency or the Underwriter. 

 
Use of Official Statement.  This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the 

Bonds described herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.  This 
Official Statement does not constitute a contract between any Bondowner and the Successor Agency or the 
Underwriter. 

 
Preparation of this Official Statement.  The information contained in this Official Statement has been 

obtained from sources that are believed to be reliable, but this information is not guaranteed as to accuracy or 
completeness.  The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement:  
The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its 
responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this 
transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

 
Estimates and Forecasts.  When used in this Official Statement and in any continuing disclosure 

made by the Successor Agency, the words or phrases "will likely result," "are expected to," "will continue," "is 
anticipated," "estimate," "project," "forecast," "expect," "intend" and similar expressions identify "forward looking 
statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  Such statements are 
subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated in 
such forward-looking statements.  Any forecast is subject to such uncertainties.  Inevitably, some assumptions 
used to develop the forecasts will not be realized and unanticipated events and circumstances may occur.  
Therefore, there are likely to be differences between forecasts and actual results, and those differences may be 
material.  

 
This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information and expressions of opinion 

contained in this Official Statement are subject to change without notice.  Neither the delivery of this Official 
Statement nor any sale of the Bonds will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been 
no change in the affairs of the Successor Agency or the other parties described in this Official Statement, since 
the date of this Official Statement. 

 
Document Summaries.  All summaries of the Indenture or other documents contained in this Official 

Statement are made subject to the provisions of such documents and do not purport to be complete statements 
of any or all such provisions.  All references in this Official Statement to the Indenture and such other 
documents are qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents, which are on file with the Successor 
Agency.   

 
No Unlawful Offers or Solicitations.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a 

solicitation of an offer to buy in any state in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the 
person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make 
such offer or solicitation.   

 
No Registration with the SEC.  The issuance and sale of the Bonds have not been registered under 

the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, both as amended, in reliance upon 
exemptions provided thereunder by Sections 3(a)(2) and 3(a)(12), respectively, for the issuance and sale of 
municipal securities. 

 
Public Offering Prices. The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers and dealer 

banks and banks acting as agent at prices lower than the public offering prices stated on the inside cover page 
of this Official Statement, and the Underwriter may change those public offering prices from time to time. 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 Page Page 
 

INTRODUCTION ........................................................ 2	  
General .................................................................. 2	  
The City and the Successor Agency ...................... 3	  
The Project Area .................................................... 4	  
The Bonds .............................................................. 4	  
Tax Allocation Financing ........................................ 5	  
Security for the Bonds ............................................ 5	  
Limited Obligation .................................................. 7	  
Reserve Account .................................................... 7	  
Bondowners’ Risks ................................................. 7	  
Continuing Disclosure ............................................ 7	  
Tax Matters ............................................................ 8	  
Professionals Involved in the Offering .................... 8	  
Summaries of Documents ...................................... 8	  
Other Information ................................................... 8	  

REFUNDING PLAN .................................................... 9	  
The Refunding ........................................................ 9	  
Estimated Sources and Uses ............................... 10	  
Debt Service Schedules ....................................... 11	  

THE BONDS ............................................................. 13	  
Authority for Issuance .......................................... 13	  
Description ........................................................... 13	  
Redemption .......................................................... 14	  
General Redemption Provisions .......................... 15	  
Discontinuance of Book-Entry System ................. 16	  

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS ................................. 16	  
Discontinuance of Book-Entry System ................. 17	  
Discontinuance of Book-Entry System ................. 17	  
Pledge of Tax Revenues ...................................... 20	  
Reserve Account .................................................. 23	  
Additional Debt ..................................................... 23	  
Limited Obligation ................................................ 24	  
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules ........ 24	  
Statement of IndebtednessError! Bookmark not defined.	  

THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY .................................. 27	  
THE PROJECT AREA .............................................. 27	  

Fiscal Consultant .................................................. 27	  
Map of the Project Area ....................................... 27	  
The Redevelopment Plan ..................................... 29	  
The Project Area .................................................. 29	  
Assessed Valuation .............................................. 30	  
Distribution of Taxes ............................................ 31	  
Major Property Owners ........................................ 34	  
Appeals of Assessed Values ................................ 34	  

Low and Moderate Income Housing ..................... 37	  
Senate Bill 1045 ................................................... 38	  
Senate Bill 1096 ................................................... 38	  
Statutory Tax Sharing ........................................... 38	  
Bonded Indebtedness .......................................... 39	  

PROJECTED TAX REVENUES AND DEBT 
SERVICE COVERAGE ........................................ 41	  

BONDOWNERS’ RISKS ........................................... 47	  
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule .......... 47	  
Syncora Litigation – Challenge to Dissolution 

Act .................................................................... 48	  
Reduction in Taxable Value ................................. 50	  
Reduction in Inflationary Rate .............................. 50	  
Levy and Collection .............................................. 51	  
State Budget Issues ............................................. 51	  
Natural Disasters .................................................. 52	  
Hazardous Substances ........................................ 52	  
Bankruptcy Risks .................................................. 52	  
Secondary Market ................................................ 53	  
No Acceleration on Default ................................... 53	  

LIMITATIONS ON TAX REVENUES ........................ 54	  
Property Tax Limitations—Article XIIIA ................ 54	  
Challenges to Article XIIIA .................................... 55	  
Implementing Legislation ...................................... 55	  
Unitary Property ................................................... 56	  
Property Tax Collection Procedures ..................... 57	  
Appropriations Limitations—Article XIIIB .............. 58	  
Exclusion of Tax Revenues for General 

Obligation Bonds Debt Service ........................ 58	  
Proposition 218 .................................................... 59	  
AB 1290 ................................................................ 59	  
SB211 ..................... Error! Bookmark not defined.	  
Future Initiatives and Legislation .......................... 59	  
Low and Moderate Income Housing ..................... 59	  

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS ................................... 60	  
Legal Opinions ..................................................... 60	  
Enforceability of Remedies ................................... 60	  

RATING .................................................................... 61	  
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE ................................... 61	  
ABSENCE OF LITIGATION ...................................... 61	  
TAX MATTERS ......................................................... 62	  
UNDERWRITING ..................................................... 63	  
MISCELLANEOUS ................................................... 63	  

 
APPENDIX A: AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

ENDING JUNE 30, 2012 
APPENDIX B: FISCAL CONSULTANT’S REPORT 
APPENDIX C: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE CITY AND SAN DIEGO COUNTY 
APPENDIX D: SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 
APPENDIX E: FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION 
APPENDIX F: FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
APPENDIX G: DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM 
APPENDIX H: DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE APPROVAL LETTER 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



   
 

 

 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
 (San Diego County, California) 

 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

James C. Janney, Chair 
Lorie Bragg, Vice Chair 

Brian P. Bilbray, Director 
Robert Patton, Director 

Edward J. Spriggs, Director 
 
 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY OFFICIALS 
 

Andy Hall, Successor Agency Executive Director 
Gregory Wade, Successor Agency Deputy Director 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

Trustee 
Wells Fargo Bank National Association 

Los Angeles, California 
 

Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel 
Jones Hall, a Professional Law Corporation 

San Francisco, California 
 

Successor Agency Counsel 
Kane, Ballmer & Berkman 

San Diego, California 
 

Fiscal Consultant 
Fraser & Associates 
Roseville, California 

 
Financial Advisor 

First Southwest Company 
Santa Monica, California 

 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-2- 

__________________________________ 
 

 
$________________* 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project 
2013 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 

 
 

This Official Statement, including the cover page and appendices hereto, is provided to 
furnish information in connection with the sale by the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency 
Successor Agency (the “Successor Agency”), as successor in interest to the Imperial Beach 
Redevelopment Agency (the “Original Agency”), of its Palm Avenue/Commercial 
Redevelopment Project, 2013 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (the “Bonds”). 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
 This Introduction contains a brief summary of certain information contained in this 

Official Statement; such summaries do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive and are not 
intended to be complete and are qualified by the more detailed information contained elsewhere 
in this Official Statement.  References to the Bonds are qualified in their entirety by reference to 
the form of the Bonds included in the Indenture. Copies of the Indenture and other documents 
described in this Official Statement may be obtained from the Successor Agency as described 
under the subheading “Other Information” below.  Definitions of certain terms used in this 
Official Statement are set forth in “APPENDIX D – Summary of Certain Provisions of the 
Indenture.” 

 
General 

 
The Bonds are issued according to the terms set forth in the Indenture of Trust, dated as 

of November 1, 2010 (the "Series 2010 Indenture"), by and between the Original Agency and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (the “Trustee”), as supplemented by a First 
Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated _______ 1, 2013 (the "First Supplemental Indenture" 
and together with the Series 2010 Indenture, the "Indenture"), and in accordance with Article 11 
(commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the 
Government Code (the "Refunding Law"), Parts 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and 
1.85 (commencing with Section 34170) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code enacted by 
Assembly Bill X1 26 (“AB X1 26”), as amended on June 27, 2012 by Assembly Bill No. 1484 
(“AB 1484”), enacted as Chapter 26, Statutes of 2012 (AB  X1 26 and AB 1484 are collectively 
referred to herein as the “Dissolution Act”), and the Constitution and other applicable laws of 
the State of California (the “State”).  The issuance of the Bonds was approved by Resolution 
No. _______ adopted by the Successor Agency on _______, 2013 (the “Resolution”), and by 
Resolution No.  _______ adopted by the Oversight Board for the Issuer on _______, 2013 (the 
“Oversight Board Resolution”).   See “THE BONDS – Authority for Issuance.” 
 
*  Preliminary, subject to change. 

 
Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to prepay two loan agreements 

entered into in 2003 by the Original Agency in connection with the issuance by the Imperial 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-3- 

Beach Financing Authority (the "Authority") of its $22,765,000 original amount of Tax Allocation 
Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series A (Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project)  (the “2003 
Bonds”) to finance redevelopment projects. 

 
The City and the Successor Agency 

 
The City. The City of Imperial Beach (the “City”), the most southwesterly city in the 

continental United States, is located in San Diego County (the “County”).  The City was 
incorporated in 1956, and now contains approximately 4.5 square miles in total area.  The City 
population was estimated to be 26,496 as of January 1, 2013.  For certain information with 
respect to the City, see Appendix C   “GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE CITY AND SAN 
DIEGO COUNTY.”  

 
The Original Agency. The Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency (the “Original 

Agency”) was a redevelopment agency with all of the powers vested in such organizations 
under provisions of the Community Redevelopment Law of the State of California, constituting 
Part 1 of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code of the State (the "Redevelopment Law").  
The City Council of the City was the governing board of the Original Agency.  

 
Dissolution Act.  On June 29, 2011, AB X1 26 was enacted together with a companion 

bill, Assembly Bill No. X1 27 (“AB X1 27”) as part of the 2011 State Budget Act.  The provisions 
of AB X1 26 provided for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies.  The provisions of AB 
X1 27 permitted redevelopment agencies to avoid such dissolution by the payment of certain 
amounts.  A lawsuit was brought in the California Supreme Court, California Redevelopment 
Association, et al., v. Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal. 4th 231 (Cal. Dec. 29, 2011), challenging the 
constitutionality of AB X1 26 and AB X1 27.  The California Supreme Court largely upheld AB 
X1 26, invalidated AB X1 27, and held that AB X1 26 may be severed from AB X1 27 and 
enforced independently.  As a result of AB X1 26 and the decision of the California Supreme 
Court in the California Redevelopment Association case, as of February 1, 2012, all 
redevelopment agencies in the State were dissolved, including the Original Agency, and 
successor agencies were designated as successor entities to the former redevelopment 
agencies to expeditiously wind down the affairs of the former redevelopment agencies.   

 
The primary provisions enacted by AB X1 26 relating to the dissolution and wind down of 

former redevelopment agency affairs are Parts 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and 1.85 
(commencing with Section 34170) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code of the State, as 
amended on June 27, 2012 by AB 1484, enacted as Chapter 26, Statutes of 2012 (AB X1 26 
and AB 1484 are herein referred to as the “Dissolution Act”). 

 
As a consequence of the Matosantos decision all redevelopment agencies, in the State, 

including the Original Agency, dissolved by operation of law on February 1, 2012.  All property 
tax revenues that would have been allocated to redevelopment agencies are now allocated to 
the applicable redevelopment property tax trust fund created by the county auditor-controller for 
the “successor agency.”  Such funds are to be used for payments on indebtedness and other 
“enforceable obligations” (as defined in the Dissolution Act), and to pay certain administrative 
costs and any amounts in excess of that amount are to be considered property taxes that will be 
distributed to taxing agencies. In addition, under the Dissolution Act tax increment is no longer 
deemed to flow directly to the successor agency.  Further, the Dissolution Act is interpreted to 
no longer require successor agencies to deposit a portion of the tax increment into a low and 
moderate income housing fund. Rather, all funds are considered property taxes. 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-4- 

Successor Agency. Pursuant to Section 34173 of the Dissolution Act, on January 5, 
2012, the City Council of the City of Imperial Beach adopted Resolution No. 2012-7136 electing 
for the City to serve as the successor agency to the Original Agency.  Subdivision (g) of Section 
34173 of the Dissolution Act, added by AB 1484, expressly affirms that the Successor Agency is 
a separate public entity and legal entity from the City, that the two entities shall not merge, and 
that the liabilities of the Original Agency will not be transferred to the City nor will the assets of 
the Original Agency become assets of the City.  The Dissolution Act also requires an oversight 
board for each successor agency to be established, and pursuant thereto the Successor 
Agency duly established the Oversight Board of the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency 
Successor Agency (the “Oversight Board”) pursuant to California Health and Safety Code 
Section 34179(a).  Under the Dissolution Act, many actions of the Successor Agency, including 
issuance of the Bonds, are subject to approval by the Oversight Board, and many actions of the 
Oversight Board are subject to review or approval by the State of California Department of 
Finance (the “Department of Finance”).   

   
The Project Area 

 
The Redevelopment Plan for the Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project (the 

“Project Area”) was originally adopted on February 7, 1996 by Ordinance No. 96-901.  The 
Project Area was amended in July 2001 by Ordinance No. 01-970 to add territory (referred to as 
the Amendment Area).  In December 2006, the Redevelopment Plan was again amended 
pursuant to Ordinance 2006-1050. That amendment: 1) clarified that there is one bonded 
indebtedness limit for the Project Area of $120 million; 2) that tax increment from the combined 
Project Area could be used to repay debt; and, 3) to extend certain time limits as allowed by the 
Redevelopment Law.  A final amendment to the Redevelopment Plan was completed in March 
2008 by Ordinance No. 2008-1066 that extended the time to acquire property through eminent 
domain in the Original Area by 12 years. See “THE PROJECT AREA” herein. 

 
The Bonds 
 

The Bonds will be issued in denominations of $5,000 each or integral multiples thereof. 
Interest on the Bonds will be payable semi-annually on each June 1 and December 1, 
commencing ____________. Principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable by the Trustee 
to DTC which will be responsible for remitting such principal and interest to the Participants 
which will in turn be responsible for remitting such principal and interest to the beneficial owners 
of the Bonds. No physical distribution of the Bonds will be made to the public initially. See “THE 
BONDS - Book-Entry System” herein. 

 
The Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory redemption prior to maturity as 

described herein.  See “THE BONDS - Redemption” herein. 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-5- 

Tax Allocation Financing 
 
Prior to the enactment of AB X1 26, the Redevelopment Law authorized the financing of 

redevelopment projects through the use of tax increment revenues. This method provided that 
the taxable valuation of the property within a redevelopment project area on the property tax roll 
last equalized prior to the effective date of the ordinance which adopts the redevelopment plan 
becomes the base year valuation.  Assuming the taxable valuation never drops below the base 
year level, the taxing agencies receiving property taxes thereafter received only that portion of 
the taxes produced by applying then current tax rates to the base year valuation, and the 
redevelopment agency was allocated the remaining portion of property taxes produced by 
applying then current tax rates to the increase in valuation over the base year.  Such 
incremental tax revenues allocated to a redevelopment agency were authorized to be pledged 
to the payment of redevelopment agency obligations.   

 
Under the Dissolution Act tax increment is no longer deemed to flow directly to the 

successor agency.  Further, the Dissolution Act is interpreted to no longer require successor 
agencies to deposit a portion of the tax increment into a low and moderate income housing 
fund. Rather, all funds are considered property taxes. Successor agencies have no power to 
levy property taxes and must rely on the allocation of taxes as described under the 
Redevelopment Law and Dissolution Act.  See “RISK FACTORS.” 

 
The Dissolution Act authorizes the issuance of refunding bonds, including the Bonds, to 

be secured by a pledge of, and lien on, Tax Revenues created by the Indenture, but subject to 
the provisions of the Dissolution Act which modify the composition and flow of Tax Revenues as 
described in the Series 2010 Indenture.  The Bonds are further secured by a pledge and lien 
created by Section 34177.5(g) of the Dissolution Act on monies deposited from time to time in a 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (described herein) held by a county auditor-controller 
with respect to the Successor Agency, which are equivalent to the tax increment revenues that 
were formerly allocated under the Redevelopment Law to the redevelopment agency and 
formerly authorized under the Redevelopment Law to be used for the financing of 
redevelopment projects. DISCUSSIONS HEREIN REGARDING TAX INCREMENT 
REVENUES NOW REFER TO THOSE MONEYS DEPOSITED BY THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
INTO THE REDEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX TRUST FUND. See “SECURITY FOR THE 
BONDS.” 

 
Security for the Bonds 

 
Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, the Bonds shall have the same lien priority as the 

pledge of the 2003 Loan Agreements for payment of the Prior Bonds and shall be valid, binding 
and enforceable in accordance with their terms.  Additionally, the pledge and lien securing the 
Bonds is a parity pledge with the Original Agency’s 2010 Bonds, described herein, provided 
however, that payments to taxing entities under Tax Sharing Statutes (described herein) have 
been subordinated to the obligation to pay the 2010 Bonds but have not been subordinated with 
respect to the Bonds.   

 
Section 33177.5(g) of the Dissolution Act provides that bonds authorized thereunder to 

be issued by a successor agency are secured by a pledge of, and lien on, and will be repaid 
from moneys deposited from time to time in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, and 
that property tax revenues pledged to any bonds authorized under the Dissolution Act are taxes 
allocated to the agency pursuant to the provisions of the Redevelopment Law and the State 
Constitution which provided for the allocation of tax increment revenues under the 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-6- 

Redevelopment Law. Moneys deposited into the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 
include funds formerly required to be deposited into a former redevelopment agency’s Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Fund, however the Successor Agency makes no assurance as to the 
availability of the former housing moneys to pay principal or interest on the Bonds under the 
Dissolution Act. See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Pledge of Tax Revenues." Investors 
should assume that the Bonds are secured by and payable solely from the Tax Revenues and 
moneys in the Special Fund, as described herein.    

 
The Dissolution Act requires the San Diego County Auditor-Controller (the “County 

Auditor-Controller”) to determine the amount of property taxes that would have been allocated 
to the Original Agency from the Project Area had the Original Agency not been dissolved 
pursuant to the operation of AB X1 26, using current assessed values on the last equalized roll 
on August 20, and to deposit that amount in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for 
semi-annual transfer to the Successor Agency of an amount sufficient to pay the Successor 
Agency's enforceable obligations shown on a semi-annually prepared Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule submitted by the Successor Agency to the Oversight Board and the 
Department of Finance for approval.  Upon approval and transfer, such transfer to the 
Successor Agency is required to be deposited in a Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund 
(the “Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund”) established and held by the Successor 
Agency pursuant to Section 34170.5(a) of the Dissolution Act, from which moneys for the 
payment of the Successor Agency's enforceable obligations are derived. See “SECURITY FOR 
THE BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules.” 

 
The Dissolution Act provides that any bonds authorized thereunder to be issued by the 

Successor Agency will be considered indebtedness incurred by the dissolved Original Agency, 
with the same lien priority and legal effect as if the bonds had been issued prior to effective date 
of AB X1 26, in full conformity with the applicable provisions of the Redevelopment Law that 
existed prior to that date, and are to be included on the Successor Agency’s Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedules.   

 
In 2010, the Original Agency issued its $21,595,000 aggregate principal amount of Palm 

Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Bonds, 2010 Tax Allocation Bonds, 
currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $21,465,000 (the “2010 Bonds”). 
The Bonds are secured by and payable from Tax Revenues described herein, on a parity basis 
with the 2010 Bonds, provided however, that payments to taxing entities under Tax Sharing 
Statutes (described herein) have been subordinated to the obligation to pay the 2010 Bonds but 
have not been subordinated with respect to payment of the Bonds.  See "SECURITY FOR THE 
BONDS - Pledge of Tax Revenues." 

 
Tax Revenues are defined in the Indenture using pre-Dissolution Act terminology, but 

remain moneys to be derived from the Project Area as described herein, all of the moneys in the 
Special Fund (established under the Indenture) and now held as a subaccount of the 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, and all of the moneys in the Debt Service Fund 
(including the Interest Account, the Principal Account, the Reserve Account, and the 
Redemption Account therein) established and held by the Trustee under the Indenture, all as 
more fully set forth in the Indenture. Taxes levied on the property within the Project Area on that 
portion of the taxable valuation over and above the taxable valuation of the applicable base year 
property tax roll with respect to the various territories within the Project Area, to the extent they 
constitute Tax Revenues, as described herein and now subject to the Dissolution Act, will be 
deposited in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for transfer by the County Auditor-
Controller to the Successor Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund on January 2 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-7- 

and June 1 of each year to the extent required for payments listed in the Successor Agency’s 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule in accordance with the requirements of the 
Dissolution Act.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS”   

 
Limited Obligation 

 
The Bonds are special obligations of the Successor Agency and are secured by an 

irrevocable pledge of, and are payable as to principal, interest and premium, if any, on a parity 
basis with the 2010 Bonds from Tax Revenues and other funds.  The Bonds, interest and 
premium, if any, thereon are not a debt of the City, the County, the State or any of their political 
subdivisions except the Successor Agency, and none of the City, the County, the State nor any 
of their political subdivisions except the Successor Agency are liable thereon. The Bonds, 
interest thereon and premium, if any, are not payable out of any funds or properties other than 
those set forth in the Indenture. No member of the Successor Agency, the Oversight Board, the 
County Board of Supervisors or any person executing the Bonds is liable personally on the 
Bonds by reason of their issuance.  
 
Reserve Account 

 
The Successor Agency will increase the amount in a Reserve Account established for 

the 2010 Bonds to an amount equal to the “Reserve Requirement,” as defined in the Indenture 
for the combined Bonds and 2010 Bonds, and the Reserve Account will be available for the 
benefit of the Bonds and the 2010 Bonds on a parity basis. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS-
Debt Service Reserve Account.” 

 
Bondowners’ Risks 

 
Prospective investors should review this Official Statement and the Appendices hereto in 

their entirety and should consider certain risk factors associated with the purchase of the Bonds, 
some of which have been summarized in the section herein entitled “BONDOWNERS’ RISKS” 
herein. 

 
Continuing Disclosure 

 
The Successor Agency will covenant, pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to 

be executed on the date of delivery of the Bonds, for the benefit of owners and beneficial 
owners of the Bonds, to provide certain financial information and operating data related to the 
Successor Agency by not later than nine months following the end of the Successor Agency’s 
Fiscal Year (the “Annual Report”), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain 
enumerated events. The Annual Report will be filed by the Successor Agency with the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. The specific nature of the information to be contained in the 
Annual Report and any notices of significant events is summarized below under the caption 
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” herein. A copy of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate is set 
forth in APPENDIX F — “FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE.” The 
covenants of the Successor Agency in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate have been made in 
order to assist the Underwriter in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12(b)(5). 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-8- 

Tax Matters 
 
Interest on Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. In the 

opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is exempt from California personal income 
taxes. See “TAX MATTERS.” 

 
Professionals Involved in the Offering 

 
The proceedings of the Successor Agency in connection with the issuance of the Bonds 

are subject to the approval as to their legality of Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, 
San Francisco, California, Bond Counsel. Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation is also 
serving as Disclosure Counsel to the Successor Agency for the Bonds. Kane, Ballmer & 
Berkman, San Diego, California is serving as special counsel to the Successor Agency. Wells 
Fargo Bank, National Association, Los Angeles, California, will act as the Trustee under the 
Indenture. Fraser & Associates, Roseville, California, serves as Fiscal Consultant to the 
Successor Agency (the “Fiscal Consultant”) in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  
First Southwest Company, Santa Monica, California is serving as Financial Advisor. The fees of 
Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel and the Trustee are contingent upon the sale and delivery of 
the Bonds. 

 
Summaries of Documents 

 
Brief descriptions of the Redevelopment Law, the Bond Law, the Dissolution Act, the 

Bonds, the Indenture, the Successor Agency, the Original Agency, the County and the City are 
included in this Official Statement.  Such descriptions and information do not purport to be 
comprehensive or definitive. All references herein to the Redevelopment Law, the Bond Law, 
the Dissolution Act, the Bonds, the Indenture, the Constitution and the laws of the State as well 
as the proceedings of the Original Agency, the Successor Agency, the County and the City are 
qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents and laws. References herein to the 
Bonds are qualified in their entirety by the form included in the Indenture and by the provisions 
of the Indenture.  

 
The Fiscal Consultant’s Report is contained in Appendix B. Selected information 

regarding the City and the County is included in Appendix C.  A summary of certain provisions 
of the Indenture is contained in Appendix D. The proposed form of Bond Counsel’s legal opinion 
for the Bonds is set forth in Appendix E. The proposed form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
is included in Appendix F.  

 
All capitalized terms used in this Official Statement and not normally capitalized have the 

meanings assigned to them in the Indenture, unless otherwise stated in this Official Statement.  
Definitions of certain terms used in this Official Statement are set forth in APPENDIX D – 
“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Indenture.”   

 
Other Information 

 
This Official Statement speaks only as of its date and the information contained herein is 

subject to change without notice. Copies of documents referred to herein are available from the 
Successor Agency upon written request to the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency 
Successor Agency, 825 Imperial Beach Boulevard, Imperial Beach, CA 91932, Attention: 
Deputy Director. The Successor Agency may impose a charge for copying, mailing and handling 
expenses related to any request for documents. 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-9- 

REFUNDING PLAN 
 

The Refunding 
 
The Original Agency is obligated to pay the original amount of $19,375,000 under two 

Loan Agreements (the “2003 Loan Agreements”) entered into in connection with the issuance 
by the Authority of its $22,765,000 original amount of Tax Allocation Revenue Bonds, 2003 
Series A (Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project) (the "2003 Authority Bonds") 
pursuant to an Indenture of Trust dated as of November 1, 2003 (the "2003 Indenture") by and 
between the Authority and the Trustee for the purpose of financing programs, projects and 
activities relating to the Original Agency's Project Area.   

 
Upon issuance of the Bonds, the Successor Agency will deliver the net proceeds of the 

Bonds to the Trustee, for deposit in an escrow subaccount (the “Escrow Subaccount”) 
pursuant to Irrevocable Refunding Instructions given to the Trustee. On ____________, 2013, 
the Trustee will redeem the 2003 Authority Bonds, at a price equal to the principal amount of the 
2003 Authority Bonds to be redeemed plus interest accrued to the redemption date, whereupon 
the obligations of the Authority for defeasance of the 2003 Authority Bonds will be met and the 
obligations of the Original Agency for payments due under the 2003 Loan Agreements will be 
satisfied. 

 
On ___________, 2013, following the payment and redemption described above and 

payment of any amounts then owed to the Trustee, the Trustee shall withdraw any amounts 
remaining on deposit in the Escrow Subaccount and transfer such amounts to the Debt Service 
Fund established under the Indenture to be used for the purpose of paying interest on the 
Bonds. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-10- 

Estimated Sources and Uses  
 
The anticipated sources and uses of funds from the sale of the Bonds and other 

available moneys are estimated to be applied as follows: 
 

TABLE 1 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
PALM AVENUE/COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

2013 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 
 

Sources of Funds  
Par Amount of Bonds  
Less: Net Discount  
Available From 2003 Bonds  
Available From Successor Agency  
 Total Sources  
  
Uses of Funds  
Deposit to Escrow Fund  
Deposit to Reserve Account (1)  
Deposit to Costs of Issuance Fund (2)  
 Total Uses  

    
(1) Represents the amount required to cause the balance in the Reserve Account to equal the full 

amount of the Reserve Requirement, calculated on a parity basis with the 2010 Bonds. 
(2) Includes fees of bond counsel, disclosure counsel, financial adviser, fiscal consultant, 

verification agent, trustee and rating agencies, printing costs and other closing costs. 
 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-11- 

Debt Service Schedules  
 

The following tables set forth (i) the scheduled annual debt service for the Bonds and (ii) 
the scheduled annual debt service for the 2010 Bonds. 

  
TABLE 2 

2013 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 
Debt Service Schedule 

 
 

Payment Date 
Bonds 

Principal 
Bonds 
Interest 

Total Bonds 
Debt Service 

June 1, 2014    
December 1, 2014    

June 1, 2015    
December 1, 2015    

June 1, 2016    
December 1, 2016    

June 1, 2017    
December 1, 2017    

June 1, 2018    
December 1, 2018    

June 1, 2019    
December 1, 2019    

June 1, 2020    
December 1, 2020    

June 1, 2021    
December 1, 2021    

June 1, 2022    
December 1, 2022    

June 1, 2023    
December 1, 2023    

June 1, 2024    
December 1, 2024    

June 1, 2025    
December 1, 2025    

June 1, 2026    
December 1, 2026    

June 1, 2027    
December 1, 2027    

June 1, 2028    
December 1, 2028    

June 1, 2029    
December 1, 2029    

June 1, 2030    
December 1, 2030    

June 1, 2031    
December 1, 2031    

June 1, 2032    
December 1, 2032    

June 1, 2033    
December 1, 2033    

June 1, 2034    
December 1, 2034    

June 1, 2035    
December 1, 2035    

June 1, 2036    
Total    

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-12- 

TABLE 3 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
PALM AVENUE/COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

All Parity Bonds 
Debt Service Schedule 

 
Bond 
Year 

Ending June 1 

2010 Bonds 
Annual Debt 

Service 

Bonds 
Annual Debt 

Service 

Total 
Parity 

Debt Service 
2014 $1,274,556.26   
2015 1,272,581.26   
2016 1,275,381.26   
2017 1,277,562.51   
2018 1,278,781.26   
2019 1,278,987.51   
2020 1,278,131.26   
2021 1,286,140.63   
2022 1,283,156.25   
2023 1,279,353.13   
2024 1,289,368.76   
2025 1,282,943.76   
2026 1,284,893.76   
2027 1,290,268.76   
2028 1,289,518.76   
2029 1,292,643.76   
2030 1,294,518.76   
2031 1,295,143.76   
2032 1,299,393.76   
2033 1,302,143.76   
2034 2,429,518.76   
2035 2,430,018.76   
2036 2,429,687.51   
2037 2,428,212.51   
2038 2,426,484.38   
2039 2,429,118.75   
2040 2,430,731.25   
Total $42,709,240.85   

 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-13- 

THE BONDS 
 
Authority for Issuance  

 
The Bonds were authorized for issuance pursuant to the Indenture, the Redevelopment 

Law, the Bond Law, and the Dissolution Act.  The issuance of the Bonds and the Indenture were 
authorized by the Successor Agency pursuant to a Resolution adopted on __________, 2013 
(the “Resolution”), and by the Oversight Board for the Successor Agency pursuant to a 
Resolution  adopted on ___________, 2013 (the “Oversight Board Resolution”). 

 
Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, written notice of the Oversight Board Resolution was 

provided to the Department of Finance, which requested a review of the Oversight Board 
Resolution. The Department of Finance provided a letter dated ________, 2013 to the 
Successor Agency stating that based on the Department of Finance’s review and application of 
the law, the Oversight Board Resolution approving the Bonds is approved by the Department of 
Finance.  See “APPENDIX H –Department of Finance Approval Letter.” 

 
Description 

 
The Bonds will be issued in book-entry form only, and will be initially issued and 

registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee for DTC.  Purchasers will not receive physical 
certificates representing their interest in the Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered 
form without coupons in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  The Bonds 
will be dated as of their date of delivery (the “Closing Date”) and mature on June 1 in the years 
and in the respective principal amounts and bear interest (calculated on the basis of a 360-day 
year comprised of twelve 30-day months) at the respective rates per annum, as set forth on the 
inside front cover. 

 
Interest on the Bonds accrues from the Closing Date and is payable semiannually on 

June 1 and December 1 of each year (each, an “Interest Payment Date”) commencing _______ 
1, 2014.   

 
Interest on the Bonds is payable from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date 

of authentication thereof unless: (i) a Bond is authenticated on or before an Interest Payment 
Date and after the close of business on the preceding Record Date, in which event it will bear 
interest from such Interest Payment Date; (ii) a Bond is authenticated on or before the first 
Record Date, in which event interest thereon will be payable from the Closing Date, or (iii) 
interest on any Bond is in default as of the date of authentication thereof, in which event interest 
thereon will be payable from the date to which interest has been paid in full, payable on each 
Interest Payment Date. 

 
Principal, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds are payable by the Trustee to DTC, 

which is obligated in turn to remit such amounts to DTC Participants for subsequent 
disbursement to Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  See APPENDIX G - “DTC and the Book-Entry 
System”. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-14- 

Redemption 
 
Optional Redemption.  The Bonds maturing on or before June 1, 20__ are not subject to 

redemption before their stated maturity. The Bonds maturing on or after June 1, 20__ are subject 
to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Successor Agency, in whole or in part among 
maturities on such basis as designated by the Successor Agency and by lot within a maturity, from 
any available source of funds, on June 1, 20__, and on any date thereafter, at a redemption price 
equal to the principal amount to be redeemed, without premium, plus accrued interest thereon to 
the date of redemption. 

 
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption.  Term Bonds maturing on June 1, 20__, and 

June 1, 20__, shall also be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to their respective 
stated maturities, in part, by lot, from mandatory sinking fund payments set aside in the Principal 
Account, in the following amounts and on the following dates, at the principal amount thereof, 
without premium: 

 
Term Bonds Maturing June 1, ______ 

 
Mandatory 

Redemption Date 
(June 1) 

 
Principal Amount 
To Be Redeemed 

  
  
  

 
 

Term Bonds Maturing June 1, ______ 
 

Sinking Account 
Redemption Date 

(June 1) 

 
Principal Amount 
To Be Redeemed 

  
  
  

 
Notwithstanding the above, if some but not all of the Term Bonds have been redeemed 

pursuant to optional redemption the total amount of all future sinking account payments shall be 
reduced by the aggregate principal amount of Bonds so redeemed, to be allocated among such 
sinking account payment pro rata in integral multiples of $5,000 as determined by the 
Successor Agency. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-15- 

General Redemption Provisions 
 
Purchase in Lieu of Redemption.  In lieu of redemption of any Term Bond, amounts on 

deposit in the Debt Service Fund or in the Sinking Account of the Debt Service Fund may also 
be used and withdrawn by the Trustee at any time, upon the written request of the Successor 
Agency pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, for the purchase of such Term Bonds at public or 
private sale as and when and at such prices (including brokerage and other charges, but 
excluding interest, which is payable from the Interest Fund) as the Successor Agency may in its 
discretion determine, but not in excess of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to 
the purchase date. 

 
Notice of Redemption. The Trustee will mail (by first class mail) notice of any 

redemption to the respective Owners of any Bonds designated for redemption at their respective 
addresses appearing on the Registration Books, and to the Securities Depositories and to one 
or more Information Services, at least 30 but not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for 
redemption; provided, however, that neither failure to receive any such notice so mailed nor any 
defect therein will affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of such Bonds or the 
cessation of the accrual of interest thereon. 

 
Such notice will include the date of the notice, the redemption date, the redemption 

place and the redemption price and must designate the CUSIP numbers, the Bond numbers (if 
less than all Bonds of a maturity are to be redeemed) and the maturity or maturities (in the event 
of redemption of all of the Bonds of such maturity or maturities in whole) of the Bonds to be 
redeemed, and must require that such Bonds be then surrendered at the Office of the Trustee 
identified in such notice for redemption at the redemption price, giving notice also that further 
interest on such Bonds will not accrue from and after the redemption date. 
 

The Successor Agency has the right to rescind any notice of the optional redemption of 
Bonds by written notice to the Trustee on or prior to the date fixed for redemption.  Any notice of 
redemption shall be canceled and annulled if for any reason funds will not be or are not 
available on the date fixed for redemption for the payment in full of the Bonds then called for 
redemption, and such cancellation shall not constitute an Event of Default.  

 
Selection of Bonds for Redemption. When less than all the Outstanding Bonds of a 

series maturing on any one date are called for redemption at any one time, the Successor 
Agency will select the Bonds to be redeemed by lot in any manner which the Successor Agency 
in its sole discretion deems appropriate.  For purposes of such selection, all Bonds will be 
deemed to be comprised of separate $5,000 denominations and such separate denominations 
will be treated as separate Bonds which may be separately redeemed. 

 
Partial Redemption.  If only a portion of any Bond is called for redemption, then upon 

surrender of such Bond the Successor Agency shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate 
and deliver to the Owner thereof, at the expense of the Successor Agency, a new bond or 
bonds of the same series and maturity date, of authorized denominations in aggregate principal 
amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Bond to be redeemed. 

 
Effect of Redemption.  From and after the date fixed for redemption, if notice of 

redemption has been duly mailed and funds available for the payment of the principal of and 
interest (and premium, if any) on the Bonds so called for redemption have been duly provided, 
such Bonds so called shall cease to be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture other than the 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-16- 

right to receive payment of the redemption price, and no interest shall accrue thereon from and 
after the redemption date specified in such notice.   

 
Transfer and Exchange.  So long as the Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & 

Co., as nominee of DTC, transfers and exchanges of Bonds will be made in accordance with 
DTC procedures.  See “Appendix G” below.  Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be 
transferred, upon the registration books of the Trustee, upon surrender of such Bond to the 
Trustee at its Principal Corporate Trust Office for cancellation, accompanied by delivery of a 
written instrument of transfer in a form acceptable to the Trustee, duly executed.  Whenever any 
Bond shall be surrendered for registration of transfer, the Successor Agency shall execute and 
the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds, of like series, interest rate, 
maturity and principal amount of authorized denomination.  The Trustee may refuse to transfer, 
either (a) any Bonds during the period fifteen (15) days prior to the date established by the 
Trustee for the selection of Bonds for redemption, or (b) any Bonds selected by the Trustee for 
redemption. 

 
Discontinuance of Book-Entry System 

 
DTC may discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds at any time by 

giving notice to the Successor Agency or the Trustee and discharging its responsibilities with 
respect thereto under applicable law or the Successor Agency may terminate participation in the 
system of book-entry transfers through DTC or any other securities depository at any time.  In 
the event that the book-entry system is discontinued, the Successor Agency will execute, and 
the Trustee will authenticate and make available for delivery, replacement Bonds in the form of 
registered bonds.  In addition, the following provisions would apply: the principal of and 
redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds will be payable at the corporate trust office of the 
Trustee in Los Angeles, California (or such other office as the Trustee may designate), and 
interest on the Bonds will be payable by check mailed to the registered owner as of the close of 
business on the Record Date. 

 
 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 
 

On June 29, 2011, Assembly Bill No. X1 26 (“AB X1 26”) was enacted together with a 
companion bill, Assembly Bill No. X1 27 (“AB X1 27”).  The provisions of AB X1 26 provided for 
the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies. The provisions of AB X1 27 permitted 
redevelopment agencies to avoid such dissolution by the payment of certain amounts.  A lawsuit 
was brought in the California Supreme Court, California Redevelopment Association, et al., v. 
Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal. 4th 231 (Cal. Dec. 29, 2011), challenging the constitutionality of AB 
X1 26 and AB X1 27.  The California Supreme Court largely upheld AB X1 26, invalidated AB 
X1 27, and held that AB X1 26 may be severed from AB X1 27 and enforced independently.  As 
a result of AB X1 26 and the decision of the California Supreme Court in the California 
Redevelopment Association case, as of February 1, 2012, all redevelopment agencies in the 
State were dissolved, including the Original Agency, and successor agencies were designated 
as successor entities to the former redevelopment agencies to expeditiously wind down the 
affairs of the former redevelopment agencies.   

 
The primary provisions enacted by AB X1 26 relating to the dissolution and wind down of 

former redevelopment agency affairs are Parts 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and 1.85 
(commencing with Section 34170) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code of the State, as 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-17- 

amended on June 27, 2012 by Assembly Bill No. 1484 (“AB 1484”), enacted as Chapter 26, 
Statutes of 2012 ((AB X1 26 and AB 1484 are herein referred to as the “Dissolution Act”). 

 
Tax Allocation Financing 

 
Prior to the enactment of AB X1 26, the Redevelopment Law authorized the financing of 

redevelopment projects through the use of tax increment revenues.  This method provided that 
the taxable valuation of the property within a redevelopment project area on the property tax roll 
last equalized prior to the effective date of the ordinance which adopts the redevelopment plan 
becomes the base year valuation.  Assuming the taxable valuation never drops below the base 
year level, the taxing agencies thereafter received that portion of the taxes produced by 
applying then current tax rates to the base year valuation, and the redevelopment agency was 
allocated the remaining portion produced by applying then current tax rates to the increase in 
valuation over the base year.  Such incremental tax revenues allocated to a redevelopment 
agency were authorized to be pledged to the payment of agency obligations, as was done with 
respect to the 2010 Bonds pursuant to the Indenture.   

 
The Dissolution Act authorizes refunding bonds, including the Bonds, to be secured by a 

pledge of moneys, less amounts deducted pursuant to Section 34183(a) of the Dissolution Act 
for permitted administrative costs of the county auditor-controller and less tax sharing 
obligations (to the extent applicable), which would have been tax increment prior to the 
Dissolution Act, to be deposited from time to time in a Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 
held by a county auditor-controller for each successor agency (the “Redevelopment Property 
Tax Trust Fund”), to be used for the payment of approved enforceable obligations of such 
former redevelopment agency. Successor agencies have no power to levy property taxes and 
must look specifically to the allocation of taxes as described below.   

 
DISCUSSIONS HEREIN REGARDING TAX INCREMENT REVENUES NOW REFER 

TO THOSE MONEYS DEPOSITED BY THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY AUDITOR INTO THE 
REDEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX TRUST FUND HELD BY THE COUNTY FOR THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY. 
 
Allocation of Taxes 

 
Segregation of Tax increment Under the Dissolution Act. Prior to the Dissolution Act, 

pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 33670 of the Redevelopment Law and Section 16 of 
Article XVI of the State Constitution and as provided in the Redevelopment Plan, taxes levied 
upon taxable property in the Project Area each year by or for the benefit of the State, any city, 
county, city and county, district, or other public corporation (herein sometimes collectively called 
“taxing agencies”) after the effective date of the ordinance approving the Redevelopment Plan, 
or the respective effective dates of ordinances approving amendments to the Redevelopment 
Plan that added territory to the Project Area, as applicable, were to be divided as follows: 

 
(a) To Taxing Agencies:  That portion of the taxes which would be 

produced by the rate upon which the tax is levied each year by or for each of the 
taxing agencies upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable property 
in the Project Area as shown upon the assessment roll used in connection with 
the taxation of such property by such taxing agency last equalized prior to the 
effective date of the ordinance adopting the Redevelopment Plan, or the 
respective effective dates of ordinances approving amendments to the 
Redevelopment Plan that added territory to the Project Area, as applicable (each, 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-18- 

a “base year valuation”), will be allocated to, and when collected will be paid 
into, the funds of the respective taxing agencies as taxes by or for the taxing 
agencies on all other property are paid; and 

 
(b) To the Redevelopment Agency:  Except for that portion of the 

taxes in excess of the amount identified in (a) above which are attributable to a 
tax rate levied by a taxing agency for the purpose of producing revenues in an 
amount sufficient to make annual repayments of the principal of, and the interest 
on, any bonded indebtedness approved by the voters of the taxing agency on or 
after January 1, 1989 (however Section 34183 of the Dissolution Act effectively 
eliminates the January 1, 1989 date) for the acquisition or improvement of real 
property, which portion shall be allocated to, and when collected shall be paid 
into, the fund of that taxing agency, that portion of the levied taxes each year in 
excess of such amount, annually allocated within the Plan Limit, when collected, 
to be paid into a special fund of the redevelopment agency. Section 34172 of the 
Dissolution Act now provides that, for purposes of Section 16 of Article XVI of the 
State Constitution, the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund shall be deemed 
to be a special fund of the dissolved redevelopment agency to pay the debt 
service on indebtedness incurred by the Original Agency or the Successor 
Agency to finance or refinance the redevelopment projects of the Original 
Agency.   

 
The Dissolution Act requires the County Auditor-Controller to determine the amount of 

property taxes that would have been allocated to the Original Agency (pursuant to subdivision 
(b) of Section 16 of Article XVI of the State Constitution) had the Original Agency not been 
dissolved pursuant to the operation of AB X1 26, using current assessed values on the last 
equalized roll on August 20, and to deposit that amount in the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund for the Successor Agency established and held by the County Auditor-Controller 
pursuant to the Dissolution Act. The Dissolution Act further provides that any bonds authorized 
thereunder to be issued by the Successor Agency will be considered indebtedness incurred by 
the Successor Agency, with the same lien priority and legal effect as if the bonds had been 
issued by the Original Agency prior to the effective date of AB X1 26, in full conformity with the 
applicable provision of the Redevelopment Law that existed prior to that date, and are to be 
included on each of the Successor Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (see 
“Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules” below). 

 
Section 33177.5(g) of the Dissolution Act provides that bonds authorized thereunder to 

be issued by a successor agency are secured by a pledge of, and lien on, and will be repaid 
from moneys deposited from time to time in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund of the 
Successor Agency held by the County Auditor-Controller, and that property tax revenues 
pledged to any bonds authorized to be issued by the Successor Agency under the Dissolution 
Act, including the Bonds, are taxes allocated to the Successor Agency pursuant to subdivision 
(b) of Section 33670 of the Redevelopment Law and Section 16 of Article XVI of the State 
Constitution.  See "Pledge of Tax Revenues" below.  

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-19- 

Moneys deposited into each successor agency's Redevelopment Property Tax Trust 
Fund and held by the County Auditor-Controller include funds formerly required to be deposited 
into a set-aside fund established by each former redevelopment agency for low and moderate 
income housing. The Dissolution Act is interpreted to no longer requires such a deposit, but 
uncertainly exists as to the current availability of the former housing moneys to pay principal or 
interest on the Bonds under the Dissolution Act.  See "Pledge of Tax Revenues" below.  

 
Order of Priority of Distributions from Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund. As 

described above, the County Auditor-Controller will deposit property tax increment revenues into 
the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund pursuant to the requirements of the Health and 
Safety Code, including Health and Safety Code Sections 34182, 34183 and 34170.5(b).  The 
Bonds and the 2010 Bonds are payable from the Tax Revenues to be derived from the Project 
Area consisting of the property tax revenues deposited in the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund and subsequently transferred to the Successor Agency to pay approved enforceable 
obligations. Moneys representing Tax Revenues transferred by the County Auditor-Controller to 
the Successor Agency for deposit into the Successor Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation 
Retirement Fund in amounts necessary to pay debt service payments will first be deposited by 
the Successor Agency in the Special Fund created under the Indenture and will then be 
transferred by the Successor Agency to the Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Fund 
established under the Indenture and administered by the Trustee in accordance with the 
Indenture for payment of the Bonds and the 2010 Bonds. 

 
Under the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund distribution provisions of the 

Dissolution Act, a county auditor-controller is to distribute funds for each six-month period in the 
following order specified in Section 34183(a) of the Dissolution Act:  

 
(i) first, subject to certain adjustments for subordinations to the extent 

permitted under the Dissolution Act and no later than each January 2 and June 1, to 
each local agency and school entity, to the extent applicable, amounts required for pass-
through payments such entity would have received under provisions of the 
Redevelopment Law, as those provisions read on January 1, 2011, including negotiated 
pass-through agreements and statutory pass-through obligations; 

 
(ii) second, on each January 2 and June 1, to the successor agency for 

payments listed on its approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule, with debt 
service payments scheduled to be made for tax allocation bonds having the highest 
priority over payments scheduled for other debts and obligations listed on the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule; 

 
(iii) third, on each January 2 and June 1, to the successor agency for the 

administrative cost allowance, as defined in the Dissolution Act; and 
 
(iv) fourth, on each January 2 and June 1, to taxing entities any moneys 

remaining in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund after the payments and 
transfers authorized by clauses (i) through (iii) pursuant to Section 34188, in an amount 
proportionate to such taxing entity’s share of property tax revenues in the tax rate area in 
that fiscal year. 
 
See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Pledge of Tax Revenues - Statutory Tax Sharing” 

for information on the impact of tax sharing on the allocation of property tax revenues generated 
in the Project Area. 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-20- 

 
Pledge of Tax Revenues 

 
The pledge and lien securing the Bonds is a parity pledge with the Original Agency’s 

2010 Bonds, described herein, provided however, payments to taxing entities under Tax 
Sharing Statutes have been subordinated to the obligation to pay the Series 2010 Bonds but 
have not been subordinated with respect to the Bonds.   

 
Tax Revenues are defined in the Indenture using pre-Dissolution Act terminology, but 

remain moneys to be derived from the Project Area as described herein, all of the moneys in the 
Special Fund (established under the Indenture) and now held as a subaccount of the 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, and all of the moneys in the Debt Service Fund 
(including the Interest Account, the Principal Account, the Reserve Account, and the 
Redemption Account therein) established and held by the Trustee under the Indenture, all as 
more particularly described below and more fully set forth in the Indenture. Taxes levied on the 
property within the Project Area on that portion of the taxable valuation over and above the 
taxable valuation of the applicable base year property tax roll with respect to the various 
territories within the Project Area, to the extent they constitute Tax Revenues, as described 
herein and now subject to the Dissolution Act, will be deposited in the Redevelopment Property 
Tax Trust Fund for transfer by the County Auditor-Controller to the Successor Agency’s 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund on January 2 and June 1 of each year to the extent 
required for payments listed on the Successor Agency’s approved Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule in accordance with the requirements of the Dissolution Act.  See 
"Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules" below.   

 
Section 34177.5(g) of the Dissolution Act provides that bonds, such as the Bonds and 

the 2010 Bonds: 
 
"…shall be considered indebtedness incurred by the dissolved redevelopment 
agency, with the same legal effect as if the bonds had been issued, incurred, or 
entered into prior to June 29, 2011, in full conformity with the applicable 
provisions of the [Redevelopment Law] that existed prior to that date…and shall 
be secured by a pledge of and lien on, and shall be repaid from moneys 
deposited from time to time in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund…"  

 
On a parity basis with the 2010 Bonds, the Bonds are payable from and secured by the 

pledge described above, as well as by an irrevocable first pledge and lien, on a parity basis with 
the 2010 Bonds, on all of the moneys in the Debt Service Fund (including the Interest Account, 
the Principal Account, the Reserve Account, and the Redemption Account therein) established 
and held by the Trustee in trust for the Bondowners under the Indenture. 

 
The Bonds, interest thereon and premium, if any, are not a debt of the City, the State of 

California or any political subdivision thereof (other than the Successor Agency), and neither the 
City, the State nor any political subdivision thereof (other than the Successor Agency) is liable 
thereon. 

 
Under the Series 2010 Indenture, the term “Tax Revenues” was defined using pre-

Dissolution Act terminology, as follows: 
 
"…those taxes paid to the Agency with respect to the Redevelopment Project 
pursuant to Article 6 of Chapter 6 of the Redevelopment Law, and Section 16 of 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-21- 

Article XVI of the Constitution of the State, or pursuant to other applicable State 
law, and as provided in the Redevelopment Plan, and (b) reimbursements, 
subventions (but excluding payments to the [Original] Agency with respect to 
personal non-taxable property within the Redevelopment Project pursuant to 
Section 16110, et seq., of the Government Code of the State), or other payments 
made by the State with respect to any property taxes that would otherwise be due 
on real or personal property but for an exemption of such property from such taxes; 
including that portion of such taxes otherwise required by Section 33334.3 of the 
Redevelopment Law to be deposited in the Low and Moderate Income Housing 
Fund, but only to the extent necessary to repay that portion of the Bonds and any 
Parity Debt (including applicable reserves and financing costs) attributed to 
amounts deposited in the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund for use 
pursuant to Section 33334.2 or 33334.6 of the Redevelopment Law to increase, 
improve or preserve the supply of low and moderate income housing within or of 
benefit to the Redevelopment Project, but excluding all other amounts of such 
taxes (if any) required to be deposited into the Low and Moderate Income Housing 
Fund of the [Original] Agency pursuant to Section 33334.3 of the Redevelopment 
Law and all amounts (if any) required to be paid pursuant to Tax Sharing Statutes, 
unless subordinated to the payment of the Bonds and any other applicable issue 
of Parity Debt.   
 
Payments to taxing entities under Tax Sharing Statutes have been subordinated to the 

obligation to pay the Series 2010 Bonds but have not been subordinated with respect to the 
Bonds.  See "Statutory Tax Sharing" below.   

 
Under the First Supplemental Indenture, the definition of Tax Revenues as defined in the 

Series 2010 Indenture is converted to become the definition of "Prior Tax Revenues" and the 
term “Tax Revenues” is redefined to facilitate Dissolution Act terminology and provide for 
changes in law, as follows: 

 
"… all taxes that were eligible for allocation to the Original Agency with respect to 
the Project Area and are allocated to the Successor Agency pursuant to Article 6 
of Chapter 6 (commencing with Section 33670) of the Law and Section 16 of 
Article XVI of the Constitution of the State, or pursuant to other applicable State 
laws and that are paid to the Successor Agency for deposit into the Special Fund 
of the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, plus, as to Tax Revenues 
available for payment of the Series 2010 Bonds, amounts of such taxes required to 
be paid pursuant to Tax Sharing Statutes but subordinated to the Series 2010 
Bonds. In the event that the applicable property tax revenues provisions of the 
Dissolution Act are determined by a court in a final judicial decision to be invalid 
and, in place of the invalid provisions of the Dissolution Act, provisions of the 
Redevelopment Law or the equivalent shall become applicable to the Bonds, 
then the term “Tax Revenues” shall mean the Prior Tax Revenues.   
 
Housing Set-Aside.  Moneys deposited into each successor agency's Redevelopment 

Property Tax Trust Fund include funds formerly required to be deposited into a set-aside fund 
established by each former redevelopment agency for low and moderate income housing. 
However, Section 33177.5(g) of the Dissolution Act provides that the Bonds shall “be secured 
by a pledge of, and lien on, and shall be repaid from moneys deposited from time to time in the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund," which deposited moneys now include money which 
would have been the housing set-aside prior to the Dissolution Act.  The Dissolution Act is 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-22- 

interpreted to no longer require such a deposit, but the definition of Tax Revenues pledged for 
payment of the Bonds and the 2010 Bonds contained in the Indenture includes the housing set-
aside to the extent a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds were deposited into the Original 
Agency's Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund. None of the proceeds of the 2010 Bonds 
were used for low and moderate income housing purposes; however 25% of the proceeds of the 
2003 Loans were used for such purposes. As such, the Original Agency had deposited a portion 
of its 2003 Loans proceeds into the housing fund; the 2003 Loans obligations are being 
refunded by the Bonds, so under the definition of Tax Revenues in the Indenture a portion of the 
former housing set-aside is pledged to repayment of the 2013 Bonds. Nonetheless, due to the 
uncertainty of the effect of the Dissolution Act on a pledge of a former redevelopment agency's 
housing set-aside moneys to pay bonds, the Successor Agency makes no assurance as to the 
availability of the former housing moneys to pay principal or interest on the Bonds. Investors 
should assume that the Bonds are secured by and payable solely from the Tax Revenues on 
deposit in the Successor Agency's Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund held by the County 
Auditor-Controller meeting both the requirements of the Indenture and the Dissolution Act, as 
described herein. 

 
Statutory Tax Sharing.  The Redevelopment Law authorized redevelopment agencies 

to make payments to school districts and other taxing agencies to alleviate any financial burden 
or detriments to such taxing agencies caused by a redevelopment project.  The Original Agency 
was not allowed to enter into pass-through agreements because of statutory restrictions 
(“AB1290” legislation) imposed based upon the date of formation of the Project Area (post-
1993).  

 
Additionally, Sections 33607.5 and 33607.7 of the Redevelopment Law required 

mandatory tax sharing applicable to redevelopment projects adopted after January 1, 1994, or 
amended thereafter in certain manners specified in such statutes (the “Statutory Tax-Sharing 
Payments”).  For a description of the Statutory Tax-Sharing Payments payable to taxing 
entities within the Project Area, see “THE PROJECT AREA - Statutory Tax Sharing.”   

 
The Dissolution Act requires the county auditor-controller to distribute from the 

redevelopment property tax trust fund amounts required to be distributed and for statutory pass-
through amounts to the taxing entities for each six-month period before amounts are distributed 
by the County Auditor-Controller from the redevelopment property tax trust fund to the 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund of the successor agency on each January 2 and 
June 1, unless (i) pass-through payment obligations have previously been made subordinate to 
debt service payments for the bonded indebtedness of the former agency, as succeeded by the 
successor agency, (ii) the successor agency has reported, no later than the December 1 and 
May 1 preceding the January 2 or June 1 distribution date, that the total amount available to the 
successor agency from the redevelopment property tax trust fund allocation to the 
redevelopment obligation retirement fund of the successor agency, from other funds transferred 
from the former redevelopment agency, and from funds that have or will become available 
through asset sales and all redevelopment operations is insufficient to fund the enforceable 
obligations, pass-through payments of the successor agency, and the administrative cost 
allowance of the successor agency for the applicable six-month period, and (iii) the State 
Controller has concurred with the successor agency that there are insufficient funds for such 
purposes for the applicable six-month period.   

 
The Dissolution Act provides for a procedure by which the successor agency may make 

Statutory Tax-Sharing Payments subordinate to the Bonds; however, the Successor Agency 
has determined not to undertake such procedure, and therefore, the Statutory Tax-Sharing 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-23- 

Payments are not subordinate to the Bonds. For the 2010 Bonds, the Original Agency did obtain 
subordinations of the Statutory Tax-Sharing Payments, accordingly, payments to taxing entities 
under Tax Sharing Statutes have been subordinated to the obligation to pay the 2010 Bonds but 
have not been subordinated with respect to the Bonds.  See “THE PROJECT AREA - Statutory 
Tax Sharing.”  See also APPENDIX B - FISCAL CONSULTANT’S REPORT.” 

 
Reserve Account 

 
Under the Indenture, upon issuance of the 2010 Bonds the Trustee established a 

Reserve Account for the 2010 Bonds.  The Indenture provides that after the 2003 Bonds are 
defeased or no longer outstanding the Successor Agency may elect in a subsequent agreement 
authorizing the issuance of Parity Debt, that the Reserve Account shall become a reserve for 
the Bonds and for any such Parity Debt of the Successor Agency.  In such case "Reserve 
Requirement" shall mean, as of the date of issuance of any Parity Debt, an amount equal to 
the lesser of (a) 10% of the original principal amount of the Bonds and other Parity Debt of the 
Successor Agency, or (b) the maximum annual debt service on the Bonds and other Parity Debt 
of the Successor Agency coming due and payable in the current or any future Bond Year, or (c) 
125% of average annual Bond Year Debt Service on the Bonds and other Parity Debt of the 
Successor Agency. Pursuant to the Indenture, the Agency has elected that the Reserve 
Account will be designated as a parity reserve to be held by the Trustee in trust for the benefit of 
the owners of the Bonds, the 2010 Bonds and any other Parity Debt.  The amount on deposit in 
the Reserve Account will be maintained at an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement, 
calculated on a combined basis for the Bonds and the 2010 Bonds.  . ]]]   

 
If immediately prior to any Interest Payment Date the Trustee holds insufficient moneys 

to pay the principal and interest due on the Bonds and 2010 Bonds on such Interest Payment 
Date, the Trustee shall withdraw from the Reserve Account, to the extent of available funds 
therein, and transfer to the Debt Service Fund an amount required to cause the balance in the 
Debt Service Fund and the accounts therein to equal the amount needed to pay principal of and 
interest on the Bonds and 2010 Bonds coming due and payable on such Interest Payment Date.  
The Reserve Account is replenished only from Tax Revenues and the Successor Agency and 
the City have no liability to replenish it from other funds.  See “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN 
PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE” in Appendix D. 
 
Additional Debt 

 
Existing Parity Debt.  On November 18, 2010 the Authority issued $21,595,000 2010 

Tax Allocation Bonds (Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project) (the “2010 Bonds”). 
The 2010 Bonds, which are currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of 
$21,465,000, are secured by Tax Revenues on a parity basis with the Bonds.   

 
Future Parity Debt.  The Indenture allows for the issuance of other loans, advances, or 

indebtedness payable from Tax Revenues on parity with the Bonds and 2010 Bonds; however 
the Agency has no enforceable obligations outstanding which require the issuance of bonds  
and due to limitations imposed by the Dissolution Act it is unlikely any new obligations other 
than refunding obligations would be approved by the Oversight Board and Department of 
Finance.  

 
Refunding Obligations.  The Successor Agency may issue or incur other loans, 

advances, or indebtedness payable from Tax Revenues to refund other Original Agency 
obligations, provided that (a) the Successor Agency complies with the requirements of Health 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-24- 

and Safety Code section 34177.5 and (b) the Successor Agency complies with the provisions of 
the Indenture regarding the issuance of Parity Debt (as defined in the Indenture).  

 
Limited Obligation 

 
The Bonds are not a debt of the City, the County, the State or any of their political 

subdivisions except the Successor Agency, and none of the City, the County, the State or any of 
their political subdivisions except the Successor Agency are liable therefor. The Bonds do not 
constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or 
restriction. No member of the Successor Agency, the Oversight Board or the Board of 
Supervisors of the County shall be individually or personally liable for the payment of the 
principal of or interest or redemption premium (if any) on the Bonds; but nothing contained in the 
Indenture relieves any such member, officer, agent or employee from the performance of any 
official duty provided by law. 

 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules 

 
Submission of Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule. Not less than 90 days 

prior to each to each January 2 and June 1, the Dissolution Act requires successor agencies to 
prepare, and submit to the successor agency’s oversight board and the Department of Finance 
for approval, a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (the “Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule”) pursuant to which enforceable obligations (as defined in the Dissolution 
Act) of the successor agency are listed, together with the source of funds to be used to pay for 
each enforceable obligation.   

 
Payment of Amounts Listed on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule. As 

defined in the Dissolution Act, “enforceable obligation” includes bonds, including the required 
debt service, reserve set-asides, and any other payments required under the indenture or 
similar documents governing the issuance of the outstanding bonds of the former 
redevelopment agency, as well as other obligations such as loans, judgments or settlements 
against the former redevelopment agency, payments required by the federal government, 
obligations imposed by State law, or any legally binding and enforceable agreement that is not 
otherwise void as violating the debt limit or public policy, contracts necessary for the 
administration or operation of the successor agency, and, under certain circumstances, 
amounts borrowed from the former redevelopment agency’s low and moderate income housing 
fund. 

 
Creation or maintenance of a reserve may be included on the Recognized Obligation 

Payment Schedule and held by the successor agency when required by the bond indenture or 
when the next property tax allocation will be insufficient to pay all obligations due under the 
provisions of the bonds for the next payment due in the following half of the calendar year.   In 
the First Supplemental Indenture the Successor Agency covenants that it will place on the 
periodic Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for approval by the Oversight Board and 
Department of Finance, to the extent necessary, the amounts to be held by the Successor 
Agency as a reserve until the next six-month period, as contemplated by paragraph (1)(A) of 
subdivision (d) of Section 34171 of the Dissolution Act, that are necessary to provide for the 
payment of principal and interest under the Indenture when the next property tax allocation is 
projected to be insufficient to pay all obligations due under the Indenture and for the next 
payment due thereunder and hereunder in the following six-month period. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-25- 

Sources of Payments for Enforceable Obligations. Under the Dissolution Act, the 
categories of sources of payments for enforceable obligations listed on a Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule are the following:  (i) the low and moderate income housing fund, (ii) bond 
proceeds, (iii) reserve balances, (iv) administrative cost allowance (successor agencies are 
entitled to receive not less than $250,000, unless that amount is reduced by the oversight 
board), (v) the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (but only to the extent no other funding 
source is available or when payment from property tax revenues is required by an enforceable 
obligation or otherwise required under the Dissolution Act), or (vi) other revenue sources 
(including rents, concessions, asset sale proceeds, interest earnings, and any other revenues of 
the former redevelopment agency, as approved by the oversight board). 

 
The Dissolution Act provides that only those payments listed in the Recognized 

Obligation Payment Schedule may be made by a successor agency and only from the funds 
specified in the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.   

 
Failure to Submit a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule. The Recognized 

Obligation Payment Schedule must be approved by the oversight board and must be submitted 
by a successor agency to the county auditor-controller and the Department of Finance by 90 
days before the date of the next January 2 or June 1 property tax distribution.  If the successor 
agency does not submit a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule by the applicable deadline, 
the Successor Agency may not receive the property tax revenues that it otherwise would have 
received and the city that established the former redevelopment agency will be subject to a civil 
penalty equal to $10,000 per day for every day the schedule is not submitted to the Department 
of Finance.  Additionally, the successor agency’s administrative cost allowance is reduced by 
25% if the successor agency did not submit a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule by the 
80th day before the date of the next January 2 or June 1 property tax distribution, as applicable, 
with respect to the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for the subsequent six-month 
period. For additional information regarding procedures under the Dissolution Act relating to late 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules and implications thereof on the Bonds, see “RISK 
FACTORS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.”  

 
Final and Conclusive Determination by Department of Finance. Health and Safety 

Code Section 34177.5(i) permits a successor agency to petition the Department of Finance to 
provide written confirmation that its determination of the enforceable obligations of the 
successor agency that provide for an irrevocable commitment of property tax revenue over time 
as approved in a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule is final and conclusive, and reflects 
the approval by the Department of Finance of subsequent payments made pursuant to the 
enforceable obligations.  If the confirmation is granted, then the review by the Department of 
Finance of such payments in future Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules is limited to 
confirming that they are required by the prior enforceable obligations.   

 
In a letter to the Successor Agency dated __________, 2013, the Department of 

Finance stated that based on its review and application of the law, the Oversight Board 
Resolution was approved and that should the requirements of Health and Safety Code Section 
34177.5(i) be satisfied in due course following the delivery of the Bonds, the Department of 
Finance will issue a letter with respect to the Bonds confirming the determination by the 
Department of Finance that the Bonds as approved in a Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule is final and conclusive and reflects approval of subsequent payments made pursuant 
to the Refunding Bonds, provided the conditions described in such letter are satisfied. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-26- 

In addition, pursuant to the First Supplemental Indenture, the Successor Agency 
covenants to petition the Department of Finance to confirm that its determination that the 
Refunding Bonds constitute enforceable obligations is final and conclusive.  

 
Relevant Covenant by the Successor Agency. In this regard, the Successor Agency 

covenants in the First Supplemental Indenture that it will comply with all requirements of the 
Redevelopment Law and the Dissolution Act to insure the allocation and payment to it of the 
Tax Revenues for payment of enforceable obligations, including without limitation the timely 
filing of its Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule with appropriate officials of the County, 
the Oversight Board, and the State.  The Successor Agency shall not enter into any agreement 
with any other governmental unit, or amend any such agreement, if such agreement or 
amendment would have the effect of causing the amount of Tax Revenues available to the 
Successor Agency for payment of the Bonds to be insufficient to meet debt service on the 
Bonds and the 2010 Bonds, unless in the written opinion of an Independent Redevelopment 
Consultant is filed with the Trustee to the effect that such agreement or amendment will not 
adversely affect the security granted to the Bond Owners. 

 
The Successor Agency has no power to levy and collect taxes, and various factors 

beyond its control could affect the amount of Tax Revenues available in any six-month period to 
pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds (see “RISK FACTORS”). 

 
Statement of Indebtedness.  Prior to adoption of the Dissolution Act, Section 33675 of 

the Redevelopment Law required the Original Agency to file not later than the first day of 
October of each year with the County Auditor-Controller a statement of indebtedness certified 
by the chief fiscal officer of the Original Agency for each redevelopment plan which provides for 
the allocation of taxes (i.e., the Redevelopment Plan).  The statement of indebtedness was 
required to contain the date on which the bonds were delivered, the principal amount, term, 
purposes and interest rate of the bonds and the outstanding balance and amount due on the 
bonds. Similar information was required to be given for each loan, advance or indebtedness that 
the Original Agency had incurred or entered into which is payable from tax increment.  Section 
33675 also provided that payments of tax increment revenues from the County Auditor-
Controller to the Original Agency could not exceed the amounts shown on the Original Agency’s 
statement of indebtedness.  The Dissolution Act eliminates this requirement and provides that, 
commencing on the date the first Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule is valid thereunder, 
the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule supersedes the statement of indebtedness 
previously required under the Redevelopment Law, and commencing from such date, the 
statement of indebtedness will no longer be prepared nor have any effect under the 
Redevelopment Law. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-27- 

THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
 
The Dissolution Act dissolved the Original Agency as of February 1, 2012. Pursuant to 

Section 34173 of the Dissolution Act, on January 5, 2012, the City Council adopted Resolution 
No. 2012-7136 electing for the City to serve as the Successor Agency to the Original Agency 
upon the dissolution of the Original Agency. Subdivision (g) of Section 34173 of the Dissolution 
Act, added by AB 1484, expressly affirms that the Successor Agency is a separate public entity 
from the City, that the two entities shall not merge, and that the liabilities of the Original Agency 
will not be transferred to the City nor will the assets of the Original Agency become assets of the 
City. 

 
Under AB X1 26 the Successor Agency is obligated to perform certain powers and 

duties, including but not limited to, making payments and performing obligations required by 
enforceable obligations and expeditiously winding down the affairs of the Original Agency. 

 
AB X1 26 also requires that there shall be an oversight board (“Oversight Board”) 

established for each of the former California redevelopment agency's successor agencies. The 
Oversight Board supervises the activities of the Successor Agency and the wind down of the 
dissolved redevelopment agency's affairs pursuant to AB X1 26. It approves certain actions of 
the Successor Agency and provides direction to the Successor Agency. It has a fiduciary 
responsibility to holders of enforceable obligations and taxing entities that benefit from the 
distributions of property tax and other revenues of the Successor Agency. Under the Dissolution 
Act, substantially all Successor Agency actions are subject to approval by the Oversight Board, 
as well as review by the Department of Finance. California has strict laws regarding public 
meetings (known as the Ralph M. Brown Act), which generally make all Successor Agency and 
Oversight Board meetings open to the public in similar manner as City Council meetings. 

 
 

THE PROJECT AREA 
 

Fiscal Consultant 
 
In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the Successor Agency has engaged 

Fraser & Associates, Roseville, California (the “Fiscal Consultant”) to prepare a Fiscal 
Consultant Report dated __________ 2013.  See “APPENDIX B – FISCAL CONSULTANT’S 
REPORT”. 

 
Map of the Project Area 
 

The following map shows the boundaries of the Project Area. 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-28- 

[INSERT PROJECT AREA MAP] 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-29- 

 
 
 

The Redevelopment Plan 
 
The Redevelopment Plan for the Project Area was originally adopted on February 7, 

1996 by Ordinance No. 96-901 (referred to as the Original Area). The Project Area was 
amended in July 2001 by Ordinance No. 01-970 to add territory (referred to as the Amendment 
Area).  Because a portion of land in the Amendment Area is in the City of San Diego, the San 
Diego City Council approved Ordinance No. 00-18971 on August 7, 2001 authorizing the 
Original Agency to undertake redevelopment activities in that area. Three additional 
amendments were made to the Redevelopment Plan between 2001 and 2010 that clarified 
certain issues in regard to the Original Agency’s time and financial limits. Those limits are 
shown in the chart below: The Redevelopment Plan limits as amended are summarized below: 

 
 Original Area Amendment Area 

Debt Establishment 02/07/2016 07/18/2021 
Plan Effectiveness 02/07/2027 07/18/2032 
Debt Repayment 02/07/2042 07/18/2047 
Bonded Debt Limit $120 million combined 

 
 For more information on Redevelopment Plan limitations, see “APPENDIX B – FISCAL 

CONSULTANT’S REPORT.” 
 

The Project Area 
 
General.  The Project Area consists of approximately 1,377 gross acres, comprising 

slightly in excess of 2 square miles of land.   Of this, 250 acres are in the Original Area and 
1,125 acres are in the Amendment Area.  The Amendment Area includes approximately 68 
acres of land that are outside the boundaries of the City and within the City of San Diego.   

 
Land Use.  The Original Area includes a mix of commercial and residential uses, 

including the major commercial areas in the City.  The Amendment Area is predominately 
residential.  The table below summarizes land use, as shown on the County Assessor’s tax roll, 
within the Project Area for Fiscal Year 2012-13. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-30- 

TABLE 4 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 

Land Use Category Summary- 2012-13 Fiscal Year 
 

Total Project Area 
    
 Parcels Taxable Value % of Total 
Residential 5,538 $1,292,311,474  89.33% 
Commercial 169 100,164,632  6.92 
Industrial 9 7,245,391  0.50 
Vacant Land 107 12,949,555  0.90 
Other 94 19,611,972  1.36 
Total Secured 5,917 1,432,283,024 99.00% 
Unsecured / State Assessed  14,446,374 1.00 
Grand Total   $1,446,729,398 100.00% 
  
Source:  Fraser & Associates 

 
Assessed Valuation  

 
Tax Revenues to be used for payment of the Bonds are generated from increases in the 

total assessed value above the base year value.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax 
Revenues.” The method by which a county allocates property taxes and tax increment revenues 
can have a significant impact on the receipt of such revenues.  San Diego County calculates tax 
increment to the Project Area by applying the current year tax rate to both secured and 
unsecured incremental taxable values.  Redevelopment agencies also receive an allocation of 
unitary and supplemental property taxes.  Supplemental taxes are a result of new construction 
or changes of ownership after the January 1 lien date.   

 
Assembly Bill 8 (“AB8”) provided procedures for an equitable allocation of 1% property 

taxes that would change in proportion with the increase or decrease of assessed values. The 
basic premise of AB8 is to allocate to each taxing jurisdiction the amount it received in the prior 
year, plus a share of the change that has occurred in the current year within its boundaries. Tax 
increment generated from the tax roll is allocated based on the Project Area's AB8 
apportionment factor applied to the actual collections of county-wide property tax revenues.  
Given this, the Successor Agency's receipt of tax increment revenues can be reduced by 
delinquent property taxes. The Project Area receives a share of prior year delinquent property 
taxes when they are paid, along with penalties and interest revenue that are due on delinquent 
taxes. The County also adjusts tax increment payments for roll corrections, such as refunds of 
property taxes due to successfully appealed assessments, based on the Project Area’s AB8 
factor.  

 
Secured taxable values decreased by 9% or $143.3 million in 2009-10 and 2010-11. Of 

this amount, the Original Area fell by $13.4 million and the Amendment Area by $129.9 million.  
The major reason for the decline during the period was due to either residential value reductions 
under Proposition 8 (see “Appeals of Assessed Values”), or sales of property. There were 721 
residential parcels that were reduced under Proposition 8 by $139.1 million through 2011-12, 
most of which had occurred with the release of the 2010-11 tax roll.  In addition, there were 493 
residential sales that occurred prior to January 1, 2010 and reduced value by $67.3 million.  
Value reductions were offset by new investment in the Project Area ($7.2 million) and residential 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-31- 

property that sold at a value higher than the tax roll value ($61.2 million) prior to January 1, 
2010.   

 
In 2012-13 and 2013-14, secured taxable values have increased by $74 million. There 

were a number of changes of ownership which increased value by $43 million. This included the 
sale of two major properties (Imperial Strand LLC and Mariners Point Holding) that increased 
secured values by a combined total of $16 million. In 2013-14, the County also began the 
process of reversing some of the across the board residential Proposition 8 reductions. A total 
208 residential parcels were increased in 2013-14 by a total of $19 million, with an average 
increase per parcels of 34 percent. The balance of growth in the Project Area can be attributed 
to the annual 2 percent inflations adjustment. 

 
The following table shows the historical taxable values of the Project Area over the past 

five years. Taxable values have declined over this period by a total of $70.4 million. The 
reductions largely occurred in 2009-10 and 2010-11. In both 2012-13 and 2013-14, taxable 
values have increased. The total percentage change over the period was -4.50 percent.  The 
average annual percentage change in values was -0.92 percent. 

 
TABLE 5 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 
Historic Assessed Value and Incremental Value 

 
 
 

Fiscal Year 
Locally-Assessed 

Secured Value 

 
Unsecured 

Value 

 
Total  

Taxable Value 

 
Percentage 

Change 

Total 
Incremental 

Value (1)  
2009-10 $1,454,824,970 $12,086,846 $1,466,911,816 -6% $724,219,435 
2010-11 1,404,184,578 11,623,445 1,415,808,023 -3 673,115,642 
2011-12 1,403,278,841 10,972,967 1,414,251,808 0 671,559,427 
2012-13 1,432,283,024 14,446,374 1,446,729,398 2 704,037,017 
2013-14 1,478,131,750 14,924,343 1,493,056,093 3 750,363,712 

 
Total Percentage Change:  -4.50% 
Average Percentage Change:  -0.92% 

        
(1)  Taxable Value above base year value of $742,692,381. 
Source: Fraser & Associates. 

 
For additional information regarding assessed valuation in the Project Area, see the 

Fiscal Consultant Report in Appendix B.  
 
Distribution of Taxes 

 
As discussed in the subsection “LIMITATIONS ON TAX REVENUES AND POSSIBLE 

SPENDING LIMITATIONS - Property Tax Rate Limitations - Article XIIIA,” the property tax rate 
applicable within the Project Area is limited by the State Constitution to $1 per $100 of taxable 
property value plus the rate necessary to service certain indebtedness approved by the voters. 
Secured taxes are due in two equal installments.  Installments of taxes levied upon secured 
property become delinquent on December 10 and April 10.  Taxes on unsecured property are 
due March 1 and become delinquent August 31. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-32- 

The County Auditor-Controller is responsible for the aggregation of the taxable values 
assigned by the Assessor as of the January 1st lien date for property within the boundaries of 
the Project Area.  This results in the reported total current year Project Area taxable value and 
becomes the basis of determining tax increment revenues due to the Successor Agency.  
Although adjustments to taxable values for property within the Project Area may occur 
throughout the fiscal year to reflect escaped assessments, roll corrections, etc., such 
adjustments are not assumed in the tax increment projection shown herein. 

 
Tax increment generated from the tax roll is allocated based on the Project Area's 

apportionment factor applied to the actual collections of County-wide property tax revenues.  
The apportionment factor represents the Project Area’s tax increment revenue in relation to total 
Countywide property taxes.  Therefore, the Successor Agency's receipt of tax increment 
revenues can be reduced by delinquent property taxes. The Project Area receives a share of 
prior year delinquent property taxes when they are paid, along with penalties and interest 
revenue that are due on delinquent taxes. The County also adjusts tax increment payments for 
roll corrections, such as refunds of property taxes due to successfully appealed assessments, 
based on the Project Area’s apportionment factor.  

 
The Dissolution Act requires the County Auditor-Controller to determine the amount of 

property taxes that would have been allocated to the Original Agency (pursuant to subdivision 
(b) of Section 16 of Article XVI of the State Constitution) had the Original Agency not been 
dissolved pursuant to the operation of AB X1 26, using current assessed values on the last 
equalized roll on August 20, and to deposit that amount in the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund for the Successor Agency established and held by the County Auditor-Controller 
pursuant to the Dissolution Act. For information on the allocation of taxes collected to the 
Successor Agency, see "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Allocation of Taxes" above. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-33- 

The following table shows the tax levy and receipts in the Project Area during fiscal 
years 2008-09 through 2012-13.  For additional information, see the Fiscal Consultant Report in 
Appendix B.  

 
TABLE 6 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 
Historic Tax Levy and Receipts 

 
  

Levy per 
County (1) 

Tax Increment (2) 
Receipts Less 
Supplementals 

 
% of Levy 
Received 

 
 

Supplementals 

Total Tax 
Increment 
Receipts 

 
% of Levy 
Received 

2008-09 $8,225,343 $8,142,393 98.99% $191,398 $8,333,791 101.32% 
2009-10 7,260,905 7,197,522 99.13 79,772 7,277,294 100.23 
2010-11 6,763,982 6,624,550 97.94 181,304 6,805,854 100.62 
2011-12 6,760,400 6,528,958 96.58 87,116 6,616,074 97.87 
2012-13 6,912,127 7,509,458 106.64 N/A 7,509,458 108.64 
  
(1) Initial levy reported by San Diego County. 
(2) Receipts per Successor Agency records, inclusive of property tax administrative fees and pass through 

payments. 
Source: Fraser & Associates. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-34- 

Major Property Owners 
 
The following table lists the ten largest payers of secured property taxes in the Project 

Area for fiscal year 2013-14.  The aggregate assessed value of the top ten property taxpayers 
accounted for approximately 6.22% of the secured assessed value of the Project Area for 2013-
14.  The aggregate incremental secured assessed value of the top ten property taxpayers 
accounted for approximately 12.42% of the secured incremental assessed value of the Project 
Area for 2013-14.   

 
TABLE 7 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 
Ten Largest Taxpayers by Assessed Valuation (1) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
 

 
 

Assessee 

 
No. of 

Parcels 

 
Type 

of Use 

2013-14 
Secured 

Assessed 
Value(1) 

Percent 
Project 

Area AV(2) 

Percent 
Incremental 

AV(2) 

Imperial Strand LLC 2 Residential $16,787,833 1.14% 2.27 
Sea Coast Inn 1 Hotel 14,016,704 0.95 1.89 
Mariners Point Holdings LLC (3) 1 Residential 12,038,393 0.81 1.63 
Kreutzkamp Revocable 2000 Trust 08-17-00 18 Residential 9,789,267 0.66 1.32 
D&A Daily Mortgage Fund III LP 9 Residential/Hotel 9,179,665 0.62 1.24 
Shurgard-Resco III LLC  1 Industrial 6,779,963 0.46 0.92 
1400 13th Street Imperial House Apts LLC (3) 1 Residential 6,500,000 0.44 0.88 
Dugan Company LP 15 Residential 6,152,143 0.42 0.83 
Apple Blossom Family Ltd Partnership 6 Residential 5,946,480 0.40 0.80 
Albertsons LLC LF Imperial Beach    
   Promenade LLC  (3) 1 Grocery Store 4,798,675 0.32 0.65 

   $91,989,123 6.22% 12.42% 
  

(1) Based on ownership of locally-assessed secured and unsecured property. 
(2) Based on 2012-13 Project Area secured taxable value of $1,478,131,750 and secured incremental value of 

$740,804,770. 
(3) Each of these owners has an outstanding assessment appeal. 
Source: Fraser & Associates.   

 
Appeals of Assessed Values 

 
Proposition 8 Appeals. Most of the appeals that might be filed in the Project Area 

would be based on Section 51 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, which requires that for each 
lien date the value of real property shall be the lesser of its base year value annually adjusted 
by the inflation factor pursuant to Article XIIIA of the State Constitution or its full cash value, 
taking into account reductions in value due to damage, destruction, depreciation, obsolescence, 
removal of property or other factors causing a decline in value. Pursuant to California law, 
property owners may apply for a reduction of their property tax assessment by filing a written 
application, in form prescribed by the State Board of Equalization, with the appropriate county 
board of equalization or assessment appeals board. In most cases, the appeal is filed because 
the applicant believes that present market conditions (such as residential home prices) cause 
the property to be worth less than its current assessed value. These market-driven appeals are 
known as Proposition 8 appeals.  

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-35- 

Based on information in the Fiscal Consultant’s Report, the taxable value for 721 
residential parcels (inclusive of both single and multifamily parcels) had been reduced on the 
2011-12 tax roll by a total of $139.1 million.  The San Diego County Assessor has indicated that 
most of the Proposition 8 reductions were for properties that were sold or completed 
construction between 2003 and 2007. In terms of future Proposition 8 reductions, recent sales 
data indicates that property is selling for more than the value recorded on the current tax roll. 
The table below shows the recent trends for calendar years 2012 and 2013 through March. See 
“APPENDIX B – FISCAL CONSULTANT’S REPORT- Section E- Assessment Appeals.” 

 
Any reduction in the assessment ultimately granted as a Proposition 8 appeal applies to 

the year for which application is made and during which the written application was filed. These 
reductions are often temporary and are adjusted back to their original values when market 
conditions improve. Once the property has regained its prior value, adjusted for inflation, it once 
again is subject to the annual inflationary factor growth rate allowed under Article XIIIA.  See 
also “RISK FACTORS – Litigation Regarding 2% Limitation.” 

 
Base Year Appeals. A second type of assessment appeal is called a Base Year appeal, 

where the property owners challenge the original (basis) value of their property. Appeals for 
reduction in the “base year” value of an assessment, if successful, reduce the assessment for 
the year in which the appeal is taken and prospectively thereafter.  The base year is determined 
by the completion date of new construction or the date of change of ownership.  Any base year 
appeal must be made within four years of the change of ownership or new construction date.  

 
Current Appeals.  According to the Fiscal Consultant Report and based on information 

provided by the County Assessment Appeals Office, the following represent the open 
Proposition 8 appeals in the Project Area.  For more information, see “APPENDIX B - FISCAL 
CONSULTANT’S REPORT.” 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-36- 

TABLE 8 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 

Summary of Open Appeals (1) 

 

Assessee 
2013-14  

Value  
Estimated 

Resolved Value (1) 
Estimated Value 

Reduction 
Original Project Area     
1400-13Th Street Imperial House $6,500,000  $4,899,050  $1,600,950  
Albertsons Llc Lf Imp. Beach 4,798,675  3,616,761  1,181,914  
Arriba Vista Inc 2,400,000 1,808,880 591,120 
Irene Kooyers Manning 1,914,327 1,442,828  471,498  
Bikeway Village LLC 1,400,000 1,055,180 344,820 
Bikeway Village LLC 1,400,000 1,055,180 344,820 
John & Mahin Nobel 1,242,924  936,792  306,132  
Joel & Anne Marie Tubao Family Trust 1,235,000  930,820  304,181  
Fauzi Zora 1,213,246  914,424  298,822  
Narinder Makkar 1,170,353  882,095  288,258  
G&M Oil Co/George Pearson 1,160,996  875,043  285,953  
All Others (2) 7,401,409 5,578,442 1,822,967 
Original Area Total 31,836,930 23,995,494 7,841,435 
      
Amended Project Area     
Mariners Point Holdings Llc 12,038,393 9,073,337 2,965,056 
William Mundt Trust 3,775,000 2,845,218 929,783 
Cox Com, Inc 3,002,964 2,263,334 739,630 
Cox Com, Inc 2,856,938 2,153,274 703,664 
Arriba Vista Inc 1,655,000 1,247,374 407,627 
Southeastern Ca Conf. Of Seventh Day 
Adv 1,324,357 998,168 326,189 
All Others  (2) 21,535,018 16,230,943 5,304,075 
Amended Area Total 46,187,670 34,811,647 11,376,023 
        

Total $78,024,600 $58,807,141 $19,217,459 
    
 (1)  Estimated at 24.6% reduction. 
 (2)  Represents numerous appeals with assessed value of less than $1.0 million. 
Source: Fraser & Associates. 

 
As shown above, there are 17 assesses that have outstanding appeals in the Project 

Area with a taxable value above $1.0 million.  Three of the applicants (1400-13th Street Imperial 
House, Albertsons and Mariners Point Holdings) are part of the Top 10 Assessees list.  The 
Fiscal Consultant has grouped a total of 76 appeals with value at less than $1.0 million, most of 
which are residential parcels, on the table above. The data provided by the County did not 
include the applicants requested value reduction. In order to estimate the impact of the appeals, 
the Fiscal Consultant reviewed recent information on prior success ratios for appeals.  Between 
2008 and 2011, a total of 441 appeals were filed, with 357 of these resolved.  For the resolved 
appeals, value was reduced by an average of 25%. For purposes of the estimated resolved 
value shown above, the Fiscal Consultant has assumed that each applicant would receive 
reductions equal to 24.6% of the tax roll value.  For purposes of the tax increment projections 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-37- 

shown on Table 11, taxable value was reduced by $20.2 million in 2014-15 for the estimated 
impact of appeals. See APPENDIX B - FISCAL CONSULTANT’S REPORT.” 

 
Compliance with Laws.  The Successor Agency has covenanted in the Indenture to 

comply with all requirements of law to insure the allocation and payment to it of the necessary 
Tax Revenues for payment of its enforceable obligations, including without limitation the timely 
filing of the required Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules.   

 
Low and Moderate Income Housing 

 
Before the Dissolution Act, it was clear that the Redevelopment Law required the 

Original Agency to set aside not less than 20% of all tax increment generated in the Project 
Area into a low and moderate income housing fund to be used for the purpose of increasing, 
improving and/or preserving the supply of low and moderate income housing. These tax 
increment revenues were commonly referred to as “Housing Set-Aside.” 

 
The Dissolution Act is interpreted to eliminate the characterization of certain tax 

increment revenues as Housing Set-Aside. Although it is not entirely clear from the Dissolution 
Act, the Successor Agency may no longer be required to make a housing set-aside deposit, yet 
AB 1484 specifically states that the AB 1290 payments are to be made as if the housing deposit 
were still being made. For more information on the effect of the former Housing Set-Aside, see 
"SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Pledge of Tax Revenues" above.   

 
Affordable Housing Coalition of San Diego County Litigation.  On April 25, 2012, a 

lawsuit was filed against the San Diego County Auditor Controller (“County A-C”) and successor 
agencies to the former redevelopment agencies in the County of San Diego, including the 
Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, captioned The Affordable Housing 
Coalition of San Diego County v. Tracy Sandoval, et al., Sacramento SC Case No. 34-2012-
80001158-CU-WM-GDS.  The alleged purpose of the action is to “ensure that AB 1X 26 is 
implemented in accordance with its provisions and the State Constitution, so as not to impair 
alleged implied contracts arising from the Redevelopment Law statutes which give rise to 
affordable housing obligations.”    

 
The Affordable Housing Coalition of San Diego County (the "Petitioner") alleges that the 

municipalities that now serve as successor agencies have failed to: (1) identify their respective 
redevelopment agencies’ past, unmet affordable housing development obligations, and (2) 
place such projects or needed funds, including deferrals and loans owed to their Low Moderate 
Income Housing Funds, on their initial Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules ("ROPS") as 
“enforceable obligations.” Petitioner claims that certain provisions of the Redevelopment Law 
(prior to the Dissolution Act) related to low and moderate income set-asides are obligations 
imposed by State law which created implied contracts between the State and the former 
redevelopment agencies, and now the successor agencies, which cannot be impaired and that, 
unless the ROPS of each successor agency identifies their former redevelopment agency’s 
past, unmet affordable housing obligations for each project area and includes projects to meet 
them, as well as repayment of all deferrals and loans owed to the Low Moderate Income 
Housing Funds, AB 26 will have disabled fulfillment of the above referenced obligations 
imposed by State law and impair the implied contracts arising from the Redevelopment Law's 
affordable housing statutes.  As a result, the action seeks a writ of mandate and declaratory 
relief from the court to have the alleged enforceable obligations listed on the ROPS and to have 
the Department of Finance recognize them as such. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-38- 

The litigation is in its early stages and the Successor Agency has not attempted to 
quantify the effect on Tax Revenues which could result from a result in favor of the Petitioner.  
Given the uncertainty of aspects of the current provisions of the Dissolution Act upon the 
housing set-aside under the Redevelopment Law as it existed prior to the Dissolution Act, the 
Successor Agency has caused to be prepared Tax Revenue projection tables, shown under the 
caption “PROJECTED TAX REVENUES AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE,” both with and 
without consideration of the housing set-aside.  In addition, the Successor Agency is of the 
opinion that any obligations a successful lawsuit would place upon it would be subordinate to 
bond debt service, given the priority of payments listed in the Dissolution Act. Specifically, 
Section 34183 (a)(2)(A) states that debt service payments on tax allocation bonds has priority 
over all other obligations listed on a ROPS. 

 
Senate Bill 1045 

 
Senate Bill 1045 adopted by the Legislature in connection with the State’s budget for 

fiscal year 2003-04 provided that the termination date of redevelopment plans may be extended 
by one year by reason of its Education Revenue Augmentation Fund (the “ERAF”) payment that 
redevelopment agencies were obligated to make under provisions of the 2003-04 budget 
legislation. The City Council has amended the Redevelopment Plan, in accordance with the Law 
as amended by Senate Bill 1045, to extend by one year the termination date of the 
Redevelopment Plan and by extension the last date to repay indebtedness.  

 
Senate Bill 1096 

 
Legislation adopted by Senate Bill 1096 in connection with the State’s 2004-05 budget 

provided that the termination dates and last dates to repay indebtedness of redevelopment 
plans with less than 20 years remaining may be extended by one year for each of the two ERAF 
payments that redevelopment agencies were obligated to make under other provisions of the 
2004-05 budget legislation. The Project Area is not eligible for such extension due to the 20-
year limitation. 

 
Statutory Tax Sharing  
 

Under former Redevelopment Law, some redevelopment agencies were allowed to enter 
into so called “pass-through agreements" with overlapping public agencies whereby the agency 
agreed to pay an affected taxing agency a portion of the tax increment the agency received in 
order to alleviate any financial burden or detriment caused by the redevelopment plan.  Under 
certain agreements, the obligations under the pass-through agreement have a priority interest in 
tax increment over the agency's obligations to use tax increment to pay bonds.   

 
The Original Agency was not allowed to enter into pass-through agreements because of 

statutory restrictions (“AB1290” legislation) imposed based upon the date of formation of the 
Project Area (post-1993).  

 
Pursuant to legislation, AB 1290, the Original Agency was required to make payments 

pursuant to Section 33607.5 of the Redevelopment Law to the affected taxing entities from tax 
increment generated in the Project Area pursuant to what is commonly referred to as “statutory 
tax sharing” and which represents a replacement methodology for the pre-1994 voluntary pass-
through agreements.  AB1290 establishes a specific schedule of payments to be made by 
agencies to affected taxing entities. Affected taxing entities are defined in Section 33353.2 of 
the Redevelopment Law as any governmental taxing agency that levied a property tax within the 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-39- 

project area in the fiscal year prior to the year in which the report establishing the base year 
assessed value is prepared pursuant to Section 33328. Section 33607.5 applies to 
redevelopment plans adopted on or after January 1, 1994 (and territory added by subsequent 
amendments thereto) and amendments to pre-1994 plans adding territory (although the section 
then only applies to the added territory). It specifically states that all amounts calculated 
pursuant to that section shall be calculated after the agency deducts the amount of tax 
increments deposited into its low- and moderate-income housing fund. 
 
 For treatment of Statutory Tax Sharing payments under the Dissolution Act, see 
"SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Pledge of Tax Revenues - Statutory Tax Sharing" above.   
 

Payments made under Section 33607.5 are to be allocated among the affected taxing 
entities in proportion to the percentage share of property taxes each affected taxing entity 
receives during the fiscal year the funds are allocated. (In other words, if the percentage shares 
of the taxing entities are changed in any given year, the payments are adjusted in accordance 
with the changes in percentage.) The tax sharing payments are based on a three tier formula.  
See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Sharing Statutes.”  

 
Payments to taxing entities under Tax Sharing Statutes have been subordinated to the 

obligation to pay the Series 2010 Bonds but have not been subordinated with respect to the 
Bonds. 

 
See Tables 10 and 11 under the caption “PROJECTED TAX REVENUES AND DEBT 

SERVICE COVERAGE” for the Successor Agency’s statutory tax sharing obligations.  See also 
APPENDIX B - FISCAL CONSULTANT’S REPORT.”   

 
Bonded Indebtedness 
 

Other than the 2010 Bonds, upon refunding of the Prior Bonds the Successor Agency 
currently has no outstanding bonded indebtedness.  The Indenture provides that the Successor 
Agency may incur loans, bonds, notes, advances or indebtedness secured by and payable from 
the Tax Revenues on parity with the Bonds, the 2010 Bonds and the other Parity Debt, but only 
for the purpose of refunding the Bonds or the 2010 Bonds or any future Parity Debt.  See 
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Additional Debt” and “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS 
OF THE INDENTURE - Issuance of Parity Debt” in Appendix B.   

 
See “DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE” herein for the future debt service requirements on 

the 2010 Bonds.   
 

 
Historic Tax Revenues 

 
The following table shows a five-year history of net Tax Revenues in the Project Area.   
 

TABLE 9 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-40- 

Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 
Historic Net Tax Revenues 

 
Category 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 

      
Tax Increment $8,142,393  $7,197,522  $6,624,550  $6,528,958  $7,509,458  
Supplemental Taxes 191,398  79,772  181,304  87,116  N/A 
Total Tax Increment (1) 8,333,791  7,277,294  6,805,854  6,616,074  7,509,458  
      
Liens on Tax Increment      
   Property Tax Administration Fees 76,719  95,762  94,777  113,622  116,153  
   Housing Set-Aside (2) 1,666,758  1,455,459  1,361,171  0 0 
   AB 1290 Tax Sharing (3) 1,686,211  1,458,932  1,361,170  1,323,215  1,548,497  

Net Tax Revenue $4,904,103  $4,267,141  $3,988,736  $5,179,237 $5,844,808 
  

(1) Reflects actual receipts based on the records of the Agency. 
(2) It appears that the housing set-aside is no longer required under the Dissolution Act, and so the Agency did not 

make a deposit to the housing fund in 2011-12 or 2012-13. 
(3) Required per Section 33607.5 of the Redevelopment Law. 
Source: Fraser & Associates.   
 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-41- 

PROJECTED TAX REVENUES AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 
 

Table 10 sets forth estimated Tax Revenues for Fiscal Year 2013-14, as determined by 
the Fiscal Consultant. 

 
TABLE 10 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 
Estimate of Tax Revenues for Fiscal Year 2013-14 (1) 

 

 

Excluding 
Housing Set-

Aside 
Taxable Value (1) 

Including 
Housing Set-

Aside 
Taxable Value (1) 

Local Secured   
  Land  $716,160,643  $716,160,643  
  Improvements 782,125,762  782,125,762  
  Personal Property 1,221,119  1,221,119  
Gross Local Secured 1,499,507,524  1,499,507,524  
  Exempt  (21,375,774)  (21,375,774)  
Net Local Secured 1,478,131,750  1,478,131,750  
   
State Assessed 0  0  
   
Unsecured   
  Land  0  0  
  Improvements 6,959,243  6,959,243  
  Personal Property 8,953,306  8,953,306  
Total Unsecured 15,912,549  15,912,549  
  Exempt (988,206)  (988,206)  
Net Unsecured 14,924,343  14,924,343  
   
Total Value 1,493,056,093  1,493,056,093  
Base Year Taxable Value (742,692,381)  (742,692,381)  
Incremental Taxable Value 750,363,712  750,363,712  
   
Tax Increment  7,503,637  7,503,637  
   
Liens on Tax Increment   
  Property Tax Administration Fees (2) 123,795  123,795  
  Housing Set-Aside (3) 0  1,500,727  
  Statutory Tax Sharing Payments (4) 1,573,020  1,573,020  
    
Tax Revenue $5,806,822 $4,306,095  

  
(1) Based on actual taxable values per San Diego County Auditor Controller. 
(2) Calculated at 1.6% of total tax increment. 
(3) Reflects 20% of total tax increment revenue.  The amount has not been reduced for the portion of bond 

debt service that can be paid from the Housing Set-Aside for the Bonds.  
(4) Required per Section 33607.5 of the Redevelopment Law.  
Source:  Fraser & Associates. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-42- 

The table below sets forth the projected Tax Revenues for the Project Area, along with a 
table showing the projected debt service on the Bonds and the 2010 Bonds.  Prior to the 
Dissolution Act, the Original Agency was required to deposit not less than 20% of the tax 
increment generated in the Project Area into a low and moderate income housing fund. 
Although not entirely clear, the Dissolution Act is interpreted to no longer require such a deposit, 
but the definition of pledged Tax Revenues contained in the Indenture only include the housing 
set-aside to the extent a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds were deposited into the housing 
fund. Due to this, the tables below, as well as the estimate of tax revenues in table above, 
shows the full housing set-aside deposit as included and as excluded.  The Original Agency had 
deposited 25% of its Prior Bond proceeds into the housing fund, which is being refunded by the 
Bonds, so a portion of the former housing set-aside is pledged to the repayment of the 2013 
Bonds per the Redevelopment Law as it existed prior to the Dissolution Act.  See "SECURITY 
FOR THE BONDS - Pledge of Tax Revenues" above.  

 
In projecting non-housing Tax Revenues, the Successor Agency assumed the following:  
 
• The tax rate is 1%. 

• Real property values have been held constant in 2014-15 and then increased based 
on a 2% inflation factor (the maximum inflation factor allowed).  No assurance can be 
given that actual growth will achieve the 1% or 2% projection.  

• There are no increases assumed due to new development. 

• Taxable value is reduced in 2014-15 by $19.2 million for the estimated impact of 
appeals. 

• The County administrative fee is equal to 1.6% of gross tax increment and will be 
paid from tax increment allocated to the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 
prior to allocation to the Successor Agency for payment of debt service. 

• Statutory tax sharing payments to taxing entities are made prior to debt service 
payments on the 2010 Bonds and the Bonds. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-43- 

TABLE 11 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 

Projected Tax Revenues - Dollars in Thousands 
Housing Set-Aside Excluded (1) 

 
Fiscal 
Year 

Ending 
Total  

Value (2) 

Value over 
Base of 

$742,692 
Total Tax 

Increment (3) 

Property 
Tax Admin 

Fees (4) 

Total 
Housing 

Set-Aside 

Statutory 
Tax  

Sharing (5) 
Net Tax 

Revenues 
2014 $1,493,056  $750,364  $7,504  $124  $0 $1,573  $5,807  
2015 1,473,839  731,147  7,311  121  0 1,513  5,678  
2016 1,503,132  760,440  7,604  125  0 1,612  5,867  
2017 1,533,011  790,319  7,903  130  0 1,720  6,053  
2018 1,563,488  820,795  8,208  135  0 1,832  6,240  
2019 1,594,574  851,881  8,519  141  0 1,947  6,432  
2020 1,626,281  883,589  8,836  146  0 2,063  6,627  
2021 1,658,623  915,931  9,159  151  0 2,182  6,826  
2022 1,691,612  948,920  9,489  157  0 2,304  7,029  
2023 1,725,260  982,568  9,826  162  0 2,428  7,236  
2024 1,759,582  1,016,890  10,169  168  0 2,554  7,447  
2025 1,794,590  1,051,898  10,519  174  0 2,683  7,663  
2026 1,830,298  1,087,606  10,876  179  0 2,814  7,883  
2027 1,866,720  1,124,028  11,240  185  0 2,948  8,107  
2028 1,903,871  1,161,179  11,612  192  0 3,085  8,335  
2029 1,941,765  1,199,072  11,991  198  0 3,224  8,569  
2030 1,980,416  1,237,724  12,377  204  0 3,375  8,798  
2031 2,019,841  1,277,148  12,771  211  0 3,528  9,033  
2032 2,060,054  1,317,361  13,174  217  0 3,685  9,272  
2033 2,101,071  1,358,379  13,584  224  0 3,844  9,516  
2034 2,142,909  1,400,217  14,002  231  0 4,045  9,726  
2035 2,185,583  1,442,891  14,429  238  0 4,250  9,941  
2036 2,229,111  1,486,419  14,864  245  0 4,459  10,160  
2037 2,273,510  1,530,817  15,308  253  0 4,672  10,384  
2038 2,318,796  1,576,104  15,761  260  0 4,889  10,612  
2039 2,364,988  1,622,296  16,223  268  0 5,111  10,844  
2040 2,412,105  1,669,412  16,694  275  0 5,337  11,082  

        
Cumulative Total $309,954 $5,114 $0 $83,676 $221,165 
     
(1) Although the Dissolution Act is interpreted to no longer require the housing set-aside, the definition of pledged Tax Revenues 
excludes the housing set-aside, except for a small portion that can be used to make payments on the 2013 Bonds. The total housing 
set-aside is shown above. 
(2) Prior Year Real Property held constant for 2014-15 and then increased by 2% per year. The value for 2014-15 has been 

reduced by the estimated impact of appeals. Includes the value of secured and unsecured personal property, and state-
assessed railroad and non-unitary property. No new development is included in the projections. 

(3) Based on the application of 1% tax rate to incremental taxable value.  
(4) Per SB 2557, reflects Project Area share of County's property tax administrative costs. Also includes estimate of County costs 
for the implementation of the Dissolution Act. 
(5) Required per the provisions of Section 33607.5 of the Redevelopment Law. 
Source:  Fraser Associates. 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-44- 

TABLE 12 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 

Projected Tax Revenues - Dollars in Thousands 
Housing Set-Aside Included (1) 

 
Fiscal 
Year 

Ending 
Total  

Value (2) 

Value over 
Base of 

$742,692 
Total Tax 

Increment (3) 

Property 
Tax Admin 

Fees (4) 

Total 
Housing 

Set-Aside 

Statutory 
Tax  

Sharing (5) 
Net Tax 

Revenues 
2014 1,493,056  $750,364  $7,504  $124  $1,501  $1,573  $4,306  
2015 1,473,839  731,147  7,311  121  1,462  1,513  4,215  
2016 1,503,132  760,440  7,604  125  1,521  1,612  4,346  
2017 1,533,011  790,319  7,903  130  1,581  1,720  4,472  
2018 1,563,488  820,795  8,208  135  1,642  1,832  4,599  
2019 1,594,574  851,881  8,519  141  1,704  1,947  4,728  
2020 1,626,281  883,589  8,836  146  1,767  2,063  4,860  
2021 1,658,623  915,931  9,159  151  1,832  2,182  4,994  
2022 1,691,612  948,920  9,489  157  1,898  2,304  5,131  
2023 1,725,260  982,568  9,826  162  1,965  2,428  5,271  
2024 1,759,582  1,016,890  10,169  168  2,034  2,554  5,414  
2025 1,794,590  1,051,898  10,519  174  2,104  2,683  5,559  
2026 1,830,298  1,087,606  10,876  179  2,175  2,814  5,707  
2027 1,866,720  1,124,028  11,240  185  2,248  2,948  5,859  
2028 1,903,871  1,161,179  11,612  192  2,322  3,085  6,013  
2029 1,941,765  1,199,072  11,991  198  2,398  3,224  6,170  
2030 1,980,416  1,237,724  12,377  204  2,475  3,375  6,323  
2031 2,019,841  1,277,148  12,771  211  2,554  3,528  6,478  
2032 2,060,054  1,317,361  13,174  217  2,635  3,685  6,637  
2033 2,101,071  1,358,379  13,584  224  2,717  3,844  6,799  
2034 2,142,909  1,400,217  14,002  231  2,800  4,045  6,926  
2035 2,185,583  1,442,891  14,429  238  2,886  4,250  7,055  
2036 2,229,111  1,486,419  14,864  245  2,973  4,459  7,187  
2037 2,273,510  1,530,817  15,308  253  3,062  4,672  7,322  
2038 2,318,796  1,576,104  15,761  260  3,152  4,889  7,460  
2039 2,364,988  1,622,296  16,223  268  3,245  5,111  7,600  
2040 2,412,105  1,669,412  16,694  275  3,339  5,337  7,743  

        
Cumulative Total $309,954 $5,114 $61,991 $83,676 $159,174 
     
(1) Although the Dissolution Act is interpreted to no longer require the housing set-aside, the definition of pledged Tax Revenues 

excludes the housing set-aside, except for a small portion that can be used to make payments on the 2013 Bonds. The total 
housing set-aside is shown above. 

(2) Prior Year Real Property held constant for 2014-15 and then increased by 2% per year. The value for 2014-15 has been 
reduced by the estimated impact of appeals. Includes the value of secured and unsecured personal property, and state-
assessed railroad and non-unitary property. No new development is included in the projections. 

(3) Based on the application of 1% tax rate to incremental taxable value.  
(4) Per SB 2557, reflects Project Area share of County's property tax administrative costs. Also includes estimate of County costs 

for the implementation of the Dissolution Act. 
(10) Required per the provisions of Section 33607.5 of the Redevelopment Law. 
Source:  Fraser Associates. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-45- 

TABLE 13 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 

Projected Debt Service Coverage- Excluding Housing Set-Aside 
(Based On Tax Revenue Projections Shown In Fiscal Consultant's Report) 

 

Fiscal Year 
Ending  
June 30 

Tax 
Revenues 

Available for 
Debt 

Service(1) 

 
2010  

Bonds Debt 
Service(2) 

 
 
 

Bonds Debt 
Service 

Total Parity 
Obligations 

Debt 
Service 

 
Coverage 

Ratio 
2014 $5,807 	   $1,275 	   	   	  
2015 5,678 	   1,273 	   	   	  
2016 5,867 	   1,275 	   	   	  
2017 6,053 	   1,278 	   	   	  
2018 6,240 	   1,279 	   	   	  
2019 6,432 	   1,279 	   	   	  
2020 6,627 	   1,278 	   	   	  
2021 6,826 	   1,286 	   	   	  
2022 7,029 	   1,283 	   	   	  
2023 7,236 	   1,279 	   	   	  
2024 7,447 	   1,289 	   	   	  
2025 7,663 	   1,283 	   	   	  
2026 7,883 	   1,285 	   	   	  
2027 8,107 	   1,290 	   	   	  
2028 8,335 	   1,290 	   	   	  
2029 8,569 	   1,293 	   	   	  
2030 8,798 	   1,295 	   	   	  
2031 9,033 	   1,295 	   	   	  
2032 9,272 	   1,299 	   	   	  
2033 9,516 	   1,302 	   	   	  
2034 9,726 	   2,430 	   	   	  
2035 9,941 	   2,430 	   	   	  
2036 10,160 	   2,430 	   	   	  
2037 10,384 	   2,428 	   	   	  
2038 10,612 	   2,426 	   	   	  
2039 10,844 	   2,429 	   	   	  
2040 11,082 	   2,431 	   	   	  

       
(1) Projected Net Revenues are based on projection contained in Fiscal Consultant’s Report. 
(2) Reflects debt service on a Bond year basis ending December 1. 

  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-46- 

 
TABLE 14 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Area 
Projected Debt Service Coverage- Including Housing Set-Aside 

(Based On Tax Revenue Projections Shown In Fiscal Consultant's Report) 
 

Fiscal Year 
Ending  
June 30 

Tax 
Revenues 

Available for 
Debt 

Service(1) 

 
2010  

Bonds Debt 
Service(2) 

 
 
 

Bonds Debt 
Service 

Total Parity 
Obligations 

Debt 
Service 

 
Coverage 

Ratio 
2014 $4,306 	   $1,275 	   	   	  
2015 4,215 	   1,273 	   	   	  
2016 4,346 	   1,275 	   	   	  
2017 4,472 	   1,278 	   	   	  
2018 4,599 	   1,279 	   	   	  
2019 4,728 	   1,279 	   	   	  
2020 4,860 	   1,278 	   	   	  
2021 4,994 	   1,286 	   	   	  
2022 5,131 	   1,283 	   	   	  
2023 5,271 	   1,279 	   	   	  
2024 5,414 	   1,289 	   	   	  
2025 5,559 	   1,283 	   	   	  
2026 5,707 	   1,285 	   	   	  
2027 5,859 	   1,290 	   	   	  
2028 6,013 	   1,290 	   	   	  
2029 6,170 	   1,293 	   	   	  
2030 6,323 	   1,295 	   	   	  
2031 6,478 	   1,295 	   	   	  
2032 6,637 	   1,299 	   	   	  
2033 6,799 	   1,302 	   	   	  
2034 6,926 	   2,430 	   	   	  
2035 7,055 	   2,430 	   	   	  
2036 7,187 	   2,430 	   	   	  
2037 7,322 	   2,428 	   	   	  
2038 7,460 	   2,426 	   	   	  
2039 7,600 	   2,429 	   	   	  
2040 7,743 	   2,431 	   	   	  

       
(1) Projected Net Revenues are based on projection contained in Fiscal Consultant’s Report. 
(2) Reflects debt service on a Bond year basis ending December 1. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-47- 

BONDOWNERS’ RISKS 
 

The following information should be considered by prospective investors in evaluating 
whether to invest in the Bonds. However, the following does not purport to be an exhaustive 
listing of risks and other considerations which may be relevant to investing in the Bonds and the 
order in which the following information is presented is not intended to reflect the relative 
importance of any such risks. 

 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 

 
The Dissolution Act provides that only those payments listed in a Recognized Obligation 

Payment Schedule may be made by a successor agency from the funds specified in the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  Before each six-month period, the Dissolution Act 
requires each successor agency to prepare and approve, and submit to the successor agency’s 
oversight board and the Department of Finance for approval, a Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule pursuant to which enforceable obligations (as defined in the Dissolution Act) of the 
successor agency are listed, together with the source of funds to be used to pay for each 
enforceable obligation.  Consequently, Tax Revenues will not be withdrawn from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund by the county auditor-controller and remitted to the 
Successor Agency without a duly approved and effective Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule” 
and “PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA – Property Tax Collection Procedures – 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.”  In the event the Successor Agency were to fail to 
file a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule with respect to a six-month period, the 
availability of Tax Revenues to the Successor Agency could be adversely affected for such 
period. 

 
Under the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund distribution provisions of the 

Dissolution Act, a county auditor-controller is to distribute funds for each six-month period in the 
following order specified in Section 34183(a) of the Dissolution Act: 

 
(i) first, subject to certain adjustments for subordinations to the extent 

permitted under the Dissolution Act (if any, as described above under “SECURITY FOR 
THE BONDS-Statutory Pass-Through Amounts”) and no later than each January 2 and 
June 1, to each local agency and school entity, to the extent applicable, amounts 
required for pass-through payments such entity would have received under provisions of 
the Redevelopment Law, as those provisions read on January 1, 2011, including 
negotiated pass-through agreements and statutory pass-through obligations; 

 
(ii) second, on each January 2 and June 1, to the successor agency for 

payments listed in its Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule, with debt service 
payments scheduled to be made for tax allocation bonds having the highest priority over 
payments scheduled for other debts and obligations listed on the Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule; 

 
(iii) third, on each January 2 and June 1, to the successor agency for the 

administrative cost allowance, as defined in the Dissolution Act; and 
 
(iv) fourth, on each January 2 and June 1, to taxing entities any moneys 

remaining in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund after the payments and 
transfers authorized by clauses (i) through (iii) in accordance with Section 34188, in an 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-48- 

amount proportionate to such taxing entity’s share of property tax revenues in the tax 
rate area in that fiscal year. 
 
If a successor agency does not submit a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 

within five business days of the date upon which the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
is to be used to determine the amount of property tax allocations and the Department of Finance 
does not provide a notice to the county auditor-controller to withhold funds from distribution to 
taxing entities, amounts in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for such six-month 
period would be distributed to taxing entities pursuant to clause (iv) above.   

 
With respect to the Bonds, the Successor Agency has covenanted to take all actions 

required under the Dissolution Act to insure the allocation and payment to it of the Tax 
Revenues for the payment of approved enforceable obligations, including without limitation the 
timely filing of its Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules with appropriate officials of the 
County, the Oversight Board, and the State. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedules."  

 
AB 1484 also adds new provisions to the Dissolution Act implementing certain penalties 

in the event a successor agency does not timely submit a Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule for a six-month period.  Specifically, a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule must 
be submitted by the successor agency to the oversight board, to the county auditor-controller 
and the Department of Finance no later than 90 days before the date of the next January 2 or 
June 1 property tax distribution with respect to each subsequent six-month period.  If a 
successor agency does not submit a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule by such 
deadlines, the city or county that established the redevelopment agency will be subject to a civil 
penalty equal to $10,000 per day for every day the schedule is not submitted to the Department 
of Finance.  Additionally, a successor agency’s administrative cost allowance is reduced by 25% 
if the successor agency does not submit an oversight board-approved Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule by the 80th day before the date of the next January 2 or June 1 property tax 
distribution, as applicable, with respect to the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for 
subsequent six-month periods.   

 
Syncora Litigation – Challenge to Dissolution Act 

 
With respect to California successor agencies and the Dissolution Act in general, on 

August 1, 2012, Syncora Guarantee Inc. and Syncora Capital Assurance Inc. (collectively, 
“Syncora”) filed a lawsuit against the State, the State Controller, the Director of Finance, and 
the Auditor-Controller of San Bernardino County on his own behalf and as the representative of 
all other County Auditors in the State (Superior Court of the State of California, County of 
Sacramento, Case No. 34-2012-80001215) (the “Syncora Lawsuit”).  Syncora are monoline 
financial guaranty insurers domiciled in the State of New York, and as such, provide credit 
enhancement on bonds issued by state and local governments and do not sell other kinds of 
insurance such as life, health, or property insurance.  Syncora provided bond insurance and 
other related insurance policies for bonds issued by former California redevelopment agencies.   

 
The complaint alleges that the Dissolution Act, and specifically the “Redistribution 

Provisions” thereof (i.e., California Health and Safety Code Sections 34172(d), 34174, 
34177(d), 34183(a)(4), and 34188) violate the “contract clauses” of the United States and 
California Constitutions (U.S. Const. art. 1, §10, cl.1; Cal. Const. art. 1, §9) because they 
unconstitutionally impair the contracts among the former redevelopment agencies, bondholders 
and Syncora.  The complaint also alleges that the Redistribution Provisions violate the “Takings 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-49- 

Clauses” of the United States and California Constitutions (U.S. Const. amend. V; Cal Const. 
art. 1 §19) because they unconstitutionally take and appropriate bondholders’ and Syncora’s 
contractual right to critical security mechanisms without just compensation.  Specifically, the 
complaint alleges that the security mechanism created by the irrevocable pledge of tax 
increment revenues to repay the redevelopment agency debts was a critical feature of the 
redevelopment bonds’ marketability in at least three manners: 

 
(i) tax increment revenues which have been previously irrevocably pledged are now 

subject to restrictive terms such as periodic Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules, 
oversight board approval, and Department of Finance approval, that unconstitutionally impair 
the contract providing for such pledge; 

 
(ii) excess tax increment revenues previously could be held by a redevelopment 

agency in reserve to protect against potential future shortfalls (in contrast to the provisions 
under the Dissolution Act that require the County Auditor-Controller to distribute surplus monies 
from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund amounts to taxing entities each six-month 
period); and 

 
(iii) the pre-Dissolution Act Redevelopment Law and bond indentures or trust 

agreements governing redevelopment bonds typically included requirements and covenants for 
the redevelopment agency to use surplus tax increment revenues received in excess of 
amounts required for debt service on redevelopment activities, which were calculated under the 
Redevelopment Law to stimulate growth and general increases in assessed valuation, and 
therefore increase additional security for the bonds, and such covenants have been 
substantially and unconstitutionally impaired by the Dissolution Act, in particular the 
Redistribution Provisions. 

 
The Syncora Lawsuit was brought as a petition for writ of mandate, complaint for 

declaratory relief, inverse condemnation and injunctive relief.  The injunctive relief sought 
includes an injunction enjoining the respondents from implementing enforcing, and/or carrying 
out the Redistribution Provisions, ordering respondents to immediately return all money remitted 
by successor agencies to local taxing agencies pursuant to the Redistribution Provisions, and 
ordering respondents to hold all future tax increment revenues in the Redevelopment Property 
Tax Trust Fund, or a similar fund, for the exclusive benefit of, and distribution to, the 
bondholders, until such a time when the bondholders are completely repaid.  

 
If Syncora were to be successful in obtaining the injunctive relief or writ of mandate 

sought or if the court in the Syncora Lawsuit were to determine that the Dissolution Act or the 
Redistribution Provisions or other provisions thereof unconstitutionally impaired the contracts 
between the former redevelopment agencies and the holders of interests in bonds issued by 
such agencies, it is possible that the mechanisms currently provided for under the Dissolution 
Act to provide for distribution of Tax Revenues to the Successor Agency for payment on the 
Bonds could be impeded and result in a delinquency or default in the timely payment of principal 
of, and interest on, the Bonds. 

 
The Successor Agency does not guarantee that the Syncora Lawsuit will not result in an 

outcome that may have a detrimental effect on the Successor Agency’s ability to timely pay debt 
service on the Bonds. However, the definition of Tax Revenues does incorporate “Prior Tax 
Revenues” in the event the Dissolution Act is overturned. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-50- 

On May 29, 2013, the Superior Court issued a preliminary ruling, in which it denied 
Syncora’s claims that the Dissolution Act unconstitutionally impaired its contracts on the 
grounds that those claims are premature; the court noted that Syncora had provided no 
evidence that successor agencies actually are unable to meet their obligations as they become 
due, or that successor agencies will be prevented from ultimately paying all redevelopment 
obligations. The Superior Court concluded that Syncora’s takings claims are not necessarily 
premature, but that an evidentiary hearing should be conducted to address those claims.  
Finally the superior court concluded that possible certification of a class of county auditor-
controllers was moot because the auditor-controllers have no role or duty in connection with the 
alleged takings or in providing compensation for those takings. 

 
Reduction in Taxable Value 

 
Tax Revenues received by the Successor Agency are determined by the amount of 

incremental taxable value in the Redevelopment Project allocable to the Redevelopment Project 
and the current rate or rates at which property in the Redevelopment Project is taxed.  The 
reduction of taxable values of property caused by economic factors beyond the Successor 
Agency’s control, such as a relocation out of the Redevelopment Project by one or more major 
property owners, or the transfer, pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 68, 
of a lower assessed valuation to property within the Redevelopment Project by a person 
displaced by eminent domain or similar proceedings, or the discovery of hazardous substances 
on a property within the Redevelopment Project (see “Hazardous Substances,” below) or the 
complete or partial destruction of such property caused by, among other eventualities, an 
earthquake (see “Natural Disasters,” below), flood, fire or other natural disaster, could cause a 
reduction in the Tax Revenues securing the Bonds.  Property owners may also appeal to the 
County Assessor for a reduction of their assessed valuations or the County Assessor could 
order a blanket reduction in assessed valuations based on then current economic conditions.  
See “THE PROJECT AREA - Appeals of Assessed Values.” 

 
Reduction in Inflationary Rate 

 
As described in greater detail below (see “LIMITATIONS ON TAX REVENUES”), Article 

XIIIA of the California Constitution provides that the full cash value base of real property used in 
determining taxable value may be adjusted from year to year to reflect the inflationary rate, not 
to exceed a 2% increase for any given year, or may be reduced to reflect a reduction in the 
consumer price index or comparable local data.  Such measure is computed on a calendar year 
basis.  Because Article XIIIA limits inflationary assessed value adjustments to the lesser of the 
actual inflationary rate or 2%, there have been years in which the assessed values were 
adjusted by actual inflationary rates, which were less than 2%.  Since Article XIIIA was 
approved, the annual adjustment for inflation has fallen below the 2% limitation several times: 

 
Fiscal Year Inflation Rate 

1983-84  1.000% 
1995-96  1.190 
1996-97  1.11% 
1999-00  1.850 
2004-05  1.867 
2010-11 (0.237) 
2011-12 0.753 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-51- 

The Successor Agency is unable to predict if any further adjustments to the full cash 
value base of real property within the Project Area, whether an increase or a reduction, will be 
realized in the future. 

 
 

Levy and Collection 
 
The Successor Agency has no independent power to levy and collect property taxes.  

Any reduction in the tax rate or the implementation of any constitutional or legislative property 
tax decrease could reduce the Tax Revenues and, accordingly, could have an adverse impact 
on the ability of the Successor Agency to make debt service payments on the Bonds.  Likewise, 
delinquencies in the payment of property taxes could have an adverse effect on the Successor 
Agency’s ability to make timely debt service payments on the Bonds.  The County currently 
allocates Tax Revenues collected with respect to unsecured property to the Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Fund, and subsequently to the Successor Agency, based upon the tax 
increment actually collected. 

 
State Budget Issues  

 
AB X1 26 and AB 1484 were enacted by the State Legislature and signed by the 

Governor as trailer bills necessary to implement provisions of the State’s budget acts for its 
fiscal years 2011-12 and 2012-13, respectively.  The 2011-12 State budget included projected 
State savings estimated to aggregate $1.7 billion in 2011-12 associated with AB X1 27, which 
would have allowed redevelopment agencies to continue in operation provided their establishing 
cities or counties agreed to make an aggregate $1.7 billion in payments to K-12 schools.  
However, AB X1 27 was found in December 2011 by the California Supreme Court to violate the 
State Constitution, which altered this budgetary plan of the State.  According to the State’s 
Summary of the 2012-13 State budget, AB 1484 implements a framework to transfer cash 
assets previously held by redevelopment agencies to cities, counties, and special districts to 
fund core public services, with assets transferred to schools offsetting State general fund costs 
(projected savings of $1.5 billion).  There can be no assurance that additional legislation will not 
be enacted in the future to additionally implement provisions relating to the State budget or 
otherwise that may affect successor agencies or former tax increment revenue, such as the Tax 
Revenues.  The full text of each State Assembly bill cited above may be obtained from the 
“Official California Legislative Information” website maintained by the Legislative Counsel of the 
State of California pursuant to State law, at the following web link: 
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/bilinfo.html. 

 
Information about the State budget and State spending is available at various State 

maintained websites.  Text of the 2012-13 Budget Summary, the current State budget, the 
Governor’s proposed budget for 2013-14 and other documents related to the State budget may 
be found at the website of the Department of Finance, www.dof.ca.gov.  A nonpartisan analysis 
of the budget is posted by the Legislative Analyst’s Office at www.lao.ca.gov.  In addition, 
various State official statements, many of which contain a summary of the current and past 
State budgets may be found at the website of the State Treasurer, www.treasurer.ca.gov.  

 
None of the websites or webpages referenced above is in any way incorporated into this 

Official Statement.  They are cited for informational purposes only.  The Successor Agency 
makes no representation whatsoever as to the accuracy or completeness of any of the 
information on such websites. 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-52- 

Natural Disasters 
 
A reduction of taxable values of property in the Project Area caused by economic factors 

beyond the Successor Agency’s control, such as the discovery of hazardous substances on one 
or more properties within the Project Area or the complete or partial destruction of such property 
caused by, among other eventualities, an earthquake, flood, fire or other natural disaster, could 
cause a reduction in the Tax Revenues securing the Bonds.  Such reduction of Tax Revenues 
could have an adverse effect on the Successor Agency’s ability to make timely payments of 
principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

 
Pursuant to California law, the County Assessor may determine that the then current 

market values require a general reduction in taxable value or a property owner may apply for a 
reduction of the property taxable values of such owner’s property by filing with the County 
Assessor, a written application in the form prescribed by the State Board of Equalization with 
the appropriate county assessment appeals board.  A reduction in property taxable values 
within the Project Area and the refund of taxes which may arise out of successful appeals by 
property owners would reduce the amount of Tax Revenues available for payment of the Bonds.  

 
Hazardous Substances 

 
An additional environmental condition that may result in the reduction in the assessed 

value of property would be the discovery of a hazardous substance that would limit the 
beneficial use of taxable property within the Project Area.  In general, the owners and operators 
of a property may be required by law to remedy conditions of the property relating to releases or 
threatened releases of hazardous substances.  The owner or operator may be required to 
remedy a hazardous substance condition of property whether or not the owner or operator has 
anything to do with creating or handling the hazardous substance.  The effect, therefore, should 
any of the property within the Project Area be affected by a hazardous substance, could be to 
reduce the marketability and value of the property by the costs of remedying the condition. 

 
Bankruptcy Risks 

 
The enforceability of the rights and remedies of the owners of the Bonds and the 

obligations of the Successor Agency may become subject to the following:  the federal 
bankruptcy code and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or similar 
laws relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, now or hereafter in 
effect; usual equitable principles which may limit the specific enforcement under state law of 
certain remedies:  the exercise by the United States of America of the powers delegated to it by 
the federal Constitution; and the reasonable and necessary exercise, in certain exceptional 
situations of the police power inherent in the sovereignty of the State of California and its 
governmental bodies in the interest of servicing a significant and legitimate public purpose.  
Bankruptcy proceedings, or the exercise of powers by the federal or state government, if 
initiated, could subject the owners of the Bonds to judicial discretion and interpretation of their 
rights in bankruptcy or otherwise and consequently may entail risks of delay, limitation, or 
modification of their rights. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-53- 

Secondary Market 
 
There can be no guarantee that there will be a secondary market for the Bonds, or, if a 

secondary market exists, that such Bonds can be sold for any particular price.  Occasionally, 
because of general market conditions or because of adverse history or economic prospects 
connected with a particular issue, secondary marketing practices in connection with a particular 
issue are suspended or terminated.  Additionally, prices of issues for which a market is being 
made will depend upon the then prevailing circumstances.  Such prices could be substantially 
different from the original purchase price.  

 
Acceleration on Default 

 
The principal due on the Bonds is subject to acceleration upon the occurrence of an 

Event of Default.  As a practical matter in the event of a payment default by the Successor 
Agency, it is unlikely the Successor Agency would have the financial resources to meet 
accelerated obligations.   No real or personal property in the Project Area is pledged to secure 
the Bonds, and it is not anticipated that the Successor Agency will have available moneys 
sufficient to redeem all of the Bonds in the event of a default.   
 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-54- 

LIMITATIONS ON TAX REVENUES 
 
Property Tax Limitations—Article XIIIA 

 
California voters, on June 6, 1978, approved an amendment (commonly known as both 

Proposition 13 and the Jarvis-Gann Initiative) to the California Constitution. This amendment, 
which added Article XIII A to the California Constitution, among other things, affects the 
valuation of real property for the purpose of taxation in that it defines the full cash value of 
property to mean “the county assessor’s valuation of real property as shown on the fiscal year 
1975-76 tax bill under full cash value, or thereafter, the appraised value of real property when 
purchased, newly constructed, or a change in ownership has occurred after the 1975 
assessment.” The full cash value may be adjusted annually to reflect inflation at a rate not to 
exceed two percent per year, or any reduction in the consumer price index or comparable local 
data, or any reduction in the event of declining property value caused by damage, destruction or 
other factors. The amendment further limits the amount of any ad valorem tax on real property 
to one percent of the full cash value except that additional taxes may be levied to pay debt 
service on indebtedness approved by the voters prior to July 1, 1978. In addition, an 
amendment to Article XIII was adopted in October 1986 by initiative which exempts any bonded 
indebtedness approved by two-thirds (55% in certain instances) of the votes cast by the voters 
for the acquisition or improvement of real property from the one percent limitation. 

 
On September 22, 1978, the California Supreme Court upheld Proposition 13 over 

challenges on several state and federal constitutional grounds (Amador Valley Joint Union 
School District v. State Board of Equalization). The Court reserved certain constitutional issues 
and the validity of legislation implementing the amendment for future determination in proper 
cases. 

 
In the general elections of 1986, 1988 and 1990, the voters of the State approved 

various measures which further amended Article XIII A. One such amendment generally 
provides that the purchase or transfer of (i) real property between spouses or (ii) the principal 
residence and the first $1,000,000 of the full cash value of other real property between parents 
and children, do not constitute a “purchase” or “change of ownership” triggering reassessment 
under Article XIII A. This amendment has reduced local property tax revenues. Other 
amendments permitted the Legislature to allow persons over 55 who sell their residence on or 
after November 5, 1986, to buy or build another of equal or lesser value within two years in the 
same county, to transfer the old residence’s assessed value to the new residence, and 
permitted the Legislature to authorize each county under certain circumstances to adopt an 
ordinance making such transfers of assessed value applicable to situations in which the 
replacement dwelling purchased or constructed after November 8, 1988, is located within the 
county and the original property is located in another county within California. 

 
In the October 1990 election, the voters approved additional amendments to Article XIII 

A permitting the State Legislature to extend the replacement dwelling provisions applicable to 
persons over 55 to severely disabled homeowners for replacement dwellings purchased or 
newly constructed on or after June 5, 1990, and to exclude from the definition of “new 
construction,” triggering reassessment, improvements to certain dwellings for the purpose of 
making the dwelling more accessible to severely disabled persons. In the November 1990 
election, the voters approved the amendment of Article XIII A to permit the State Legislature to 
exclude from the definition of “new construction” seismic retrofitting improvements or 
improvements utilizing earthquake hazard mitigation technologies constructed or installed in 
existing buildings after November 6, 1990. 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-55- 

 
Challenges to Article XIIIA 

 
The U.S. Supreme Court struck down as a violation of equal protection certain property 

tax assessment practices in West Virginia, which had resulted in vastly different assessments of 
similar properties. Since Proposition 13 provides that property may only be reassessed up to 
two percent per year, except upon change of ownership or new construction, recent purchasers 
may pay substantially higher property taxes than long-time owners of comparable property in a 
community. The Supreme Court in the West Virginia case expressly declined to comment in any 
way on the constitutionality of Proposition 13. 

 
Based on the decision in the West Virginia case, property owners in California brought 

three suits challenging the acquisition value assessment provisions of Article XIII A. Two cases 
involved residential property, and one case involved commercial property. In all three cases, 
State trial and appellate courts have upheld the constitutionality of Article XIII A’s assessment 
rules and concluded that the West Virginia case did not apply to California’s laws. On June 3, 
1991, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to hear the appeal in the challenge relating to commercial 
property, but the plaintiff subsequently withdrew its case. On June 18, 1992, the U.S. Supreme 
Court upheld the decision in Nordlinger v. Hahn, one of the challenges relating to residential 
property. 

 
Implementing Legislation 

 
Legislation enacted by the California Legislature to implement Article XIIIA (Statutes of 

1978, Chapter 292, as amended) provides that, notwithstanding any other law, local agencies 
may not levy any property tax, except to pay debt service on indebtedness approved by the 
voters prior to July 1, 1978, and that each county will levy the maximum tax permitted by Article 
XIIIA.  

 
The apportionment of property taxes in fiscal years after 1978-79 has been revised 

pursuant to Statutes of 1979, Chapter 282 which provides relief funds from State moneys 
beginning in fiscal year 1978-79 and is designed to provide a permanent system for sharing 
State taxes and budget surplus funds with local agencies. Under Chapter 282, cities and 
counties receive about one-third more of the remaining property tax revenues collected under 
Proposition 13 instead of direct State aid. School districts receive a correspondingly reduced 
amount of property taxes, but receive compensation directly from the State and are given 
additional relief.  

 
Future assessed valuation growth allowed under Article XIIIA (new construction, change 

of ownership, 2% annual value growth) will be allocated on the basis of “situs” among the 
jurisdictions that serve the tax rate area within which the growth occurs except for certain utility 
property assessed by the State Board of Equalization which is allocated by a different method 
discussed herein. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-56- 

Unitary Property 
 
Assembly Bill 454 Statutes of 1987, Chapter 921 (“AB 454”), provided that revenues 

derived from Unitary Property (consisting mostly of operations property owned by utility 
companies), commencing with fiscal year 1988-89, will be allocated as follows: (1) for revenues 
generated from the one percent tax rate, (a) each jurisdiction, including redevelopment project 
areas, will receive a percentage up to 102% of its prior year State-assessed unitary revenue; 
and (b) if county-wide revenues generated from Unitary Property are greater than 102% of the 
previous year’s revenues, each jurisdiction will receive a percentage share of the excess unitary 
revenues by a specified formula, and (2) for revenue generated from the application of the debt 
service tax rate to county-wide unitary taxable value, each jurisdiction’s annual debt service 
requirements and the percentage of property taxes received by each jurisdiction from unitary 
property taxes. This provision applies to all Unitary Property except railroads whose valuation 
will continue to be allocated to individual tax rate areas. 

 
The provisions of AB 454 do not constitute an elimination of assessment of any State-

assessed properties nor a revision of the method of assessing utilities by the State Board of 
Equalization. Generally, AB 454 allows valuation growth or decline of Unitary Property to be 
shared by all jurisdictions within a county. 

 
On February 1, 1991, the Superior Court for the County of Sacramento issued a 

Statement of Decision in AT&T Communications of California, et al. v. State Board of 
Equalization which reduced the valuation of certain unitary property owned by AT&T for property 
tax purposes. Under the decision, the valuation method used by the State Board of Equalization 
to assess unitary public utility property was declared illegal and a new method of valuation, 
resulting in significantly lower values and therefore significantly lower potential property tax 
revenues, was imposed. The effect on AT&T’s statewide assessed value was to reduce it from 
approximately $1,750,000,000 to approximately $1,100,000,000. As a result of this case, on 
May 1, 1992, 57 of California’s 58 counties, the State Board of Equalization and a number of 
other utility companies whose unitary property valuations could be affected by the principles 
announced in the Superior Court decision entered into a settlement agreement. On July 14, 
1993, the Superior Court for the County of Sacramento entered a judgment validating the 
settlement agreement. 

 
Although the settlement agreement is complex and extensive, its substance is 

represented by the signatory public utilities’ agreement (except AT&T) to abandon their right to 
refunds since 1983 in return for lowered assessed valuations for the next eight fiscal years 
pursuant to an agreed formula. 

 
To administer the allocation of unitary tax revenues to redevelopment agencies, the 

County no longer includes the taxable value of utilities as part of the reported taxable values of 
project areas, therefore, the base year values of project areas have been reduced by the 
amount of utility value that existed originally in the base year.  

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-57- 

Property Tax Collection Procedures 
 
Classifications. In California, property which is subject to ad valorem taxes is classified 

as “secured” or “unsecured.” Secured and unsecured property are entered on separate parts of 
the assessment roll maintained by the county assessor. The secured classification includes 
property on which any property tax levied by the County becomes a lien on that property 
sufficient, in the opinion of the county assessor, to secure payment of the taxes. Every tax which 
becomes a lien on secured property has priority over all other liens on the secured property, 
regardless of the time of the creation of other liens. A tax levied on unsecured property does not 
become a lien against unsecured property, but may become a lien on certain other property 
owned by the taxpayer. 

 
Collections. The method of collecting delinquent taxes is substantially different for the 

two classifications of property. The taxing authority has four ways of collecting unsecured 
property taxes in the absence of timely payment by the taxpayer: (1) a civil action against the 
taxpayer; (2) filing a certificate in the office of the county clerk specifying certain facts in order to 
obtain a judgment lien on certain property of the taxpayer; (3) filing a certificate of delinquency 
for record in the county recorder’s office, in order to obtain a lien on certain property of the 
taxpayer; and (4) seizure and sale of the personal property, improvements or possessory 
interests belonging or assessed to the assessee. 

 
The exclusive means of enforcing the payment of delinquent taxes with respect to 

property on the secured roll is the sale of property securing the taxes for the amount of taxes 
which are delinquent. 

 
Penalties. A 10% penalty is added to delinquent taxes which have been levied with 

respect to property on the secured roll. In addition, property on the secured roll on which taxes 
are delinquent is declared in default on or about June 30 of the fiscal year. Such property may 
thereafter be redeemed by payment of the delinquent taxes and a delinquency penalty, plus a 
redemption penalty of 1.5% per month to the time of redemption and a $15 Redemption Fee. If 
taxes are unpaid for a period of five years or more, the property is recorded in a “Power to Sell” 
status and is subject to sale by the county tax collector. A 10% penalty also applies to the 
delinquent taxes on property on the unsecured roll, and further, an additional penalty of 1.5% 
per month accrues with respect to such taxes beginning the first day of the third month following 
the delinquency date. 

 
Delinquencies. The valuation of property is determined as of January 1 each year and 

equal installments of taxes levied upon secured property become delinquent on the following 
December 10 and April 10. Taxes on unsecured property are due January 1. Unsecured taxes 
enrolled by July 31, if unpaid, are delinquent August 31 at 5:00 p.m. and are subject to penalty; 
unsecured taxes added to the roll after July 31, if unpaid, are delinquent on the last day of the 
month succeeding the month of enrollment. 

 
Supplemental Assessments. Legislation enacted in 1983 (Chapter 498, Statutes of 

1983) provides for the supplemental assessment and taxation of property as of the occurrence 
of a change of ownership or completion of new construction. 

 
Chapter 498 provided increased revenue to redevelopment agencies to the extent that 

supplemental assessments of new construction or changes of ownership occur within the 
boundaries of redevelopment projects subsequent to the January 1 lien date. To the extent such 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-58- 

State supplemental assessments occur within the Project Area, the Tax Revenues for the 
Project Area may increase. 

 
Tax Collection Fees. In 1990, the State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 2557 (Chapter 

466, Statutes of 1990) (“SB 2557”) which allows counties to charge for the cost of assessing, 
collecting and allocating property tax revenues to local government jurisdictions on a prorated 
basis. Two recent decisions have interpreted the provisions of SB 2557 and have upheld the 
inclusion of redevelopment agencies as a local government agency which must share the cost 
of property tax administration. The 1992 enactment of Senate Bill 1559 (Chapter 697) and the 
decision of the California Court of Appeal in Arcadia Redevelopment agency v. Ikemoto have 
clarified that redevelopment agencies, such as the Original Agency, are to share in the cost of 
property tax administration charged by most California counties, including the County.  

 
Appropriations Limitations—Article XIIIB  

 
On November 6, 1979, California voters approved Proposition 4, the so-called Gann 

Initiative, which added Article XIIIB to the California Constitution. The principal effect of Article 
XIIIB is to limit the annual appropriations of the State and any city, county, school district, 
authority or other political subdivision of the State to the level of appropriations for the prior 
fiscal year, as adjusted for changes in the cost of living, population and services rendered by the 
government entity. 

 
Effective November 30, 1980, the California Legislature added Section 33678 to the 

Redevelopment Law which provided that the allocation of taxes to a redevelopment agency for 
the purpose of paying principal of, or interest on, loans, advances, or indebtedness will not be 
deemed the receipt by such redevelopment agency of proceeds of taxes levied by or on behalf 
of the redevelopment agency within the meaning of Article XIIIB, nor will such portion of taxes 
be deemed receipt of taxes by, or an appropriation subject to the limitation of, any other public 
body within the meaning or for the purpose of the Constitution and laws of the State, including 
Section 33678 of the Redevelopment Law. 

 
Exclusion of Tax Revenues for General Obligation Bonds Debt Service 

 
An initiative to amend the California Constitution entitled “Property Tax Revenues 

Redevelopment Agencies” was approved by California voters at the November 8, 1988 general 
election. Under prior law, a redevelopment agency using tax increment revenue received 
additional property tax revenue whenever a local government increased its property tax rate to 
pay off its general obligation bonds. This initiative amended the California Constitution to allow 
the California Legislature to prohibit redevelopment agencies from receiving any of the property 
tax revenues raised by increased property tax rates imposed by local governments to make 
payments on their bonded indebtedness.  

 
The initiative only applies to tax rates levied to finance general obligation bonds 

approved by the voters on or after January 1, 1989. Any revenue reduction to redevelopment 
agencies would depend on the number and value of the general obligation bonds approved by 
voters in prior years, which tax rate will reduce due to increased valuation subject to the tax or 
the retirement of the indebtedness.  

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-59- 

Proposition 218 
 
On November 5, 1996, California voters approved Proposition 218-Voter Approval for 

Local Government Taxes—Limitation on Fees, Assessments, and Charges-Initiative 
Constitutional Amendment. Proposition 218 added Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the California 
Constitution, imposing certain vote requirements and other limitations on the imposition of new 
or increased taxes, assessments and property-related fees and charges. Tax Revenues 
securing the Bonds are derived from property taxes which are outside the scope of taxes, 
assessments and property-related fees and charges which were limited by Proposition 218. 

 
AB 1290 

 
In 1993, the California Legislature enacted Assembly Bill 1290 (“AB 1290”) which 

contained several significant changes in the Redevelopment Law. Among the changes made by 
AB 1290 was a provision that limits the period of time for incurring and repaying loans, 
advances and indebtedness payable from tax increment revenues. In general, a redevelopment 
plan may terminate not more than 40 years following the date of original adoption, and loans, 
advances and indebtedness may be repaid during a period extending not more than 10 years 
following the date of termination of the redevelopment plan. See “THE PROJECT AREA—
Redevelopment Plan Limitations.” 

 
The Redevelopment Plan is fully in compliance with AB 1290. 
 

Future Initiatives and Legislation 
 
Article XIIIA, Article XIIIB and certain other propositions affecting property tax levies 

were each adopted as measures which qualified for the ballot pursuant to California’s initiative 
process. From time to time other initiative measures and legislation could be adopted, further 
affecting Successor Agency revenues or the Successor Agency’s ability to expend revenues. 

 
Low and Moderate Income Housing 

 
Chapter 1337, Statutes of 1976, added Sections 33334.2 and 33334.3 to the 

Redevelopment Law requiring redevelopment agencies to set aside not less than 20% of all tax 
increment revenues allocated to redevelopment agencies from redevelopment project areas 
adopted after December 31, 1976, in a low- and moderate-income housing fund to be expended 
for authorized low- and moderate-income housing purposes. Amounts on deposit in the low- 
and moderate-income housing fund could be applied to pay debt service on bonds, loans or 
advances of redevelopment agencies to provide financing for such low- and moderate-income 
housing purposes. 

 
Under the Dissolution Act, moneys deposited into each successor agency's 

Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund include funds formerly required to be deposited into a 
set-aside fund established by each former redevelopment agency for low and moderate income 
housing. Although not entirely clear, the Dissolution Act is interpreted to no longer require such 
a deposit, but uncertainly exists as to the current availability of the former housing moneys to 
pay principal or interest on the Bonds under the Dissolution Act.  See "SECURITY FOR THE 
BONDS - Pledge of Tax Revenues" above. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-60- 

Statement of Indebtedness 
 
Prior to adoption of the Dissolution Act, Section 33675 of the Redevelopment Law 

required the Original Agency to file not later than the first day of October of each year with the 
County Auditor-Controller a statement of indebtedness certified by the chief fiscal officer of the 
Original Agency for each redevelopment plan which provides for the allocation of taxes (i.e., the 
Improvement Plan).  The statement of indebtedness was required to contain the date on which 
the bonds were delivered, the principal amount, term, purposes and interest rate of the bonds 
and the outstanding balance and amount due on the bonds.  Similar information was required to 
be given for each loan, advance or indebtedness that the Original Agency had incurred or 
entered into which is payable from tax increment.  Section 33675 also provided that payments 
of tax increment revenues from the County Auditor-Controller to the Original Agency could not 
exceed the amounts shown on the Original Agency’s statement of indebtedness.   

 
The Dissolution Act eliminates this requirement and provides that, commencing on the 

date the first Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule is valid thereunder, the Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule supersedes the statement of indebtedness previously required 
under the Redevelopment Law, and commencing from such date, the statement of 
indebtedness will no longer be prepared nor have any effect under the Redevelopment Law. 

 
 

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS 
 

Legal Opinions 
 
The legal opinion of Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, San Francisco, 

California, as Bond Counsel, approving the validity of the Bonds, will be made available to 
purchasers at the time of original delivery of the Bonds and the proposed form thereof appears 
in Appendix E hereto. Bond Counsel’s employment as bond counsel is limited to a review of the 
legal proceedings required for the authorization of the Bonds and to rendering the opinion set 
forth in Appendix E hereto.  Copies of such approving opinion will be available at the time of 
delivery of the Bonds.  Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation is also serving as Disclosure 
Counsel.  Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Successor Agency by Kane, Ballmer 
& Berkman, San Diego, California, as special counsel to the Successor Agency. 

 
Payment of the fees and expenses of Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel is 

contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds. 
 

Enforceability of Remedies 
 
The remedies available to the Trustee and to the registered owners of the Bonds upon 

an event of default under the Indenture and any other document described herein are in many 
respects dependent upon regulatory and judicial actions which are often subject to discretion 
and delay. Under existing law and judicial decisions, the remedies provided for under such 
documents may not be readily available or may be limited. The various legal opinions to be 
delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds will be qualified to the extent that the 
enforceability of the legal documents with respect to the Bonds are subject to limitations 
imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of 
creditors generally and by equitable remedies and proceedings generally. 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-61- 

RATING 
 
The Bonds have received the rating of “___” by Standard & Poor’s Investors Services 

(“S&P”). Such rating reflects only the views of S&P’s, and an explanation of the significance of 
such rating may be obtained from S&P’s.  

 
There is no assurance that such rating will be retained for any given period of time or 

that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating agency if, in the 
judgment of such rating agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or 
withdrawal of any rating obtained may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. 

 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
 
The Successor Agency has covenanted for the benefit of holders and beneficial owners 

of the Bonds to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the 
Successor Agency by not later than nine months following the end of the Successor Agency’s 
Fiscal Year (which reporting date would be March 31), commencing with the report for the 2012-
13 Fiscal Year (the “Annual Report”), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain 
enumerated events. The Annual Report notices of significant events will be filed by the 
Successor Agency with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The specific nature of the 
information to be contained in the Annual Report or the notices of significant events is set forth 
in the Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate in Appendix F hereto. These covenants have 
been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12(b)(5). See 
APPENDIX F — “FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE.”  

 
The Original Agency had never failed to comply in all material respects with any previous 

undertakings with regard to said Rule to provide annual reports or notices of material events. 
[CONFIRM] 

 
 
 

ABSENCE OF LITIGATION 
 
At the time of delivery of and payment for the Bonds, the Successor Agency will certify 

that, except as disclosed in this Official Statement, to its best knowledge there is no litigation, 
action, suit, proceeding or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, governmental 
agency or body, pending against or threatened against the Successor Agency in any way 
affecting the existence of the Successor Agency or the titles of its officers to their respective 
offices or seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Bonds, the 
application of the proceeds thereof in accordance with the Indenture, or the collection or 
application of Tax Revenues pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, or the pledge thereof, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability 
of the Bonds, the Indenture, or any action of the Successor Agency contemplated by any of said 
documents, or in any way contesting the completeness or accuracy of this Official Statement or 
the powers of the Successor Agency or its authority with respect to the Indenture or any action 
of the Successor Agency contemplated by said document, or which would adversely affect the 
exclusion of interest paid on the Bonds from gross income for Federal income tax purposes or 
the exemption of interest paid on the Bonds from California personal income taxation, nor, to the 
knowledge of the Successor Agency, is there any basis therefor. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-62- 

 
TAX MATTERS 

 
In the opinion of Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, San Francisco, California, 

Bond Counsel, subject, however to the qualifications set forth below, under existing law, the 
interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and such 
interest is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax 
imposed on individuals and corporations, provided, however, that, for the purpose of computing 
the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations (as defined for federal income tax 
purposes), such interest is taken into account in determining certain income and earnings. 

 
The opinions set forth in the preceding paragraph are subject to the condition that the 

Successor Agency comply with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the “Tax Code”) that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds.  
The Successor Agency has covenanted to comply with each such requirement.  Failure to 
comply with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of such interest in gross 
income for federal income tax purposes to be retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  

 
If the initial offering price to the public (excluding bond houses and brokers) at which a 

Bond is sold is less than the amount payable at maturity thereof, then such difference 
constitutes “original issue discount” for purposes of federal income taxes and State of California 
personal income taxes.  If the initial offering price to the public (excluding bond houses and 
brokers) at which a Bond is sold is greater than the amount payable at maturity thereof, then 
such difference constitutes “original issue premium” for purposes of federal income taxes and 
State of California personal income taxes.  De minimis original issue discount and original issue 
premium is disregarded.  

 
Under the Tax Code, original issue discount is treated as interest excluded from federal 

gross income and exempt from State of California personal income taxes to the extent properly 
allocable to each owner thereof subject to the limitations described in the first paragraph of this 
section.  The original issue discount accrues over the term to maturity of the Bond on the basis 
of a constant interest rate compounded on each interest or principal payment date (with straight-
line interpolations between compounding dates). The amount of original issue discount accruing 
during each period is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain upon 
disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bond.  The Tax Code 
contains certain provisions relating to the accrual of original issue discount in the case of 
purchasers of the Bonds who purchase the Bonds after the initial offering of a substantial 
amount of such maturity.  Owners of such Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with 
respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Bonds with original issue discount, including 
the treatment of purchasers who do not purchase in the original offering, the allowance of a 
deduction for any loss on a sale or other disposition, and the treatment of accrued original issue 
discount on such Bonds under federal individual and corporate alternative minimum taxes. 

 
Under the Tax Code, original issue premium is amortized on an annual basis over the 

term of the Bond (said term being the shorter of the Bond’s maturity date or its call date).  The 
amount of original issue premium amortized each year reduces the adjusted basis of the owner 
of the Bond for purposes of determining taxable gain or loss upon disposition.  The amount of 
original issue premium on a Bond is amortized each year over the term to maturity of the Bond 
on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded on each interest or principal payment date 
(with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates).  Amortized Bond premium is not 
deductible for federal income tax purposes.  Owners of premium Bonds, including purchasers 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

-63- 

who do not purchase in the original offering, should consult their own tax advisors with respect 
to State of California personal income tax and federal income tax consequences of owning such 
Bonds. 

 
In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is exempt from California 

personal income taxes. 
 
Owners of the Bonds should also be aware that the ownership or disposition of, or the 

accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds may have federal or state tax consequences other 
than as described above.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any federal or state 
tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds other than as expressly described above. 

 
 

UNDERWRITING 
 
The Bonds will be purchased by _____________ (the “Underwriter”) at the purchase 

price of $__________ (which is the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, less an 
underwriting discount of $__________, less original issue discount of $__________). 

 
The initial public offering prices stated on the cover of this Official Statement may be 

changed from time to time by the Underwriter. The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to 
certain dealers, banks acting as agents and others at prices lower than said public offering 
prices. 

 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
The purpose of this Official Statement is to supply information to prospective buyers of 

the Bonds. Quotations from, and summaries and explanations of, the Indenture and other 
documents and statutes contained herein do not purport to be complete, and reference is made 
to such documents, Indenture and statutes for full and complete statements of their provisions. 

 
Unless otherwise noted, all information contained in this Official Statement pertaining to 

the Successor Agency and the Project Area has been furnished by the Successor Agency. Any 
statement in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so 
stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not to 
be construed as a contract or agreement between the Successor Agency and the purchasers or 
registered owners of any of the Bonds. 

 
The execution and delivery of this Official Statement has been duly authorized by the 

Successor Agency. 
 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
 
 
 
By           

Executive Director 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

A-1 

APPENDIX A 
 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE  
SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR THE  

 FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

B-1 

APPENDIX B 
 

FISCAL CONSULTANT’S REPORT 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

C-1 

APPENDIX C 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE CITY AND SAN DIEGO COUNTY 
 

 
The information regarding the City set forth in this Appendix A is for background 

informational purposes only.  The City is not in any way obligated to pay debt service on the 
Bonds from its own funds. 

 
General 

 
The City is located on the coast of Southern California in San Diego County about 14 

miles south of downtown San Diego and 132 miles south of Los Angeles.  It is bordered by 
Tijuana, Mexico to the south, Coronado, California to the north, San Diego Bay to the east and 
the Pacific Ocean to the West.  City limits cover approximately 4.5 square miles and the City’s 
estimated population was 26,496 as of January 1, 2013.  

 
San Diego County is California’s fifth largest county, covering approximately 6,000 

square miles. It is located in the geographic center of the State and is the nation’s leading crop-
producing county. 

 
Population  
 

Population figures for the City, San Diego County and the State of California for the last 
five years are shown in the following table, as of January 1. 

 
CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 

Population Estimates 
Calendar Years 2009 through 2013 

 
Calendar City of County State of 

Year Imperial Beach San Diego California 
2009 26,283 3,064,436 36,966,713 
2010 26,394 3,091,579 37,223,900 
2011 26,437 3,115,810 37,427,946 
2012 26,483 3,128,734 37,668,804 
2013 26,496 3,150,178 37,966,471 

    
Source: Department of Finance estimates (as of January 1). 

 
Commercial Activity 
 

In 2009, the State Board of Equalization converted the business codes of sales and use 
tax permit holders to North American Industry Classification System codes. As a result of the 
coding change, retail stores data for 2009 and after is not comparable to that of prior years. 
 

Total taxable sales during the first quarter of calendar year 2012 in the City were 
reported to be $18,070,000, a 12.4% increase over the total taxable sales of $16,074,000 
reported during the first quarter of calendar year 2011.  The number of establishments selling 
merchandise subject to sales tax and the valuation of taxable transactions in the City is 
presented in the following table.  Annual figures for 2012 are not yet available. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

C-2 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
Taxable Retail Sales 

Number of Permits and Valuation of Taxable Transactions 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 
 Retail Stores  Total All Outlets 
 
 

 
Number 

of Permits 

  
Taxable 

Transactions 

  
Number 

of Permits 

  
Taxable 

Transactions 
2007 223 $68,347  382 $72,336 
2008 226 66,584  375 70,822 
2009(1) 255 59,456  344 64,238 
2010(1) 263 64,779  354 68,976 
2011(1) 248 66,691  333 70,228 

     
(1) Not comparable to prior years. “Retail” category now includes “Food Services.” 
Source:  State Board of Equalization. 
 
In 2009, the State Board of Equalization converted the business codes of sales and use 

tax permit holders to North American Industry Classification System codes. As a result of the 
coding change, retail stores data for 2009 and after is not comparable to that of prior years. 

 
Total taxable sales during the first quarter of calendar year 2012 in the County were 

reported to be $11,255,431,000 a 8.0% increase over the total taxable sales of $10,421,128,000 
reported during the first quarter of calendar year 2011.  The number of establishments selling 
merchandise subject to sales tax and the valuation of taxable transactions in the County is 
presented in the following table. Annual figures are not yet available for 2012. 

 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY 
Taxable Retail Sales 

Number of Permits and Valuation of Taxable Transactions 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 
 Retail Stores  Total All Outlets 
 
 

 
Number 

of Permits 

  
Taxable 

Transactions 

  
Number 

of Permits 

  
Taxable 

Transactions 
2007 40,011 $34,038,545  85,341 $47,485,988 
2008 41,695 31,715,672  87,050 45,329,136 
2009(1) 52,808 27,958,518  80,595 39,728,657 
2010(1) 55,462 29,475,489  83,194 41,623,636 
2011(1) 56,723 31,985,292  83,971 45,090,382 

     
(1) Not comparable to prior years. “Retail” category now includes “Food Services.” 
Source:  State Board of Equalization. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

C-3 

Employment and Industry 
 

The unemployment rate in the San Diego County was 7.3% in June 2013, up from a 
revised 6.8% in May 2013, and below the year-ago estimate of 9.3%.  This compares with an 
unadjusted unemployment rate of 8.8%  for California and 7.8% for the nation during the same 
period. The City is included in the San Diego-Carlsbad-San Marcos Metropolitan Statistical Area 
(MSA), which includes all of San Diego County.  

 
The table below provides information about employment by industry type for San Diego 

County for calendar years 2009 through 2013, as of January.  
 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY MSA 
Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment 

(Annual Averages) 
 

 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Civilian Labor Force (1) 1,554,100 1,558,700 1,574,000 1,584,300 1,602,500 
Employment 1,423,900 1,388,400 1,408,900 1,433,400 1,464,500 
Unemployment 130,300 170,300 165,200 150,900 138,000 
Unemployment Rate 8.4% 10.9% 10.5% 9.5% 8.6% 
      
Wage and Salary Employment: (2)      
Agriculture 9,100 9,700 9,900 9,000 8,900 
Mining and Logging 400 400 400 400 400 
Construction 66,000 55,700 53,600 54,100 55,700 
Manufacturing 101,000 92,200 92,800 92,500 92,500 
Wholesale Trade 42,100 38,700 40,600 41,600 42,800 
Retail Trade 134,100 129,900 131,500 136,400 135,700 
Transportation, Warehousing and 
Utilities 27,900 26,200 26,100 26,300 28,200 
Information 30,500 25,700 24,400 24,400 24,700 
Finance and Insurance 44,500 41,600 41,500 42,900 43,700 
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 27,100 25,400 25,400 25,300 25,600 
Professional and Business Services 211,700 201,900 208,000 207,100 218,200 
Educational and Health Services 141,500 144,400 147,400 151,000 156,400 
Leisure and Hospitality 152,600 147,300 148,300 151,300 156,000 
Other Services 46,300 45,500 45,700 47,200 49,400 
Federal Government 42,600 45,500 46,600 46,700 46,700 
State Government 42,300 42,200 42,900 42,500 42,700 
Local Government 141,300 136,800 140,600 137,500 138,500 
Total, All Industries (3) 1,261,000 1,209,100 1,225,700 1,236,200 1,266,100 
    
(1) Labor force data is by place of residence; includes self-employed individuals, unpaid family workers, 

household domestic workers, and workers on strike. 
(2) Industry employment is by place of work; excludes self-employed individuals, unpaid family workers, 

household domestic workers, and workers on strike. 
(3) Totals may not add due to rounding. 

Source: State of California Employment Development Department. 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

C-4 

Major Employers 
 
The major employers as of July 2013 in the County are shown below. 
 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY 
Major Employers 

July 2013 
 

Employer Name Location Industry 
32nd St Naval Station  San Diego  Federal Government-National Security 
Barona Casino  Lakeside  Casinos 
Barona Resort  Lakeside  Resorts 
General Dynamics NASSCO  San Diego  Ship Builders & Repairers (Mfrs) 
Hairspray  San Diego  Cosmetics & Perfumes-Retail 
Kaiser Permanente  San Diego  Clinics 
Kaiser Permanente Medical Grp  San Diego  Hospitals 
Kyocera Communications Inc  San Diego  Electronic Equipment & Supplies-Mfrs 
Marine Corps Recruit Depot  San Diego  Military Bases 
Merchants Building Maintenance  San Diego  Janitor Service 
Palomar Health Downtown 
Campus  

Escondido  Hospitals 

Palomar Pomerado Health Rehab  Escondido  Rehabilitation Services 
San Diego County Sheriff  Santee  Police Departments 
San Diego Naval Medical Ctr  San Diego  Military Bases 
Scripps Clinic  La Jolla  Physicians & Surgeons 
Scripps Research Institute  La Jolla  Research Service 
Sea World San Diego  San Diego  Amusement & Theme Parks 
Sharp Grossmont Hospital  La Mesa  Hospitals 
Sharp Mary Birch Hosp-Women  San Diego  Hospitals 
Sharp Memorial Hospital  San Diego  Hospitals 
Sony Electronics Inc  San Diego  Audio-Visual Equipment Manufacturers 
Sycuan Casino  El Cajon  Casinos 
Tyco Health Care  San Diego  Manufacturers 
UTC Aerospace Systems  Chula Vista  Aircraft Components-Manufacturers 
Viejas Casino & Outlet Ctr  Alpine  Casinos  

          
Source:  State of California Employment Development Department, America's Labor Market Information 

System (ALMIS) Employer Database, 2013 2nd Edition. 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

C-5 

Construction Activity 
 
The table below summarizes building activity in the City for the past five years: 
 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
Building Activity and Valuation 

Calendar Years 2008 through 2012 
(Dollars in thousands) 

 
 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Permit Valuation:      

New Single-family $2,008.9 $219.0 $540.0 $336.8 $1,587.5 
New Multi-family 0.0 0.0 0.0 420.0 1,888.5 
Res. Alterations/Additions 3,766.8 1,810.1 1,838.1 1,808.6 1,530.7 
Total Residential 5,775.7 2,029.1 2,378.1 2,565.4 5,006.7 

New Commercial 0.0 0.0 0.0 13,913.1 517.4 
New Industrial 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
New Other 198.3 75.7 83.1 0.0 0.0 
Com. Alterations/Additions 355.4 438.0 223.1 1,516.9 3,374.0 
Total Nonresidential 553.7 513.7 306.2 15,430.0 3,891.4 

      
New Dwelling Units:      
Single Family 11 1 2 2 5 
Multiple Family   0 0 0 4 30 

     TOTAL 11 1 2 6 35 
    

Source:  Construction Industry Research Board, Building Permit Summary. 
 

The following table shows valuation summaries of building permits issued in the County 
for the past five years:   

 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY 

Building Activity and Permit Valuation 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 
 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Permit Valuation:      

New Single-family $754,716.8 $550,409.3 $648,573.3 $711,514.7 $773,429.6 
New Multi-family 319,304.3 132,230.1 127,847.4 375,732.6 613,358.9 
Res. Alterations/Additions 265,223.7 196,061.6 198,064.4   335,344.7 222,813.5 
Total Residential 1,339,244.8 878,701.0 974,485.1 1,422,592.0 1,609,602.0 

New Commercial 338,667.4 91,590.6 95,031.3 252,659.0 595,236.6 
New Industrial 57,119.9 25,699.0 7,863.9 3,636.1 24,224.3 
New Other 165,385.3 123,633.3 124,348.3 21,025.5 36,851.1 
Com. Alterations/Additions 500,628.1 343,041.2 431,623.4 684,283.0 647,051.4 
Total Nonresidential $1,061,800.6 $583,964.1 658,867.0 961,603.6 1,303,363.4 

      
New Dwelling Units:      
Single Family 2,352 1,786 2,254 2,242 2,100 
Multiple Family 2,802 1,204  1,092 3,038 4,319 

     TOTAL 5,154 2,990 3,346 5,280 6,419 
          
Source:  Construction Industry Research Board, Building Permit Summary. 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

C-6 

 
Effective Buying Income 
 

“Effective Buying Income” is defined as personal income less personal tax and nontax 
payments, a number often referred to as “disposable” or “after-tax” income.  Personal income is 
the aggregate of wages and salaries, other labor-related income (such as employer 
contributions to private pension funds), proprietor's income, rental income (which includes 
imputed rental income of owner-occupants of non-farm dwellings), dividends paid by 
corporations, interest income from all sources, and transfer payments (such as pensions and 
welfare assistance).  Deducted from this total are personal taxes (federal, state and local), 
nontax payments (fines, fees, penalties, etc.) and personal contributions to social insurance.  
According to U.S. government definitions, the resultant figure is commonly known as 
“disposable personal income.” 

 
The following table summarizes the total effective buying income for the City of Imperial 

Beach, County of San Diego, the State and the United States for 2008 through 2012. 
 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 
Effective Buying Income 

2008 through 2012 
 

 
 

Year 

 
 

Area 

Total Effective 
Buying Income 
(000’s Omitted) 

Median Household 
Effective  

Buying Income 
    

2008 City of Imperial Beach $    432,605 $39,463 
 San Diego County  72,630,155 50,383 
 California  832,531,445 48,952 
 United States 6,443,994,426 42,303 
    

2009 City of Imperial Beach $    444,205 $39,982 
 San Diego County  74,134,315 51,773 
 California  844,823,319 49,736 
 United States 6,571,536,768 43,252 
    

2010 City of Imperial Beach $    411,340 $37,102 
 San Diego County  70,231,474 48,248 
 California  802,393,028 47,177 
 United States 6,365,020,076 41,368 
    

2011 City of Imperial Beach 406,098 36,942 
 San Diego County  70,602,550 48,111 
 California  814,578,458 47,062 
 United States 6,438,704,664 41,253 
    

2012 City of Imperial Beach 427,173 37,577 
 San Diego County  74,593,405 48,634 
 California  864,088,828 47,307 
 United States 6,737,867,730 41,358 

    
Source:  The Nielsen Company (US), Inc. 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

C-7 

 
 

Transportation 
 
Surface, sea and air transportation facilities serve County residents and businesses.  

Interstate 5 parallels the coast from Mexico to the Los Angeles Area and points north.  Interstate 
15 runs inland, leading to Riverside-San Bernardino, Las Vegas, and Salt Lake City.  Interstate 
8 runs eastward through the southern United States. 

 
Public transit in the metropolitan area is provided by the Metropolitan Transit 

Development Board and the North County Transit District ("NCTD").  The San Diego Trolley, 
developed by the Metropolitan Transit Development Board beginning in 1979, has been 
expanded.  A total of 17.6 miles were added to the original 108 miles; construction was 
completed in 1990.  Buses operated by NCTD carry passengers in the north San Diego County 
region, which includes the area south to and including Del Mar, east to Escondido, north to the 
Orange County and Riverside County lines, and includes Camp Pendleton. NCTD has 165 
vehicles in its bus fleet. NCTD's bus fleet carries more than 11 million passengers every year. 

 
San Diego is the terminus of the Santa Fe Railway's main line from Los Angeles.  

Amtrak passenger service is available at San Diego, with stops at Solana Beach and Oceanside 
in the North County. 

 
San Diego's harbor is one of the world's largest natural harbors.  The Port of San Diego 

is administered by the San Diego Unified Port District, which includes the cities of San Diego, 
National City, Chula Vista, Imperial Beach and Coronado. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

D-1 

APPENDIX D 
 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS  OF THE INDENTURE 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

E-1 

APPENDIX E 
 

FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

F-1 

APPENDIX F 
 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
 

 
This CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE (this “Disclosure Certificate”) is 

executed and delivered by the IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY (the “Successor Agency”) in connection with the issuance of $____________ Palm 
Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project, 2013 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (the 
“Bonds”). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of November 
1, 2010, by and between the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency and Wells Fargo Bank 
National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), as supplemented by a First Supplemental 
Indenture of Trust dated _______ 1, 2013 (the “Indenture”), by and between the Successor 
Agency and the Trustee. The Successor Agency covenants and agrees as follows: 

 
Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being 

executed and delivered by the Successor Agency for the benefit of the holders and beneficial 
owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with 
S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12(b)(5). 

 
Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture, which apply 

to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate, unless otherwise defined, the 
following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

 
“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Successor Agency 

pursuant to, and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 
“Dissemination Agent” shall mean NBS Government Finance Group, or any successor 

Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the Successor Agency and which has filed with 
the Successor Agency a written acceptance of such designation. 

 
“EMMA System” shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access system of the 

MSRB or such other electronic system designated by the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange 
Commission for compliance with S.E.C Rule 15c2-12(b). 

 
“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure 

Certificate. 
 
“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, which has been designated 

by the Securities and Exchange Commission as the sole repository of disclosure information for 
purposes of the Rule.  

 
 “Participating Underwriter” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds 

required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.  
 
 
“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from 
time to time. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

F-2 

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 
 
(a) The Successor Agency shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later 

than nine (9) months after the end of the Successor Agency’s fiscal year (which date currently 
would be March 31, based upon the June 30 end of the Successor Agency’s fiscal year), 
commencing with the report for the 2012-13 fiscal year, provide to the MSRB through the EMMA 
System an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this 
Disclosure Certificate. Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to said date, the 
Successor Agency shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the 
Successor Agency). The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate 
documents comprising a package, and may include by reference other information as provided 
in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the 
Successor Agency may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report, and 
later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if not available by that date. 
If the Successor Agency’s fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same 
manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c). 

 
(b) If the Successor Agency is unable to provide to the  MSRB through the EMMA 

System an Annual Report by the date required in subsection (a), the Successor Agency shall 
provide to the MSRB, in electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB through the EMMA 
System, a notice in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 

 
(c) The Dissemination Agent shall: 
 

(i) determine each year prior to the Annual Report Date the then-applicable 
rules and electronic format prescribed by the MSRB for the filing of annual 
continuing disclosure reports; and  
 
(ii) if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Successor Agency, file a 
report with the Successor Agency certifying that the Annual Report has been 
provided pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, stating the date it was provided 
to the MSRB through the EMMA System pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate. 

 
Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Successor Agency’s Annual Report shall 

contain or incorporate by reference the following: 
 
(a) Audited Financial Statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If the Successor Agency’s audited financial 
statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant to 
Section 3(a), the audited financial statements of the Successor Agency may be submitted 
separately from the balance of the Annual Report, when available and later than the date 
required. 

 
(b) The following financial information and operating data set forth in the final Official 

Statement:  
 
Financial information and operating data with respect to the Issuer for the prior fiscal 

year of the type included in the Official Statement, in the following categories (to the extent not 
included in the Issuer’s audited financial statements): (i) aggregate assessed values of the 
Project Area; (ii) list of top ten largest local secured property taxpayers within the Project Area; 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

F-3 

(iii) information on any appeals by such top ten taxpayers in the Project Area; and (iv) 
calculation of the coverage ratio for such fiscal year, including Parity Debt, calculated in the 
same manner as provided in the Official Statement under the section entitled “PROJECTED 
TAX REVENUES AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE." (All terms have the meaning set forth in 
the Indenture.) 

 
Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other 

documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Successor Agency or related 
public entities, which have been submitted to the MSRB through the EMMA System or the 
Securities and Exchange Commission. If the document included by reference is a final official 
statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The Successor 
Agency shall clearly identify each such other document so included by reference.  

 
Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.  

 
(a) The Successor Agency shall give, or cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of 

any of the following Listed Events with respect to the Bonds: 
 

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies. 
 
(2) Non-payment related defaults, if material. 
 
(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 

difficulties. 
 
(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 

difficulties. 
 
(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform. 
 
(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 

proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue 
(IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with 
respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events affecting 
the tax status of the security. 

 
(7) Modifications to rights of security holders, if material. 
 
(8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers. 
 
(9) Defeasances. 
 
(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 

securities, if material. 
 
(11) Rating changes. 
 
(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Successor 

Agency or other obligated person.  
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

F-4 

(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 
Successor Agency or an obligated person, or the sale of all or 
substantially all of the assets of the Successor Agency or an obligated 
person (other than in the ordinary course of business), the entry into a 
definitive agreement to undertake such an action, or the termination of a 
definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to 
its terms, if material. 

 
(14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name 

of a trustee, if material.  
 

(b) The Successor Agency shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent (if not the 
Successor Agency) to, file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB through the EMMA 
System, in a timely manner not in excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the Listed 
Event.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in subsections (a)(8) 
and (9) above need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the 
underlying event is given to holders of affected Bonds under the Indenture. 

 
(c) The Successor Agency acknowledges that the events described in subparagraphs 

(a)(2), (a)(7), (a)(8) (if the event is a bond call), (a)(10), (a)(13), and (a)(14) of this Section 5 
contain the qualifier “if material.”  The Successor Agency shall cause a notice to be filed as set 
forth in paragraph (b) above with respect to any such event only to the extent that the 
Successor Agency determines the event’s occurrence is material for purposes of U.S. federal 
securities law. 
 

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Successor Agency’s obligations 
under this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or 
payment in full of all of the Bonds or upon the delivery to the Dissemination Agent of an opinion 
of nationally recognized bond counsel retained by the Successor Agency to the effect that 
continuing disclosure is no longer required. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity 
of the Bonds, the Successor Agency shall give notice of such termination in the same manner 
as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c). 

 
Section 7. Dissemination Agent. 
 
(a) The Successor Agency may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination 

Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may 
discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination 
Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any 
notice or report prepared by the Successor Agency pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, 
unless the Successor Agency is the Dissemination Agent, as provided herein. The initial 
Dissemination Agent shall be Wells Fargo Bank National Association. If at any time there is no 
designated Dissemination Agent appointed by the Successor Agency, or if the Dissemination 
Agent so appointed is unwilling or unable to perform the duties of Dissemination Agent 
hereunder, the Successor Agency shall be the Dissemination Agent and undertake or assume 
its obligations hereunder. 

 
Any company succeeding to all or substantially all of the Dissemination Agent’s 

corporate trust business shall be the successor to the Dissemination Agent hereunder without 
the execution or filing of any paper or any further act. The Dissemination Agent may resign its 
duties hereunder at any time upon written notice to the Successor Agency. 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

F-5 

 
(b) The Dissemination Agent shall be paid compensation by the Successor Agency for 

its services provided hereunder in accordance with its schedule of fees as agreed to between 
the Dissemination Agent and the Successor Agency from time to time and for all expenses, 
legal fees and advances made or incurred by the Dissemination Agent in the performance of its 
duties hereunder. The Dissemination Agent (unless the Successor Agency is the Dissemination 
Agent) shall have no duty or obligation to review any information provided to it by the Successor 
Agency hereunder and shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary capacity for the 
Successor Agency, holders or beneficial owners or any other party. The Dissemination Agent 
may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any direction from the 
Successor Agency or an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel retained by the 
Successor Agency. 

 
Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 

Certificate, the Successor Agency may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of 
this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied 
(provided no amendment or waiver shall be made that affects the duties or rights of the 
Dissemination Agent without its written consent): 

 
(a) if the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4 or 5(a), it may 

only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal 
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of an obligated person 
with respect to the Bonds, or type of business conducted; 

 
(b) the undertakings herein, as proposed to be amended or waived, would, in the opinion 

of nationally recognized bond counsel retained by the Successor Agency, have complied with 
the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into 
account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in 
circumstances; and 

 
(c) the proposed amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by holders of the Bonds in 

the manner provided in the Indenture for amendments to the Indenture with the consent of 
holders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel retained by the 
Successor Agency, materially impair the interests of the holders or beneficial owners of the 
Bonds. 

 
If the annual financial information or operating data to be provided in the Annual Report 

is amended pursuant to the provisions hereof, the first annual financial information filed 
pursuant hereto containing the amended operating data or financial information shall explain, in 
narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change in the type of 
operating data or financial information being provided. 

 
If an amendment is made to the undertaking specifying the accounting principles to be 

followed in preparing financial statements, the annual financial information for the year in which 
the change is made shall present a comparison between the financial statements or information 
prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the 
former accounting principles. The comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the 
differences in the accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting 
principles on the presentation of the financial information, in order to provide information to 
investors to enable them to evaluate the ability of the Successor Agency to meet its obligations. 
To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison shall be quantitative. A notice of the change 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

F-6 

in the accounting principles shall be sent to the MSRB through the EMMA System in the same 
manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c). 

 
Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed 

to prevent the Successor Agency from disseminating any other information, using the means of 
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or 
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, 
in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Successor Agency 
chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed 
Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the 
Successor Agency shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such 
information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

 
Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Successor Agency to comply with any 

provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the Participating Underwriter or any holder or beneficial 
owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including 
seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Successor Agency to 
comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this Disclosure 
Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Indenture, and the sole remedy 
under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Successor Agency to comply 
with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance. 

 
Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. All of the 

immunities, indemnities, and exceptions from liability in Article VI of the Indenture insofar as 
they relate to the Trustee shall apply to the Trustee and the Dissemination Agent in this 
Disclosure Certificate. The Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically 
set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, and the Successor Agency agrees to indemnify and save 
the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against any 
loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of 
its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including attorneys fees) of 
defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent’s 
negligence or willful misconduct. The Dissemination Agent may rely and shall be protected in 
acting or refraining from acting upon any direction from the Successor Agency or an opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel retained by the Successor Agency. The obligations of the 
Successor Agency under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination 
Agent and payment of the Bonds. No person, other than the Successor Agency, shall have any 
right to commence any action against the Trustee or Dissemination Agent seeking any remedy 
other than to compel specific performance of this Disclosure Certificate. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 5



 

F-7 

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of 
the Successor Agency, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and holders and 
beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person 
or entity. 

 
Dated: ______________________ 
 
 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
 SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

 
 

By       
 
Name       
 
Title       

ATTACHMENT 5



 

F-8 

EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE TO MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING 
BOARD OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

 
 

Name of Issuer: Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency 
 
Name of Bond Issue: Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project, 2013 Tax 

Allocation Refunding Bonds 
  
Date of Issuance: [Closing Date] 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor 

Agency (the “Issuer”) has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named 
Bonds as required by the Indenture of Trust, dated as of November 1, 2010, by and between 
the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency and Wells Fargo Bank National Association, as 
trustee (the “Trustee”), as supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated 
_______ 1. The Issuer anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by _____________. 

 
Dated: ______________________ 
 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
      

 
By       
 
Name       
 
Title       

cc: Trustee 
 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

G-1 

 
APPENDIX G 

 
DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM 

 
 
The following description of the Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), the procedures and 

record keeping with respect to beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds, payment of principal, 
interest and other payments on the Bonds to DTC Participants or Beneficial Owners, 
confirmation and transfer of beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds and other related 
transactions between DTC, the DTC Participants and the Beneficial Owners is based solely on 
information provided by DTC.  Accordingly, no representations can be made concerning these 
matters and neither the DTC Participants nor the Beneficial Owners should rely on the foregoing 
information with respect to such matters, but should instead confirm the same with DTC or the 
DTC Participants, as the case may be.   

 
Neither the Successor Agency, the Underwriters nor the Trustee take any responsibility 

for the information contained in this Section.  
 
No assurances can be given that DTC, DTC Participants or Indirect Participants will 

distribute to the Beneficial Owners (a) payments of interest, principal or premium, if any, with 
respect to the Bonds, (b) Bonds representing ownership interest in or other confirmation or 
ownership interest in the Bonds, or (c) redemption or other notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., 
its nominee, as the registered owner of the Bonds, or that they will so do on a timely basis, or 
that DTC, DTC Participants or DTC Indirect Participants will act in the manner described in this 
Appendix.  The current “Rules” applicable to DTC are on file with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the current “Procedures” of DTC to be followed in dealing with DTC 
Participants are on file with DTC. 

 
1. The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities 

depository for the securities (the “Securities”). The Securities will be issued as fully-registered 
securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other 
name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered 
Security certificate will be issued for each issue of the Securities, each in the aggregate 
principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. If, however, the aggregate 
principal amount of any issue exceeds $500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to 
each $500 million of principal amount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to 
any remaining principal amount of such issue. 

 
2. DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company 

organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the 
New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” 
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity 
issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 
countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates 
the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in 
deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges 
between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of 
securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

G-2 

dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is 
the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income 
Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users 
of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both 
U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing 
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, 
either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+. 
The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org. 

 
3. Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct 

Participants, which will receive a credit for the Securities on DTC’s records. The ownership 
interest of each actual purchaser of each Security (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded 
on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written 
confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive 
written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their 
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into 
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by 
entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial 
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in 
Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is 
discontinued. 

 
4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with 

DTC are registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name 
as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Securities with 
DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect 
any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of 
the Securities; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose 
accounts such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The 
Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on 
behalf of their customers.  

 
5. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by 

Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Securities 
may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant 
events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed 
amendments to the Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may 
wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain 
and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to 
provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be 
provided directly to them. 

 
6. Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities within an 

issue are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of 
each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.  

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

G-3 

7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with 
respect to Securities unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI 
Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to Issuer as soon as 
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting 
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the record date 
(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

 
8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be 

made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s 
receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from Issuer or Agent, on payable date in 
accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the 
case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street 
name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or Issuer, 
subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 
Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such 
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the 
responsibility of Issuer or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be 
the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be 
the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

 
9. A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or 

tendered, through its Participant, to the Trustee, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by 
causing the Direct Participant to transfer the Participant’s interest in the Securities, on DTC’s 
records, to the Trustee. The requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an 
optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in 
the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s records and followed by a book-
entry credit of tendered Securities to the Trustee’s DTC account. 

 
10. DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the 

Securities at any time by giving reasonable notice to Issuer or Agent. Under such 
circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Security certificates are 
required to be printed and delivered.  

 
11. Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers 

through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be 
printed and delivered to DTC.  

 
12. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has 

been obtained from sources that Issuer believes to be reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility 
for the accuracy thereof. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



  Jones Hall Draft 8/26/13 
   
   
   
   
   
   
 
  
 
 

 
 

FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 
 
 

Dated as of ___________ 1, 2013 
 
 
 

by and between the 
 
 
 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
 
 

and 
 
 

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
as Trustee 

 
 
 

Relating to 
 
 

$_________ 
Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency 

Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project  
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 

 
 

 
  
 

ATTACHMENT 6



i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE X	  
ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS RELATING TO THE SERIES 2013 

BONDS	  
SECTION 10.01. Definitions. ................................................................................................................. 3	  
SECTION 10.02. Tax Revenues Applicable to Series 2013 Bonds. ...................................................... 4	  
SECTION 10.03. References in Series 2010 Indenture. ....................................................................... 4	  

 
ARTICLE XI	  

AUTHORIZATION OF SERIES 2013T BONDS	  
SECTION 11.01. Authorization of Series 2013 Bonds. ......................................................................... 6	  
SECTION 11.02. Terms of Series 2013 Bonds. .................................................................................... 6	  
SECTION 11.03. Redemption. .............................................................................................................. 7	  
SECTION 11.04. Form and Execution of Series 2013 Bonds. .............................................................. 7	  

 
ARTICLE XII	  

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF SERIES 2013 BONDS	  
SECTION 12.01. Application of Proceeds of Sale of Series 2013 Bonds. ............................................ 9	  
SECTION 12.02. Series 2013 Costs of Issuance Fund. ........................................................................ 9	  
SECTION 12.03. Series 2013 Bonds Escrow Subaccount. ................................................................... 9	  
SECTION 12.04. Series 2013 Reserve Account. .................................................................................. 9	  

 
ARTICLE XIII	  

MISCELLANEOUS	  
SECTION 13.01. Security for Series 2013 Bonds. .............................................................................. 11	  
SECTION 13.02. Continuing Disclosure. ............................................................................................. 12	  
SECTION 13.03. Tax Covenants. ........................................................................................................ 12	  
SECTION 13.04. Benefits Limited to Parties. ...................................................................................... 12	  
SECTION 13.05. Effect of this First Supplement. ................................................................................ 12	  
SECTION 13.06. Further Assurances. ................................................................................................ 12	  
SECTION 13.07. Execution in Counterparts. ...................................................................................... 13	  
SECTION 13.08. Governing Law. ........................................................................................................ 13	  
 
 
EXHIBIT A FORM OF SERIES 2013 BOND 
EXHIBIT B DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 
 

ATTACHMENT 6



  

 

FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 
 
 
This First Supplemental Indenture of Trust (this "First Supplement"), dated as of 

____________ 1, 2013, is by and between the IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY, a public entity duly organized and existing under the laws of 
the State of California (the "Successor Agency"), as successor in interest to the IMPERIAL 
BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the "Original Agency"), and WELLS FARGO BANK, 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association organized and existing under the 
laws of the United States of America, as trustee under the hereinafter defined Series 2010 
Indenture (the "Trustee"); 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
WHEREAS, the Original Agency is obligated to pay the original amount of $22,765,000 

under two Loan Agreements (the “2003 Loan Agreements”) entered into in 2003 in connection 
with the issuance by the Imperial Beach Financing Authority of its $22,765,000 original amount 
of Tax Allocation Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series A (Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment 
Project) for the purpose of financing programs, projects and activities relating to the Original 
Agency's Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project; payments due on the loan 
obligations are payable primarily from tax increment revenues derived from the Redevelopment 
Project (as defined in the hereinafter mentioned Series 2010 Indenture); 

 
WHEREAS, the Original Agency has heretofore issued its $21,595,000 aggregate 

principal amount of Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Bonds, 
2010 Tax Allocation Bonds (the "Series 2010 Bonds") for the purpose of financing 
redevelopment activities with respect to the Redevelopment Project, pursuant to an Indenture of 
Trust, dated as of November 1, 2010, by and between the Original Agency and the Trustee (the 
"Series 2010 Indenture"); 

 
WHEREAS, the Series 2010 Indenture permits the issuance of Parity Debt (within the 

meaning of the Series 2010 Indenture) payable from Tax Revenues (as defined in the Series 
2010 Indenture) on a parity with the Series 2010 Bonds, subject to certain terms and conditions; 

 
WHEREAS, by implementation of California Assembly Bill X1 26 ("AB X1 26") approved 

by the Governor of the State of California on June 28, 2011, which amended provisions of the 
California Redevelopment Law, (found at Health and Safety Code Section 33000, et.seq.) and 
added Part 1.8 and Part 1.85 to Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code, and due 
to the California Supreme Court’s decision in California Redevelopment Association v. 
Matosantos, the Original Agency was dissolved on February 1, 2012 in accordance with AB X1 
26, and on February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency, in accordance with and pursuant to the AB 
X1 26, assumed the duties and obligations of the Original Agency as provided in the Dissolution 
Act (defined herein), including, without limitation, the obligations of the Original Agency under 
the Series 2010 Indenture and related documents to which the Original Agency was a party; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Dissolution Act, at Section 34177.5 of the California Health and Safety 

Code authorizes the Successor Agency to undertake proceedings for the refunding of 
outstanding bonds and other obligations of the Original Agency, subject to the conditions 
precedent contained in Section 34177.5; 

 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

2 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has determined that it is in the best financial 
interests of the Successor Agency to refund, at this time, the Series 2003 Loan Agreements 
and, in order to do so, is proposing to issue its $___________ aggregate principal amount of its 
Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Palm Avenue/Commercial 
Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 (the "Series 2013 
Bonds") pursuant to the Series 2010 Indenture, as supplemented by this First Supplement 
(together, the "Indenture"); 

 
WHEREAS, the Series 2013 Bonds are being issued as Parity Debt and, to that end, 

this First Supplement is entered into pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of and 
conditions applicable to the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds as Parity Debt under the Series 
2010 Indenture, and for the purposes of supplementing and amending the Series 2010 
Indenture; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has certified that all acts and proceedings required 

by law necessary to make the Series 2013 Bonds, when executed by the Successor Agency, 
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, and duly issued, the valid, binding and legal special 
obligations of the Successor Agency in accordance with the Dissolution Act, and to constitute 
this First Supplement a valid and binding agreement for the uses and purposes herein set forth 
in accordance with its terms, have been done and taken, and the execution and delivery of the 
First Supplement have been in all respects duly authorized. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual agreements 

herein contained, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows: 
 

  

ATTACHMENT 6



 

3 

ARTICLE X  
 

ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS RELATING 
TO THE SERIES 2013 BONDS  

 
Section 10.01.  Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in 

this Section 10.01 shall, for all purposes of this First Supplement, have the respective meanings 
specified in this Section 10.01.  All terms defined in Section 1.01 and not otherwise defined or 
redefined in this Section 10.01 shall, when used in this First Supplement, have the respective 
meanings given to such terms in said Sections. 

 
"Agency" means the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency, as the Original Agency 

under this Indenture, or the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, as the 
successor in interest thereto, as applicable. 

 
"Bonds," subject to Section 10.03, means the Series 2010 Bonds, the Series 2013 

Bonds and any Parity Debt issued as bonds pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture. 
 
"Bond Year" means, with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds, the one-year period 

beginning on December 2 in any year and ending on the next succeeding December 1, both 
dates inclusive, except that the first Bond Year with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds shall 
begin on the Closing Date and end on December 1, 2013. 

 
"Closing Date" means, with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds, the date on which the 

Series 2013 Bonds are delivered to the original purchasers thereof.  
 
"Continuing Disclosure Certificate" means, with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds, that 

certain Continuing Disclosure Certificate relating to the Series 2013 Bonds executed by the 
Agency and dated the date of issuance and delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds, as originally 
executed and as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof. 

 
"Department of Finance" means the Department of Finance of the State of California. 
 
"Dissolution Act" means the provisions of Assembly Bill X1 26, signed by the Governor 

of the State on June 28, 2011, and filed with the Secretary of State June 29, 2011, amending 
the Redevelopment Law and adding Part 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and Part 1.85 
(commencing with Section 34170) of Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code, as 
amended by Assembly Bill 1484, signed by the Governor on June 27, 2012, and filed with the 
Secretary of State on June 27, 2012. 

 
"First Supplement" means this First Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of 

___________ 1, 2013, by and between the Agency and Trustee, as the same may be amended 
from time to time in accordance with the terms of the Series 2010 Indenture. 

 
"Indenture" means the Series 2010 Indenture, as supplemented and amended by the 

First Supplement, as it may be further supplemented or amended by any additional 
Supplemental Indenture entered into pursuant to the provisions thereof. 

 
"Original Agency" means the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency, a public body 

corporate and politic duly organized and existing under the Redevelopment Law prior to the 
Dissolution Act. 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

4 

 
"Oversight Board" means the Oversight Board of the Successor Agency established 

pursuant to the Section 34179 of the Dissolution Act. 
 
"Prior Tax Revenues" means (a) those taxes paid to the Agency with respect to the 

Redevelopment Project pursuant to Article 6 of Chapter 6 of the Redevelopment Law, and Section 
16 of Article XVI of the Constitution of the State, or pursuant to other applicable State law, and as 
provided in the Redevelopment Plan, and (b) reimbursements, subventions (but excluding 
payments to the Agency with respect to personal non-taxable property within the Redevelopment 
Project pursuant to Section 16110, et seq., of the Government Code of the State), or other 
payments made by the State with respect to any property taxes that would otherwise be due on 
real or personal property but for an exemption of such property from such taxes; including that 
portion of such taxes otherwise required by Section 33334.3 of the Redevelopment Law to be 
deposited in the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund, but only to the extent necessary to 
repay that portion of the Loan and any Parity Debt (including applicable reserves and financing 
costs) attributed to amounts deposited in the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund for use 
pursuant to Section 33334.2 or 33334.6 of the Redevelopment Law to increase, improve or 
preserve the supply of low and moderate income housing within or of benefit to the 
Redevelopment Project, but excluding all other amounts of such taxes (if any) required to be 
deposited into the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund of the Agency pursuant to Section 
33334.3 of the Redevelopment Law and all amounts (if any) required to be paid pursuant to Tax 
Sharing Statutes, unless subordinated to the Bonds and Parity Debt. 

 
“Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund” means the fund established pursuant to 

Section 34170.5(b) of the California Health and Safety Code and administered by the San Diego 
County Auditor - Controller. 

 
"Refunding Law" means Article 10 (commencing with Section 53570) and Article 11 

(commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of title 5 of the California 
Government Code.  

 
"Reserve Requirement" means, as of the date of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, an 

amount equal to  the lesser of (a) 10% of the original principal amount of the Bonds and any 
other Parity Debt of the Agency, or (b) the maximum annual debt service on the Bonds and any 
other Parity Debt of the Agency coming due and payable in the current or any future Bond Year, 
or (c) 125% of average annual Bond Year Debt Service on the Bonds and any other Parity Debt 
of the Agency.  

 
"Retirement Fund" means the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund established 

and held by the Successor Agency pursuant to Section 34170.5(a) of the California Health and 
Safety Code.   

 
"Series 2010 Bonds" means the Agency’s 2010 Tax Allocation Bonds (Palm 

Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project) initially issued in the principal amount of 
$21,595,000. 

 
"Series 2010 Indenture" means the Indenture of Trust dated as of November 1, 2010, by 

and between the Agency and the Trustee, as the same may be amended from time to time in 
accordance with its terms. 

 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

5 

"Series 2013 Bonds" means the Agency’s Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment 
Project Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 initially issued in the principal amount of 
$_______________. 

 
"Series 2013 Costs of Issuance Fund" means the fund by that name established and 

held by the Trustee pursuant to Section 12.02. 
 
"Series 2013 Reserve Account" means the subaccount by that name established and 

held by the Trustee within the Reserve Account pursuant to Section 12.04. 
 
"2013 Resolution" means Resolution No. 2013-____ adopted by the Successor Agency 

on _______________, 2013. 
 
"Series 2003 Bonds" means the Imperial Beach Financing Authority Tax Allocation 

Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series A (Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project) initially 
issued in the principal amount of $22,765,000. 

 
"Series 2003 Bonds Escrow Subaccount" means the subaccount by that name 

established pursuant to Section 12.03. 
 
"2003 Loan Agreements" means collectively the (i) Loan Agreement No. 1 (Original 

Area) dated as of November 1, 2003 by and between the Original Agency and the Authority in 
the original principal amount of $4,755,000; and (ii) Loan Agreement No. 2 (Amendment Area) 
dated as of November 1, 2003 by and between the Original Agency and the Authority in the 
original principal amount of $18,010,000. 

 
"Series 2003 Refunding Instructions” means the Irrevocable Refunding Instructions 

dated the Closing Date with respect to the Series 2003 Bonds, given by the Authority and the 
Successor Agency to the Trustee with respect to the Series 2003 Bonds. 

 
"Tax Revenues" means all taxes that were eligible for allocation to the Original Agency 

with respect to the Project Area and are allocated to the Successor Agency pursuant to Article 6 
of Chapter 6 (commencing with Section 33670) of the Law and Section 16 of Article XVI of the 
Constitution of the State, or pursuant to other applicable State laws and that are paid to the 
Successor Agency for deposit into the Special Fund of the Redevelopment Obligation 
Retirement Fund, plus, as to Tax Revenues available for payment of the Series 2010 Bonds, 
amounts of such taxes required to be paid pursuant to Tax Sharing Statutes but subordinated to 
the Series 2010 Bonds. In the event that the applicable property tax revenues provisions of the 
Dissolution Act are determined by a court in a final judicial decision to be invalid and, in place of 
the invalid provisions of the Dissolution Act, provisions of the Law or the equivalent shall 
become applicable to the Bonds, then the term “Tax Revenues” shall mean the Prior Tax 
Revenues. 

 
Section 10.02.  Tax Revenues Applicable to Series 2013 Bonds.   The Series 2013 

Bonds shall be secured by Tax Revenues on parity with the 2010 Bonds in the manner and to 
the extent set forth in 2010 Indenture and the Dissolution Act, provided however certain 
payments to taxing entities under Tax Sharing Statutes have been subordinated to the 
obligation to pay the Series 2010 Bonds but have not been subordinated with respect to the 
Series 2013 Bonds. 

 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

6 

Section 10.03.  References in Series 2010 Indenture.   The Series 2013 Bonds shall be 
secured on parity with the 2010 Bonds in the manner and to the extent set forth in the Series 
2010 Indenture, as supplemented hereby and by the Dissolution Act.  Except as expressly 
provided in this First Supplemental Indenture or except to the extent inconsistent with this First 
Supplemental Indenture, every term and condition contained in the foregoing provisions of the 
Series 2010 Indenture shall apply to the Series 2013 Bonds with full force and effect, with such 
omissions, variations and modifications thereof as may be appropriate to make the same 
conform to the issuance and administration of the Series 2013 Bonds as a separate but equal 
series of Bonds issued later in time.  In that regard, references to "Bond" or "Bonds" in Sections 
2.01, 2.02 and 2.03 and Sections 3.01 and 3.02 of the 2010 Indenture are deemed to refer to 
the Series 2010 Bonds described therein. 

 
 

ARTICLE XI  
 

AUTHORIZATION OF SERIES 2013 BONDS  
 
SECTION 11.01.  Authorization of Series 2013 Bonds.  The Series 2013 Bonds have 

been authorized to be issued by the Agency pursuant to the 2013 Resolution and the approvals 
required under the Dissolution Act.  The Series 2013 Bonds are being issued pursuant to the 
Refunding Law and in accordance with Section 34177.5 of the Dissolution Act, as Parity Debt in 
the aggregate principal amount of ____________________ Dollars ($_____________), under 
and subject to the terms of the Indenture, the 2013 Resolution and the Dissolution Act, for the 
purpose of refunding the 2003 Loan Agreements and the Series 2003 Bonds, thereby 
refinancing redevelopment activities with respect to the Redevelopment Project.  The Series 
2013 Bonds shall be designated the "Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor 
Agency Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2013".  The Indenture, which includes this First Supplement, constitutes a continuing 
agreement with the Owners of all of the Series 2013 Bonds issued hereunder and at any time 
Outstanding to secure the full and final payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest 
on all Series 2013 Bonds which may from time to time be executed and delivered hereunder, 
subject to the covenants, agreements, provisions and conditions herein contained.  

 
SECTION 11.02.  Terms of Series 2013 Bonds.   The Series 2013 Bonds shall be dated 

as of the Closing Date with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds. The Series 2013 Bonds shall be 
issued in fully registered form without coupons in denominations of $5,000. The Series 2013 
Bonds shall be issued in Book-Entry Form as provided in Section 2.04 of the Series 2010 
Indenture.  

 
The Series 2013 Bonds shall mature on June 1 in each of the years and in the 

respective principal amounts, and shall bear interest (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year 
of twelve 30-day months) at the rates per annum, as set forth in the following table, with debt 
service as shown in Exhibit B hereto: 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 6



 

7 

Series 2013 Maturity Schedule 
 

Maturity 
(June 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 
Each Series 2013 Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next 

preceding the date of authentication thereof, unless (a) it is authenticated after a Record Date 
and on or before the following Interest Payment Date, in which event it shall bear interest from 
such Interest Payment Date; or (b) it is authenticated on or before _________ 15, 20___, in 
which event it shall bear interest from the Closing Date; provided, however, that if, as of the date 
of authentication of any Series 2013 Bond, interest thereon is in default, such Series 2013 Bond 
shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date to which interest has previously been paid or 
made available for payment thereon. 

 
Interest on the Series 2013 Bonds (including the final interest payment upon maturity or 

redemption) is payable when due by check or draft of the Trustee mailed on the applicable 
Interest Payment Date to the Owner thereof at such Owner's address as it appears on the 
Registration Books at the close of business on the preceding Record Date; provided that at the 
written request of the Owner of at least $1,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Series 2013 
Bonds, which written request is on file with the Trustee as of any Record Date, interest on such 
Series 2013 Bonds shall be paid on the succeeding Interest Payment Date to such account in 
the United States as shall be specified in such written request.  The principal of the Series 2013 
Bonds and any premium upon redemption, are payable in lawful money of the United States of 
America upon presentation and surrender thereof at the Office of the Trustee. 

 
SECTION 11.03. Redemption.  The Series 2013 Bonds maturing on or after ____ 1, 

20___ are subject to redemption, as a whole or in part in such maturities as are selected by the 
Successor Agency, prior to their respective maturity dates (or in the absence of such direction, 
pro rata by maturity and by lot within a maturity), at the option of the Successor Agency, on any 
date on or after ____ 1, 20__ at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of Series 2013 
Bonds called for redemption, together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption, without premium. 

 
SECTION 11.04.  Form and Execution of Series 2013 Bonds.  The Series 2013 Bonds, 

the form of Trustee's Certificate of Authentication, and the form of Assignment to appear 
thereon, shall be substantially in the respective forms set forth in Exhibit A attached to this First 
Supplement and by this reference incorporated herein, with necessary or appropriate variations, 
omissions and insertions, as permitted or required by this Indenture. 

 
The Series 2013 Bonds shall be executed as provided in Section 2.05 of the Indenture 

(provided that the person executing the Series 2013 Bonds shall be the Executive Director of 
the Successor Agency or other officially designated person for that function, and the person 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

8 

attesting the Series 2013 Bonds shall be the Secretary of the Successor Agency or other 
officially designated person for that function), and shall be otherwise subject to said Section 
2.05 and Sections 2.06 through 2.08 of the Indenture.  

ATTACHMENT 6



 

9 

ARTICLE XII  
 

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF SERIES 2013 BONDS  
 
SECTION 12.01.  Application of Proceeds of Sale of Series 2013 Bonds.  Upon the 

receipt of payment for the Series 2013 Bonds on the Closing Date, the net proceeds thereof, 
being $_____________________ (consisting of the par amount of the Series 2013 Bonds, plus 
an original issue premium of $_______________), and less an underwriter's discount of 
$_____________ shall be paid to the Trustee and deposited in a temporary fund (if required by 
the Trustee to make the following transfers and deposits, which temporary fund shall be closed 
after such transfers and deposits have been made), all of the amounts on deposit in which shall 
be transferred on the Closing Date as follows: 

 
(a) The Trustee shall deposit in the Series 2013 Reserve Account the 

amount of $___________, to be applied as provided in Section 12.04. 
 
(a) The Trustee shall deposit in the Series 2013 Costs of Issuance Fund the 

amount of $___________, to be applied as provided in Section 12.02. 
 
(c) The Trustee shall deposit the remainder of the proceeds of the Series 

2013 Bonds, being $_______________, in the Series 2003 Bonds Escrow Subaccount 
to be applied as provided in Section 12.03. 
 
SECTION 12.02.  Series 2013 Costs of Issuance Fund.  There is hereby established a 

separate fund to be known as the "Series 2013 Costs of Issuance Fund", which shall be held by 
the Trustee in trust.  The moneys in the Series 2013 Costs of Issuance Fund shall be used and 
withdrawn by the Trustee from time to time to pay the Costs of Issuance with respect to the 
Series 2013 Bonds upon submission of a Written Request of the Agency stating (a) the person 
to whom payment is to be made, (b) the amount to be paid, (c) the purpose for which the 
obligation was incurred, (d) that such payment is a proper charge against the Series 2013 Costs 
of Issuance Fund, and (e) that such amounts have not been the subject of a prior Written 
Request of the Agency; in each case together with a statement or invoice for each amount 
requested thereunder. Each such Written Request of the Agency shall be sufficient evidence to 
the Trustee of the facts stated therein, and the Trustee shall have no duty to confirm the 
accuracy of such facts.  On the earlier of ____________, or the date of receipt by the Trustee of 
a Written Request of the Agency, all amounts (if any) remaining in the Series 2013 Costs of 
Issuance Fund shall be withdrawn therefrom by the Trustee and be transferred to the Interest 
Account and used to pay interest on the Series 2013 Bonds. 

 
SECTION 12.03.  Series 2003 Bonds Escrow Subaccount.  There is hereby established 

a subaccount within the Redemption Account to be known as the Series 2003 Bonds Escrow 
Subaccount, which is held by the Trustee in trust for the benefit of the owners of the Series 
2003 Bonds.  Amounts on deposit in the Series 2003 Bonds Escrow Subaccount shall be 
applied as provided in the Refunding Instructions.  Once all amounts in the Series 2003 Bonds 
Escrow Subaccount have been expended or transferred as provided in the Series 2003 
Refunding Instructions, the Series 2003 Bonds Escrow Subaccount shall be closed. 

 
SECTION 12.04.  Series 2013 Reserve Account.    Pursuant to Section 4.03 of the 

Series 2010 Indenture, the Successor Agency elects that the existing Reserve Account become 
a parity reserve for the Bonds and any future Parity Debt of the Agency. The amount deposited 
in the Reserve Account pursuant to Section 3.02(b) of the Series 2010 Indenture Trustee shall 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

10 

be held within a subaccount within the Reserve Account to be designated as the "Series 2010 
Reserve Subaccount."  The Trustee shall additionally establish a separate subaccount within 
the Reserve Account designated as the "Series 2013 Reserve Subaccount" for accounting 
purposes only, into which the Trustee shall transfer the amount set forth in Section 12.01(a). 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 6



 

11 

ARTICLE XIII  
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
 
SECTION 13.01.  Security for Series 2013 Bonds.  The Series 2013 Bonds shall be 

Parity Debt within the meaning of such term in Section 1.01 and shall be secured in the manner 
and to the extent set forth in Article IV.  As provided in Section 4.01 and Section 4.02 of the 
Indenture, the Series 2013 Bonds shall be secured on a parity with all other Bonds issued under 
this Indenture, including the Series 2010 Bonds, by a first pledge of and lien on all of the Tax 
Revenues in the Special Fund and all moneys in the Debt Service Fund and the accounts 
therein; provided however certain payments to taxing entities under Tax Sharing Statutes have 
been subordinated to the obligation to pay the Series 2010 Bonds but have not been 
subordinated with respect to the obligation to pay the Series 2013 Bonds. 

 
The Successor Agency acknowledges that, due to the passage of Dissolution Act, it will 

need to take certain actions to ensure that it collects sufficient Tax Revenues to pay debt 
service on the Bonds, including the Series 2013 Bonds, on a timely basis.  The Successor 
Agency covenants that it will take all such actions as required to make the timely payment of 
debt service on the Bonds.  The Successor Agency further acknowledges that the provisions of 
the Dissolution Act require that it establish the Retirement Fund, into which all Tax Revenues, 
as and when received are required to be deposited.  The Successor Agency has heretofore 
established the Retirement Fund as required by Section 34170.5(a) of the Dissolution Act, and 
covenants that it shall continue to hold and maintain the Retirement Fund so long as any of the 
Bonds are Outstanding.  The Successor Agency hereby agrees that it will hold the Special Fund 
as an account within Retirement Fund and will continue to deposit all Tax Revenues, as and 
when received, into the Special Fund in order to ensure that all Tax Revenues are available for 
the payment of debt service on the Bonds on a timely basis. 

 
The Successor Agency further covenants and agrees that it will duly and punctually pay 

or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on each of the Bonds, including the Series 2013 
Bonds, on the date, at the place and in the manner provided in the Bonds, and that it will take all 
actions required under the Dissolution Act to include scheduled debt service on the Series 2013 
Bonds, as well as any amount required under the Indenture to replenish the Reserve Account, 
on Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules for each six-month period so as to enable the 
County Auditor-Controller to distribute from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund to the 
Retirement Fund on each January 2 and June 1 amounts required for the Successor Agency to 
deposit into the Special Fund to pay principal of, and interest on, the Series 2013 Bonds, 
coming due in the respective six-month period, including, without limitation, placing on the 
periodic Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for approval by the Oversight Board and 
State Department of Finance, to the extent necessary, the amounts to be held by the Successor 
Agency as a reserve until the next six-month period, as contemplated by paragraph (1)(A) of 
subdivision (d) of Section 34171 of the Dissolution Act, that are necessary to provide for the 
payment of principal and interest on the Series 2013 Bonds when the next property tax 
allocation from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund is projected to be insufficient to pay 
all obligations due under the Indenture and for the next payment due thereunder and hereunder 
in the following six-month period. 

 
Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, at Section 34177.5(i) of the Health and Safety Code, 

within ten (10) days of the Closing Date for the Series 2013 Bonds, the Successor Agency will 
petition the Department of Finance to confirm that its determination that the Series 2013 Bonds 
approved on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules constitutes an enforceable 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

12 

obligation is final and conclusive, and that it has finally and conclusively approved that the 
Series 2013 Bonds constitute an "enforceable obligation" under the Dissolution Act and reflects 
the department's approval of subsequent payments made pursuant to the enforceable 
obligation. 

 
The Successor Agency also covenants to calculate the amount of Tax Revenues 

received during each six-month period, as described above, to ensure that Tax Revenues are 
properly credited to and deposited in the Special Fund. 

 
The Successor Agency shall not enter into any agreement with any other governmental 

unit, or amend any such agreement, if such agreement or amendment would have the effect of 
causing the amount of Tax Revenues available to the Successor Agency for payment of the 
Bonds to be insufficient to meet debt service on the Series 2013 Bonds and the 2010 Bonds, 
unless in the written opinion of an Independent Redevelopment Consultant is filed with the 
Trustee to the effect that such reduction will not adversely affect the interests hereunder of or 
the security granted hereunder to the Bond Owners. 

 
SECTION 13.02. Continuing Disclosure. The Agency hereby covenants and agrees that 

it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture, failure of the Agency to comply with the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not be considered an Event of Default; however, any 
Participating Underwriter or any owner or beneficial owner of the Series 2013 Bonds may take 
such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking specific performance by 
court order, to cause the Agency to comply with its obligations under this Section 13.02. 

 
SECTION 13.03.  Tax Covenants. The Agency agrees to comply with the requirements 

of Sections 5.12 with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds in addition to the Series 2010 Bonds. 
 
SECTION 13.04.  Benefits Limited to Parties.  Nothing in this First Supplement, 

expressed or implied, is intended to give to any person other than the Agency, the Trustee and 
the Owners of the Bonds, any right, remedy, claim under or by reason of this First Supplement.  
Any covenants, stipulations, promises or agreements in this First Supplement contained by and 
on behalf of the Agency shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Trustee and the 
Owners of the Bonds. 

 
SECTION 13.05.  Effect of this First Supplement.  Except as in this First Supplement 

expressly provided or except to the extent inconsistent with any provision of this First 
Supplement, the Series 2013 Bonds shall be deemed to be Bonds under and within the 
meaning thereof as set forth in Section 1.02 of the Indenture, as modified by this First 
Supplement, and every term and condition contained in the other provisions of this Indenture 
shall apply to the Series 2013 Bonds with full force and effect, with such omissions, variations 
and modifications thereof as may be appropriate to make the same conform to this First 
Supplement.   

 
SECTION 13.06.  Further Assurances.  The Agency will adopt, make, execute and 

deliver any and all such further resolutions, instruments and assurances as may be reasonably 
necessary or proper to carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance of this Indenture, 
and for the better assuring and confirming unto the Owners of the Series 2013 Bonds and the 
rights and benefits provided in the Indenture. 

 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

13 

SECTION 13.07.  Execution in Counterparts.  This First Supplement may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one 
and the same instrument. 

 
SECTION 13.08.  Governing Law.  This First Supplement shall be construed and 

governed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY has caused this First Supplement to be signed in its name by its 
Executive Director and attested by its Secretary, and WELLS FARGO BANK, National 
Association, in token of its acceptance of the trusts created hereunder, has caused this First 
Supplement to be signed in its corporate name by its officer thereunto duly authorized, all as of 
the day and year first above written. 

 
 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
 
 
 
By:   

Executive Director 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:   

Secretary 
 
 

WELLS FARGO BANK, National 
Association, as Trustee  
 
 
 
By:   

Authorized Officer 
 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

A-1 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
 

(FORM OF SERIES 2013 BOND) 
 

No. _______ $__________ 
 
 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

 
 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
PALM AVENUE/COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2013 
 

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: DATED DATE: CUSIP: 
 June 1, ______ [Closing Date]  

 
REGISTERED OWNER:   CEDE & CO. 
 
PRINCIPAL SUM: DOLLARS 

 
The IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY, a public 

entity organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the 
"Agency"), for value received hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner stated above, or 
registered assigns (the "Registered Owner"), on the Maturity Date stated above (subject to any 
right of prior redemption hereinafter provided for), the Principal Sum stated above, in lawful 
money of the United States of America, and to pay interest thereon in like lawful money from the 
Interest Payment Date (as hereinafter defined) next preceding the date of authentication of this 
Bond, unless (i) this Bond is authenticated on or before an Interest Payment Date and after the 
close of business on the preceding Record Date, in which event it shall bear interest from such 
Interest Payment Date, or (ii) this Bond is authenticated on or before the first Record Date, in 
which event it shall bear interest from the Dated Date above; provided however, that if at the 
time of authentication of this Bond, interest is in default on this Bond, this Bond shall bear 
interest from the Interest Payment Date to which interest has previously been paid or made 
available for payment on this Bond, until payment of such Principal Sum in full, at the Interest 
Rate per annum stated above, payable semiannually on each June 1 and December 1, 
commencing ____________ (each, an "Interest Payment Date"), calculated on the basis of a 
360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months.  Principal hereof and premium, if any, upon 
early redemption hereof are payable upon surrender of this Bond at the corporate trust office of 
WELLS FARGO BANK, National Association, in San Francisco, California, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), or at such other place designated by the Trustee (the "Principal Corporate Trust 
Office").  Interest hereon (including the final interest payment upon maturity or earlier 
redemption) is payable by check of the Trustee mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, on 
the Interest Payment Date to the Registered Owner hereof at the Registered Owner's address 
as it appears on the registration books maintained by the Trustee as of the Record Date for 
such Interest Payment Date; provided however, that payment of interest may be by wire transfer 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

A-2 

to an account in the United States of America to any registered owner of Bonds in the aggregate 
principal amount of $1,000,000 or more upon written instructions of any such registered owner 
filed with the Trustee for that purpose prior to the Record Date preceding the applicable Interest 
Payment Date.   

 
This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Agency designated as 

"Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Palm Avenue/Commercial 
Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013" (the "Bonds"), of an 
aggregate principal amount of _____________________ Dollars ($__________), all of like 
tenor and date (except for such variation, if any, as may be required to designate varying series, 
numbers, maturities, interest rates, or redemption and other provisions) and all issued pursuant 
to the provisions of the Refunding Law (as defined in the hereinafter mentioned Indenture) and 
in accordance with Section 34177.5 of the Dissolution Act (as defined in the Indenture), and 
pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of November 1, 2010, by and between the Imperial 
Beach Redevelopment Agency, as predecessor in interest to the Agency (the "Original Agency") 
and the Trustee (the "Series 2010 Indenture"), as supplemented and amended by a First 
Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of ___________ 1, 2013 between the Agency and the 
Trustee (collectively, the "Indenture"), providing for the issuance of the Bonds.  The Bonds are 
being issued in the form of registered Bonds without coupons, and are being issued on parity 
with certain other bonds previously issued by the Original Agency.  Additional bonds or other 
obligations may be issued on parity with the Bonds, but only subject to the terms of the 
Indenture.  Reference is hereby made to the Indenture (copies of which are on file at the office 
of the Agency) and all indentures supplemental thereto and to the Law and Dissolution Act (as 
defined in the Indenture) for a description of the terms on which the Bonds are issued, the 
provisions with regard to the nature and extent of the Tax Revenues (as that term is defined in 
the Indenture), and the rights thereunder of the registered owners of the Bonds and the rights, 
duties and immunities of the Trustee and the rights and obligations of the Agency thereunder, to 
all of the provisions of which Indenture the Registered Owner of this Bond, by acceptance 
hereof, assents and agrees.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
meanings given them in the Indenture. 

 
The Bonds have been issued by the Agency for the purpose of providing funds to 

refinance certain redevelopment activities with respect to its Palm Avenue/Commercial 
Redevelopment Project Area (the "Project Area") by prepaying the amount owed by the Agency 
under two Loan Agreements entered into in 2003 in connection with the issuance by the 
Imperial Beach Financing Authority of its $22,765,000 original amount of Tax Allocation 
Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series A (Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project), and to pay 
certain expenses of the Agency in issuing the Bonds. 

 
The Bonds are special obligations of the Agency and this Bond and the interest hereon 

and on all other Bonds and the interest thereon (to the extent set forth in the Indenture), are 
payable from, and are secured by a pledge of, security interest in and lien on the Tax 
Revenues, as defined in the Indenture and modified by the Dissolution Act (as defined in the 
Indenture) derived by the Agency from the Project Area. 

 
There has been created and will be maintained by the Agency, the Special Fund (as 

defined in the Indenture) into which Tax Revenues shall be deposited and from which the 
Agency shall transfer amounts to the Trustee for payment, when due, of the principal of and the 
interest and redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds, as defined in the Indenture.  As and to 
the extent set forth in the Indenture, all such Tax Revenues and the moneys in the Special Fund 
(as such terms are defined in the Indenture) are exclusively and irrevocably pledged to and 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

A-3 

constitute a trust fund, in accordance with the terms hereof and the provisions of the Indenture, 
the Dissolution Act and the Law, for the security and payment or redemption of, including any 
premium upon early redemption, if applicable, and for the security and payment of interest on, 
the Bonds.  In addition, the Bonds shall be additionally secured at all times by a first and 
exclusive pledge of, security interest in and lien upon all of the moneys in the Debt Service 
Fund, the Interest Account, the Principal Account, the Reserve Account and the Redemption 
Account (as such terms are defined in the Indenture).  Except for the Tax Revenues and such 
moneys, no funds or properties of the Agency shall be pledged to, or otherwise liable for, the 
payment of principal of or interest or redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds. 

 
The Bonds maturing on or after ____ 1, 20___ are subject to redemption, as a whole or 

in part in such maturities as are selected by the Successor Agency, prior to their respective 
maturity dates (or in the absence of such direction, pro rata by maturity and by lot within a 
maturity), at the option of the Successor Agency, on any date on or after ____ 1, 20__ at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount of Bonds called for redemption, together with 
interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium. 

 
If an Event of Default, as defined in the Indenture, shall occur, the principal of all Bonds 

may be declared due and payable upon the conditions, in the manner and with the effect 
provided in the Indenture, but such declaration and its consequences may be rescinded and 
annulled as further provided in the Indenture. 

 
The Bonds are issuable as fully registered Bonds without coupons in denominations of 

$5,000 and any integral multiple thereof.  Subject to the limitations and conditions and upon 
payment of the charges, if any, as provided in the Indenture, Bonds may be exchanged for a like 
aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized denominations and of the same 
maturity. 

 
This Bond is transferable by the Registered Owner hereof, in person or by his attorney 

duly authorized in writing, at the Principal Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, but only in the 
manner and subject to the limitations provided in the Indenture, and upon surrender and 
cancellation of this Bond.  Upon registration of such transfer a new fully registered Bond or 
Bonds, of any authorized denomination or denominations, for the same aggregate principal 
amount and of the same maturity will be issued to the transferee in exchange herefor.  The 
Trustee may refuse to transfer or exchange (a) any Bond during the fifteen (15) days prior to the 
date established for the selection of Bonds for redemption, or (b) any Bond selected for 
redemption. 

 
The Agency and the Trustee may treat the Registered Owner hereof as the absolute 

owner hereof for all purposes, and the Agency and the Trustee shall not be affected by any 
notice to the contrary. 

 
The rights and obligations of the Agency and the registered owners of the Bonds may be 

modified or amended at any time in the manner, to the extent and upon the terms provided in 
the Indenture, but no such modification or amendment shall (a) extend the maturity of or reduce 
the interest rate on any Bond or otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the Agency to pay the 
principal, interest or redemption premiums (if any) at the time and place and at the rate and in 
the currency provided herein of any Bond without the express written consent of the registered 
owner of such Bond, (b) reduce the percentage of Bonds required for the written consent to any 
such amendment or modification or (c) without its written consent thereto, modify any of the 
rights or obligations of the Trustee. 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

A-4 

 
Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust 

Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the Agency or the Trustee for registration of 
transfer, exchange, or payment, and any Bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any 
payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE 
OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the Registered 
Owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

 
This Bond is not a debt, liability or obligation of the City of Imperial Beach, the State of 

California, or any of its political subdivisions, and neither said City, said State, nor any of its 
political subdivisions is liable hereon, nor in any event shall this Bond be payable out of any 
funds or properties other than those pledged by the Agency.  The Bonds do not constitute an 
indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction. 

 
It is hereby certified that all of the things, conditions and acts required to exist, to have 

happened or to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond do exist, 
have happened or have been performed in due and regular time and manner as required by the 
Dissolution Act, the Law and the laws of the State of California, and that the amount of this 
Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the Agency, does not exceed any limit prescribed 
by the Dissolution Act, the Law or any laws of the State of California, and is not in excess of the 
amount of Bonds permitted to be issued under the Indenture. 

 
This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or become valid or 

obligatory for any purpose until the Trustee's Certificate of Authentication hereon shall have 
been manually signed by the Trustee. 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

A-5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Imperial Beach Redevelopment Agency Successor 
Agency has caused this Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf with the facsimile 
signature of its Executive Director and attested by the facsimile signature of its Secretary, all as 
of the Dated Date set forth above. 

 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
 
 
 
By:   
 Executive Director 
 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
  
   
 Secretary 

 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

A-6 

TRUSTEE'S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
 
This is one of the Bonds described in the within-mentioned Indenture. 
 
Authentication Date: _______________ 

 
 
 

WELLS FARGO BANK, National 
Association, as Trustee 
 
 
 
By:   
 Authorized Signatory 

 
 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 6



 

A-7 

ABBREVIATIONS 
 

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall 
be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or Tax 
Regulations: 
 
 
 
TEN COM --  as tenants in common UNIF GIFT MIN ACT ______Custodian _____ 
TEN ENT --  as tenants by the entireties  (Cust.)   (Minor) 
JT TEN  --  as joint tenants with right  under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act  __________ 
 of survivorship and not as    (State) 
 tenants in common 
COMM PROP -- as community property 
  
 

ADDITIONAL ABBREVIATIONS MAY ALSO BE USED  
THOUGH NOT IN THE LIST ABOVE 

  

ATTACHMENT 6



 

A-8 

(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT) 
 

For value received the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto  
  
  
  

(Name, Address and Tax Identification or Social Security Number of Assignee) 
the within-registered Bond and hereby irrevocably constitute(s) and appoints(s)  

   attorney, 
to transfer the same on the registration books of the Trustee with full power of substitution in the 
premises. 

 
Dated: __________________________ 
 
Signatures Guaranteed:  
 

Note: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible 
guarantor. 

 Note: The signatures(s) on this Assignment must 
correspond with the name(s) as written on the 
face of the within Bond in every particular without 
alteration or enlargement or any change 
whatsoever. 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 6



 

B-1 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 6



  Jones Hall Draft 8/26/13 
 

 

 
IRREVOCABLE REFUNDING INSTRUCTIONS 

 
These IRREVOCABLE REFUNDING INSTRUCTIONS (these “Instructions”), dated 

_____________, 2013, are given by the IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY, a public entity duly organized and existing under the laws of the State 
of California (the "Successor Agency"), as successor in interest of the IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the "Original Agency") and the IMPERIAL BEACH PUBLIC 
FINANCING AUTHORITY, a joint powers authority organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of California (the "Authority") to WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a 
national banking association organized and existing under the laws of the United States of 
America, acting as trustee for the hereinafter defined 2003 Authority Bonds and 2013 Bonds 
(the “Trustee”); 

 
W l T N E S S E T H :  

 
 
WHEREAS, the Original Agency is obligated to pay the original amount of $22,765,000 

under two Loan Agreements (the “2003 Loan Agreements”) entered into in 2003 in connection 
with the issuance by the Authority of its $22,765,000 original amount of Tax Allocation Revenue 
Bonds, 2003 Series A (Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment Project) (the "2003 Authority 
Bonds") pursuant to an Indenture of Trust dated as of November 1, 2003 (the "2003 Indenture") 
by and between the Authority and the Trustee for the purpose of financing programs, projects 
and activities relating to the Original Agency's Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment 
Project (the "Redevelopment Project"); payments due on the loan obligations are payable 
primarily from tax increment revenues derived from the Redevelopment Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, by implementation of California Assembly Bill X1 26 approved by the 

Governor of the State of California on June 28, 2011 ("AB 26"), which amended provisions of 
the California Redevelopment Law, (found at Health and Safety Code Section 33000, et.seq.) 
and added Part 1.8 and Part 1.85 to Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code, and 
due to the California Supreme Court’s decision in California Redevelopment Association v. 
Matosantos, the Original Agency was dissolved on February 1, 2012 in accordance with AB 26, 
and on February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency, in accordance with and pursuant to AB 26, 
assumed the duties and obligations set forth in AB 26 for the Original Agency, including, without 
limitation, the obligations of the Original Agency under the 2003 Loan Agreements and related 
documents to which the Original Agency was a party; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has determined that it is in the best financial 

interests of the Successor Agency to refund, at this time, the 2003 Loan Agreements, and the 
Successor Agency and the Authority have determined that the refunding of the 2003 Loan 
Agreements will result in the simultaneous redemption of the 2003 Authority Bonds prior to their 
scheduled maturity date; and  

 
WHEREAS, in order to provide funds for such purpose, the Successor Agency is issuing 

its $___________ aggregate principal amount of its Palm Avenue/Commercial Redevelopment 
Project Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 (the "Series 2013 Bonds") pursuant to an 
Indenture of Trust, dated as of November 1, 2010, by and between the Original Agency and the 
Trustee, as supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated approximately of 
even date herewith (together, the "Indenture") and applying a portion of the proceeds of the 
2013 Bonds, together with certain other moneys, to prepay the obligations of the Successor 

ATTACHMENT 7



 

2 

Agency under the 2003 Loan Agreements and redeem all of the outstanding 2003 Authority 
Bonds; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Successor Agency and the Authority wish to give these Instructions to 

the Trustee for the purpose of providing the terms and conditions relating to the deposit and 
application of moneys to provide for the prepayment 2003 Loan Agreements and the 
simultaneous redemption prior to maturity of the 2003 Authority Bonds; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Successor Agency and the Authority hereby irrevocably 

instruct the Trustee as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Establishment of the 2003 Authority Bonds Escrow Subaccount.  

Pursuant to Section 2.2(a), Section 4.2(d) and Section 9.3 of the Indenture, the Trustee is 
directed to establish within the Redemption Account established pursuant to the 2003 Indenture 
a special subaccount known as the “2003 Authority Bonds Escrow Subaccount” (the “Escrow 
Subaccount”).  All amounts on deposit in the Escrow Subaccount are hereby irrevocably 
pledged as a special trust fund for the redemption of all of the outstanding 2003 Authority Bonds 
on __________, 2013.  Neither the Trustee nor any other person shall have a lien upon or right 
of set off against the amounts at any time on deposit in the 2003 Authority Bonds Escrow 
Subaccount, and such amounts shall be applied only as provided herein. 

 
Section 2.  Deposit into the 2003 Authority Bonds Escrow Subaccount; Investment 

of Amounts.  Concurrently with delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds, the Successor Agency shall 
cause to be deposited in the Escrow Subaccount the amount of $_____________ in 
immediately available funds to be derived from a portion of the proceeds of sale of the Series 
2013 Bonds.  [Additionally, (a) the Successor Agency will also transfer to the Trustee for deposit 
in the Escrow Subaccount the amount of $_____________ (b) the Authority will also transfer to 
the Trustee for deposit in the Escrow Subaccount the amount of $_____________.]  The 
Successor Agency hereby directs the Trustee to hold all amounts in the Escrow Subaccount 
[uninvested (in cash)]. 

 
The Successor Agency signifies that by making the deposit described herein, it is 

discharging the 2003 Authority Bonds pursuant to Sections 9.3 of the 2003 Indenture. 
 
Section 3.  Proceedings for Redemption of 2003 Authority Bonds.  The Successor 

Agency and the Authority hereby irrevocably elect, and direct the Trustee, to redeem, on 
_______________, 2013, from amounts on deposit in the Series 2003 Escrow Subaccount, the 
outstanding 2003 Authority Bonds pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.03(a) of the 2003 
Indenture.  The Trustee acknowledges, that by accepting these instructions, it has [heretofore] 
[will, on or before _____________, 2013 have] published a notice of such redemption in 
accordance with Section 2.2(c) of the 2003 Indenture in order to allow for the redemption of the 
2003 Authority Bonds on _______________, 2013. 

 
Section 4.  Application of Funds to Redeem 2003 Authority Bonds.  The Trustee 

shall apply the amounts on deposit in the Escrow Subaccount to redeem the outstanding 2003 
Authority Bonds on _______________, 2013 at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount 
thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, all in accordance with Section 2.2(a) of the 2003 
Indenture. 

 
Section 5.  Transfer of Remaining Funds.  On _____________, 2013, following the 

payment and redemption described above and payment of any amounts then owed to the 

ATTACHMENT 7



 

3 

Trustee, the Trustee shall withdraw any amounts remaining on deposit in the Escrow 
Subaccount and transfer such amounts to the Debt Service Fund established under the 2013 
Indenture to be used for the purpose of paying interest on the Series 2013 Bonds. 
 

Section 6. Amendment.  These Instructions shall be irrevocable by the Successor 
Agency.  These Instructions may be amended or supplemented by the Successor Agency, but 
only if the Successor Agency shall file with the Trustee (a) an opinion of nationally recognized 
bond counsel engaged by the Successor Agency stating that such amendment or supplement 
will not, of itself, adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the 2003 
Authority Bonds or the Series 2013 Bonds under federal income tax law, and (b) a certification 
of an independent accountant or independent financial adviser engaged by the Successor 
Agency stating that such amendment or supplement will not affect the sufficiency of funds 
invested and held hereunder to make the payments required by Section 4. 
 

Section 7. Application of Certain Terms of the 2003 Indenture.  All of the terms of 
the 2003 Indenture relating to the payment of principal of and interest and repayment premium, 
if any, on the 2003 Authority Bonds and the redemption thereof, and the protections, immunities 
and limitations from liability afforded the Trustee, are incorporated in these Instructions as if set 
forth in full herein. 
 

Section 8. Counterparts.  These Instructions may be signed in several counterparts, 
each of which will constitute an original, but all of which will constitute one and the same 
instrument. 
 

Section 9.  Governing Law.  These Instructions shall be construed in accordance with 
and governed by the laws of the State of California. 
 
 IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
 
 
 
By:   

Executive Director 
  

 
IMPERIAL BEACH PUBLIC FINANCING 
AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
By:   

Executive Director 
ACCEPTED: 
 
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
 
 
 
By:        
  Authorized Officer 

ATTACHMENT 7


	Agenda
	Item No. 1.3
	Item No. 2.1
	Item No. 2.2
	Item No. 2.3
	Item No. 2.4
	Item No. 2.5
	Item No. 2.6
	Item No. 5.1
	Item No. 6.1
	Item No. 6.2
	Item No. 6.3
	Item No. 6.4
	Item No. 6.5
	Item No. 7.1



